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From the
Chairman’s desk....

Mr. Parasmal Doshi
(Chairman & Whole Time Director)

Dear Shareholders,

The past couple of years have been a period of intense action and reflection. We have seen a
global pandemic, geopolitical tensions, the rise of cryptocurrency and many other public and
private upheavals. As the dust settles, and a clearer picture of the world ahead emerges, |
believe we are standing at the threshold of a period of great opportunity and growth. In the
face of widespread change, your company has shown remarkable flexibility and adaptability,
coming out stronger than ever, after destructive events like the global financial crisis or the
pandemic.

The Financial Year 2021-22 results are detailed in this Annual report, elucidating the growth
made by your Company. The Company reported Net Profit of Rs.1040.03 Lakhs in the financial
year 2021-22 as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 1044.39Lakhs in the Previous Year. Our Revenue
from Operations for the financial year 2021-22 is Rs. 1985.16 Lakhs, showing a downturn of
9.28% as compared to previous year Revenue from Operations of Rs. 2188.19 Lakhs. The
networth of our Company has increased to Rs 6343.78 Lakhs in the financial year 2021-22 in
comparison with Rs 5403.75Lakhs in the financial year 2020-21.

During the year Company has started providing services to Domestic Institutional Clients and
have.added seven Institutional Clients. In addition to that we are expected to add some more
clientsin the future.
Ain,

In additiorJ{"t@ our business goals and commitment to drive shareholder value, your Company
is focused on“playing its role as a responsible corporate citizen. We continue to contribute
towards initiatives that drive societal change in the communities where we operate, while
ensuring that our growth is sustainable. Our approach and commitment towards Corporate
Governance is.essential to the delivery of strategic priorities. We stand by the values which
formsthefou n'd'a_tjon stone of our businessand Company.

With the view to c-o_htr'i'bute towards the growth of an economy the company entered into a
new line of businessiby incorporating a Subsidiary named FEMTO Green Hydrogen Limited.
The Company isin a prbCess of Research-and Development of devices which can be used for
elimination of pollution ahd for improving the fuel efficiency and to increase the level of
operational output of engmes and automotive, non-automotive applications and machine
equipmentandtoreduce poIIuUOn
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We are privileged to share a strong relationship with investors based on a deep understanding
of their expectations and our commitment to creating value for them. We maintain
transparency in our disclosures and frequent communication with investors through
channels such as Annual General Meeting, and Website Disclosures and Stock Exchangé

Disclosure. * °
e o

e o
We believe our people and people processes give us the definitive edge to manage scale and

yet remain nimble to embrace change proactively. On the people front, | am delighted to
share that our robust people processes that have been the bedrock of our success over the
years continue to evolve and stay contemporary. Human Resource plays a key role in
developing, reinforcing and changing the culture of an organisation. Pay, performance
management, training and development, recruitment and on boarding and reinforcing the
values of the business are all essential elements of business culture covered by human
resource.

Your Board strongly advocates the fact that the growth of a company is backed by its
Shareholders and keeping the same in cognizance, your Board is jubilant to recommmend a
final dividend @10%, being Re. 1/- per equity share of Rs. 10/- each, for the financial year ended
3lst March, 2022.

To conclude with, I would like to convey my heartfelt appreciation towards all the shareholders,
clients, directors, employees, bankers, auditors and all the stakeholders for their continued
belief, support and confidence in the Company. | thank you for accompanying us on the
elating journey ahead. We endeavor to build more capabilities in order to ensure that we
expand our relevance to our stakeholders. Our focus in financial year 2021-22 will continue to
be “Growth” through leveraging our internal strengths and the huge external opportunities
that the economy offers. This is how Indo Thai is placed and we are confident of a better and
sustainable future.

Sincerely,

Parasmal Doshi

(Chair"m_an cum Whole Time Director)
.'-.-k,_a_

2%

Date: 12th August, 2022
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BOARD’S REPORT & ANNEXURES

Dear Members,

Your Directors take great pleasure in presenting the 28" Annual Report of INDO THAI SECURITIES LIMITED (the
“Company”) along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31"March, 2022.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Your Company has been offering services to corporate clients, high net worth individuals and retail investors since its
inception. The Company is rendering broking and clearing services in the Capital & Derivatives Segments being a
Member of National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE"), BSE Limited, Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited
(“MSEI"), Multi Commmodity Exchange of India Limited (“MCX") and National Commmodity & Derivatives Exchange Limited
(“NCDEX") and Depository Participant of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL"). Considering our diversified
base of customers and highly talented workforce, we are emerging as a growing Comypany in the field of Securities
Market. Indo Thai Securities Limited is the flagship Company of 'Indo Thai' group, which has its Registered Office at

Indore.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March, 2022 issummarized below:

: continuing operations

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Consolidated

Standalone

(Figures as per IND AS)

a. Total Revenue from Operations 1985.16 2188.19 1975.50 2190.16
b. Other Income 10.05 75.28 43.61 15.28
c. Total Income 1995.20 2263.47 2019.11 2305.44
d. Total Expenditure 803.47 625.56 903.63 687.38
e. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional 1191.73 1637.91 1115.48 1618.06
pitems&tax R
f. Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
g. Profit/(Loss) before tax 191.73 1637.91 1115.48 1618.06
h. Provision for Income Tax : : : :
Current Tax L 19464 1 -112 I 194.65 . -0.82
Deferred Tax -43.22 389.57 -46.99 383.60
" i. Profit/(Loss) for the period from 1040.31 1249.45 967.82 1235.28

j. One time impact on Tax Expenses : : : :
. (current & deferred) due to - - 218,95 : - ¢ 218.95
: change in tax rate : : : :

k. Profit /(Loss) for the period 1040.31 1030.50 967.82 1016.33

|. Other Comprehensive Income 028 13.90 -0.28 13.90

D ANEt Of taX)
m. Total comprehensive Income 1040.03 1044.39 967.54 1030.22
n. Paid up Equity Share Capital 1000 1000 1000 1000

o Eammgs perShare ............................ ]o 40 ........ ..... 1 030 ......... 9 67 ........... 10 18 ..........

Board’s Report & Annexures
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COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

Standalone Performance

The total revenue (including sale of shares) was registered at Rs.1995.20 Lakhs as against Rs. 2263.47 Lakhs in previous
year. The Profit for the year was Rs.1191.73 Lakhs and profit after Tax was Rs.1040.31 Lakhs. The Earning per Share (“EPS”)
was at Rs.10.40 for the financial year 2021-22.

Consolidated Performance

During the financial year under review, on a consolidated basis, the total revenue (including sale of shares) was Rs.
2019.11 Lakhsasagainst Rs. 2305.44 Lakhs in the previousyear. The profit for the year was Rs. 1115.48 Lakhs and that after
Taxwas Rs.967.82 Lakhs. The Earning per Share was at Rs. 9.67 for the financial year 2021-22.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company is of the view that there is no space for stagnancy in this fast-growing economy. Moreover, the Company
deals in securities market, being one of the most fluctuating yet lucrative business sector. Indo Thai Securities Limited
hasalways believed that for the purpose of growth, diversification and expansion are must.

The Companyisfurther exploring various fields to maintain and to escalate itselfin the securities market.
DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 18th May, 2022 has recommended a final dividend @10% i.e.Re.1/-per
Equity Share of face value of Rs.10/- each for the financial year 2021-22, aggregating to Rs. 1 Crore. The dividend payout is
subjecttoapproval of Membersatthe ensuing Annual General Meeting (“ACGM”) of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During theyear under review, noamount was transferred to General Reserve.

SUBSIDIARY/IES AND ASSOCIATE/S

INDO THAI SECURITIES LIMITED

\
Subsidiary Companies Associate Company
|
Femto Green Indo Thai Indo Thai Globe Indo Thai Commaodities Private Limited
Hydrogen Limited Realties Limited Fin (IFSC) Limited

Indo Thai Realties Limited

Incorporated on Ist March, 2013 as a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of Indo Thai Securities Limited, Indo Thai
Realties Limited has paid - up share capital of Rs. 7,97,87,000/- (Rupees Seven Crores Ninety-Seven Lakhs Eighty-Seven
Thousand only). Mr. Parasmal Doshi, Mr.Om Prakash Gauba, Mr. Mayur Rajendrabhai Parikh and Mr. Dhanpal Doshi are
holding office as Directors of the Company and Ms. Bhumika Saxena has resigned from her services as Company
Secretary ofthe Company w.e.f 03rd April,2022.

Board’s Report & Annexures
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Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Limited

Incorporated on 20" February, 2017 Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of Indo Thai Securities Limited, Indo Thai
Globe Fin (IFSC) Limited has a paid - up share capital of Rs.1,25,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Twenty-Five Lakhs only). Mr.
Dhanpal Doshi, Mr. Sarthak Doshi, Mr. Rajendra Bandi and Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni are holding office as the Directors of
the Company.

Femto Green Hydrogen Limited

Incorporated on 23rd December, 2021 Subsidiary Company of Indo Thai Securities Limited, Femto Green Hydrogen
Limited has a paid - up share capital of Rs. 54,50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Four Lakhs and Fifty Thousand only). Mr. Dhanpal
Doshi, Mr. Parasmal Doshi, Mr. Nandan Vinayakrao Kundetkar and Mrs. Shobha SantoshChoudhary are holding office
asthe Directors of the Company.

Indo Thai Commodities Private Limited

An Associate Company of Indo Thai Securities Limited, being incorporated on 21st November, 2003 having paid - up
share capital of Rs. 1,85,80,000/- (Rupees One Crore Eighty-Five Lakhs Eighty Thousand only). Indo Thai Securities
Limited has 40.05% Equity Shareholding in such Associate Company by investing Rs. 42,52,000/- (Rupees Forty-Two
Lakhs Fifty-Two Thousand only). Mr. Parasmal Doshi, Mr. Dhanpal Doshiand Mr. Sarthak Doshi are holding office asthe
Directorsofthe Company.

During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries. The Consolidated Financial Statements
with subsidiaries were prepared as per provisions of Section 129(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 as
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, which have been furnished under Note No. 41 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and forms part of this Annual Report.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including the consolidated
financial statements and related information of the Company and Audited Financial Statements of each of its
subsidiariestogether with the related information, are available on the website of your Company.

The financial performance of Subsidiary Companies & Associate Company as included in the consolidated financial

statements of your Company and is also set out in the prescribed format 'Form No. AOC-1' is appended as “Annexure-A”
tothis Board's Report.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Executive Directors

1 Mr.Parasmal Doshi - (Chairman cum WTD)

2 Mr. Dhanpal Doshi - (Managing Director cum CEO)
3 Mr.Rajendra Bandi - (Whole Time Director)

Independent Directors
1. Mr. Om Prakash Gauba

2 Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni

3. Mrs. Shobha Santosh Choudhary

®

Key Managerial Personnel
1. Mr. Deepak Sharma - (Chief Financial Officer)

2. Mr. Sanjay Kushwah - (Company Secretary cum
Compliance Officer)

Board’s Report & Annexures 10
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In compliance with the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 17(1) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Om Prakash Gauba,
Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni, and Mrs. Shobha Santosh Choudhary were appointed as the Non-Executive Independent
Directorsatthe 25" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 28" September, 2019 to hold office for aterm
of 5 (Five) consecutive years from 20" September, 2019 to 19" September,2024.

Pursuant to clause (iiia) of Rule 8(5) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board is of the opinion that the
Independent Directors appointed in the 25" AGM conform to the required integrity, experience and expertise standards.
Inaccordance with the Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019,
Mr.Om Prakash Gauba, Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni and Mrs. Shobha Santosh Choudhary are exempted from appearing for the
online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the Institute under Section 150(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further Mr. Dhanpal Doshi (Managing Director cum CEQO),Mr. Parasmal Doshi (Whole-Time Director - Finance)and Mr.
Rajendra Bandi (Whole Time Director) were re-appointed at the 26™ AGM held on 30" September, 2020, to hold office for
a term of 3 (Three) consecutive years out of which Mr. Parasmal Doshi and Mr. Rajendra Bandi are liable to retire by
rotation.

Mr. Deepak Sharma was appointed as Chief Financial Officer pursuant to provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act,
2013 and rules made thereunder w.e.f. 9" May, 2014 as defined under Section 2(19) of Companies Act, 2013 and falls under
definition of “Key Managerial Personnel” of the Company pursuant to Section 2(51) of Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunderandin adherence to Regulation
6(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr.
Sanjay Kushwah was appointed as the Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer of the Company in the Board
Meeting held on Monday, 23 July, 2018.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
There have been no changes in Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year
under review.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr. Rajendra Bandi (Whole Time Director) (DIN: 00051441) is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible,
seeks re-appointment at the ensuing AGM. Mr. Rajendra Bandi is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the
CompaniesAct,2013. Board of Directors recommmends hisre-appointment in the best interest of the Company.

The Notice convening forthcoming AGM includes the proposal for re-appointment of aforesaid Director. A brief
resume of the Director proposed to be re-appointed, nature of his experience in specific functions and area and
number of listed companies in which he holds Membership/Chairmanship of Board and Committees, shareholdings
and inter-se relationships with other Directors as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on
General Meetings (SS-2) are provided in the 'Annexure to the Notice of AGM' forming part of the Annual Report.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company as well as with the
nature of industry and business. The details of Familiarization Programme arranged for Independent Directors have
been disclosed on the website of the Company and are available at the following link:
https:/www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Details-of-Familiarization-Programmes_2021-22.pdf

DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of the independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 along with Regulation 16(1)(b) and Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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CODE OF CONDUCT FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has also placed the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors. This Code is a guide to professional
conduct for Independent Directors. Adherence to these standards by Independent Directors and fulfillment of their
responsibilitiesin a professional and faithful manner will promote confidence of the investment community, particularly
minority shareholders, regulatorsand Companiesin theinstitution of Independent Directors.

ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its Commmittees, and of individual Directors pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee after seeking inputs
from all the Directors on the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board
processes, information and functioning, etc. as provided by the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India on 05" January, 2017.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee Memberson
the basis of criteria such asthe composition of committees, effectiveness of commmittee meetings etc.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual Directors on the basis of criteria
suchasthe contribution of the individual Director to the Board and Committee meetings like preparednesson theissues
to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputsin meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 08™ March, 2022, performance of Non-Independent Directors
andthe Board asawhole was evaluated.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Tothe best of knowledge and beliefand according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors
make the following statementsin terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 that :

- in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31* March, 2022, the applicable Accounting Standards
have been followed and there are no material departuresfrom the same;

- the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company ason
31" March, 2022 and of the profits of the Company for the year ended on that date;

- the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

-the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
- the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;and

- the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systemswere adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

6 (Six) meetings of the Board were held on the following datesduring the financial year 2021-22:
i, Monday, 05"April, 2021;

ii. Wednesday, 30" June, 2027;
iii. Friday,13"August, 2021;

iv. Friday, 12" November, 2021;
V. Saturday, 27" November, 2021;
Vi. Friday, 11" February, 2022.

12
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Details of such meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of thisreport.

In regardsto the above stated circularsthe maximum interval between two meetingsis not more than 120 days.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND AUDITOR'S REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s SPAR K & Associates Chartered Accountants
LLP, Indore (Firm Registration No. 005313C/C400311) were appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company at 27th
AGCM held on 29th September, 2021till the conclusion of 32nd AGM.

The Report given by the Auditor on the financial statement of the Company is part of this Annual Report. The Audit
Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Board has
appointed M/s Kaushal Ameta & Co., Company Secretaries, Indore(holding Certificate of Practice bearing No. 9103), to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31" March, 2022 is annexed herewith marked as “Annexure-B"
in'Form No. MR-3' and forms an integral part of this Report. No qualifications, reservations and adverse remarks were
contained inthe Secretarial Audit Report.

Further, pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has received the Secretarial Audit Report from its material subsidiary
i.e.Indo Thai Realties Limited for the financial year ended 31" March, 2022. No qualifications, reservations and adverse
remarks were contained in the Secretarial Audit Report of the material subsidiary

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY THE AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor have not reported any instances of frauds
committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, details of which needs to be mentioned in the Board's Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling within the purview of Section 73 and 74 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and therefore, there was
no principal orinterest outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has framed and adopted a Code of
Conduct (the “Code”). The Code is applicable to the Members of the Board, the Senior Management, Officers and
Employees ofthe Company. The Codeisavailable on the following link:
https:/mww.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/Code-of-Conduct-For-Directors-Senior-Management-Officers-
And-Employees-2.pdf

Board’s Report & Annexures 13
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All the Members of the Board, the Senior Management, Officers and Employees have affirmed compliance to the Code
ason 31" March, 2022. Declaration to this effect, signed by Managing Director cum CEO, forms part of the Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year 2021-22, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is
presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report, and gives detail of overall industry structure,
developments performance and state of affairs of the Company's operationsduring the year.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, some of
which are outlined below:

Your Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Accounting Standards prescribed in the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, that continue to apply under Section 133 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from
timetotime.

Your Company has always believed that a system of strict internal control, including suitable monitoring procedures and
transparency, is an important factor in the success and growth of any organization. It also ensures that financial and
otherrecordsarereliable for preparing financial statements.

Internal Audit Reports and significant audit observations are brought to the attention of the Audit Committee of the
Company. The internal controls existing in the Company are considered to be adequate vis-a-vis the business
requirements.

Your Company ensures adequacy, commensurate with its current size and business, to ensure operational efficiency,
protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance of laws and
regulations. It is supported by the internal audit process and will be enlarged to be adequate with the growth in the
business activity.

For more details on internal financial control system and their adequacy kindly refer Management Discussion and
Analysis Report.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Internal Audit for the financial year 2021-22 was conducted by M/s BDMV & Co., Chartered Accountants, Indore. The idea
behind conducting Internal Audit is to examine that the Company is carrying out its operations effectively and
performing the processes, procedures and functions as per the prescribed norms. The Internal Auditor reviewed the
adequacy and efficiency of the key internal controls guided by the Audit Committee.

The Company has re-appointed M/s BDMV & Co., Chartered Accountants, Indore in the Board Meeting held on 18th May,
2022 in accordance with the circulars issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India for conducting an Internal Audit
of Stock Broking and Depository Participant Operations, Regulatory Compliance Audit for the financial year 2022-23. The
purpose of this Internal Auditisto examine that the processes and procedures followed and the operations carried out by
the Company meet with the requirements prescribed by SEBl and Stock Exchange(s) for Depository Participant/Trading
Members/Clearing Members.

LISTING & DEPOSITORY FEE

The Company has paid Annual Listing Fee for the financial year 2022-23 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited
according tothe prescribed norms &regulations.

The company shall pay Annual Listing Fee to BSE for the financial year 2022-23 on receipt of invoice from the same.

Company has also paid Annual Custody Fee to National Securities Depository Limited and Issuer Fee to Central
Depository Services (India) Limited for the financial year 2022-23.
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ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return as on 31 March, 2022 is
available on the Company's website and may be accessed at: https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-
content/uploads/2022/09/Form-MGT-7_2021-22.pdf

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
andrules madethereunderare shown under Note No.6 &7 in the notes to the Financial Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no materially significant related party transactions which fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 i.e. transactions of material nature, with its promoters, directors or senior management or their
relatives etc., that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions entered with
related parties, as defined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, during the financial year 2021-22
were mainlyinthe ordinary course of businessand onanarm'slength basis.

Prior approval of the Audit Committee is obtained by the Company before entering into any related party transaction as
per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013, approval of the Board of Directors is also obtained for entering into related party transactions by the Company. A
quarterly update is also given to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on the Related Party Transactions
undertaken by the Company for their review and consideration.

During the year, your Company has not entered into any material contract, arrangement or transaction with related
parties, as defined under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and Dealing with Related Party Transactions of
the Company. The details with respect to the related party transactions are mentioned in the notes to the audited
(standalone) financial statements.

There were no transactions during the year under review, that are required to be reported in Form AOC-2 and such Form
AOC-2isgivenas“Annexure-C"in this Board Report.

The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and Dealing with Related Party Transactions, as approved by the
Board, isavailable onthe Company's website and may be accessed at:

https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions_30.06.2021.pdf

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an integral part of business and your Company is commmitted to managing the risks in a proactive and efficient
manner. Your Company periodically assesses risks in the internal and external environment along with the cost of
treatingrisksand incorporatesrisk treatment plansinitsstrategy, business and operational plans.

The Company's operations are prone to general risks associated with economic conditions, change in Government
regulations, tax regimes, other statutes, financial risks and capital market fluctuations.

Your Company has taken Brokers Indemnity Insurance Policy for Exchange(s) in order to cover the risk arising from
operations. Additionally, the assets of the Company have also been insured under different kinds of separate policies i.e.
Standard Fire and Special Perils Policy, Electronic Equipment Insurance, Vehicle Insurance Policy. Company has also
taken Keyman Insurance Policy(ies) in order to avoid large negative impact on the Company's operations due to sudden
loss of Keyman of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and monitor
the risk management plan for the Company. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan and
ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit Commmittee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. The
major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continual basis. Further risk factors are set out in Management Discussion and Analysis Report which is forming part of
this Annual Report.
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For the development and implementation of risk plan the Board has framed a Risk Management Policy which may be
accessed onthe Company's website:
https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/Risk-Management-Policy_20.09.2018.pdf

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”) & CSR INITIATIVES

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee under the Chairmanship of Mr. Parasmal
Doshi, Whole Time Director of the Company, in order to conduct and review Corporate Social Responsibility activitiesina
prudent manner.

The briefoutline of the Corporate Social Responsibility policy of the Company, initiatives undertaken by the Company on
CSR activities during the year and details regarding the CSR Committee are set out in “Annexure-D"” of this report as
“Annual Report on CSR Activities”.

Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at the link:

https://Wwww.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

As anintegral part of society, your Company considers social responsibility asan integral part of its business activitiesand
endeavor to utilize allocable CSR budget for the benefit of society. The CSR Committee confirms that the
implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company. For a
detailed report on CSR please refer to “Annexure - D" to this board report.

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Board has adopted Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The policy
provides for a framework and process whereby concerns can be raised by its Employees and Directors to the
management about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Code of conduct or legal or
regulatory requirements incorrect or misrepresentation of any financial statements and have been outlined in
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report. The policy provides for adequate safeguards
againstvictimization of employees and Directors of the Company.

The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at the link:
https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Vigil-Mechanism-Policy_06.05.2017.pdf

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance of Regulation 19 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has
formulated the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees of the
Company in order to pay equitable remuneration to Directors, KMPs and other Employees of the Company. The
composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been given under Corporate Governance Report
forming part of this Annual Report and 'Policy on Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other
Employees' has been stated in “Annexure-E” set out to be part of Board's Report.

The policy may also be accessed on the Company's website at the link:

https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Policy-of-Remuneration-for-Directors-KMP-and-other-
employees 21.08.2019.pdf
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POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS
Your Company has formulated a policy on Preservation of Documents and Records in accordance with Regulation 9 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
Policy ensures that the Company complies with the applicable document retention laws, preservation of various
statutory documents and also lays down minimum retention period for the documents and records in respect of which
no retention period has been specified by any law/ rule/ regulation. The Policy also provides for the authority under which
the disposal/destruction of documents and records after their minimum retention period can be carried out.

Thesaid policy is available on the website of the Company at the link:

https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Policy-for-Preservation-of-Docs.pdf

POLICY ON DISCLOSURE OF MATERIAL EVENTS AND INFORMATION

Pursuant to Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Policy on Determination of Materiality has been adopted by the Board to
determine the events and information which are material in nature and are required to be disclosed to the concerned
Stock Exchanges.

The said policyisavailable on the website of the Company at the link:

http://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-for-Determination-of-Materiality_30.06.2021.pdf

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY POLICY
In accordance with the requirements of Regulation 16(1)(c) and Regulation 24 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a Policy for
Determining Material Subsidiaries.

The same hasbeen hosted on the website of the Company atthelink:

https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Policy-for-Material-Subsidiary_15.05.2019.pdf

CODE FOR PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING
Your Company has in place a Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading, under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, which lays down the process of trading in securities of the Company by
the employees, designated persons and connected persons and to regulate, monitor and report trading by such
employees and connected persons of the Company either on his/her own behalf or on behalf of any other person, on the
basis of unpublished price sensitive information. The Company reviews the policy on need basis.

The Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading is available on the website of the Company at the link:

https://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Code-for-Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading.pdf

CODE OF PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES FOR FAIR DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED
PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Pursuant to Regulation 8(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
Company has a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, with a
view to lay down practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information that could
impact price discovery in market forits securities.

The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information is available on the
website of the Company atthelink:

https://ww.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Code-of-Practices-and-Procedures-for-Fair-Disclosure-of-
UPSI_17.01.2019.pdf
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ARCHIVAL POLICY

The Company hasformulated a policy for archival of its records under Regulation 9 of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The policy deals with the retention and
archival of corporate records of the Company and all its subsidiaries. The policy provides guidelines for archiving of
corporate recordsand documents as statutorily required by the Company.

The Archival Policy is available on the website of the Company at the link:

https:/www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Archival-Policy_07112015.pdf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

Your Company has zerotolerance policy in case of sexual harassment at workplace and iscommitted to provide a healthy
environment to each and every employee of the Company. The Company has in place 'Policy against Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace' in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as the “said Act”) and rules made there under. As per the
provisions of Section 4 of the said Act, the Board of Directors has constituted the Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC")
at the Registered Office and at all the Regional Offices of the Company to deal with the complaints received by the
Company pertaining to gender discrimination and sexual harassmentat workplace.

During the year under review, there were no such incidents in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your Company has also organized workshops and awareness programmes at regular intervals for sensitizing the
employees with the provisions of the Act and orientation programmes for the Members of the ICC in the manner

prescribedinthesaid Act.

The updated policy against Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace is available on the website of the Company at
thelink:

http://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Policy-Against-Sexual-Harrasment_12.02.2021.pdf

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your Company has formed the Audit
Committee under the Chairmanship of Mr. Om Prakash Gauba. The composition of Audit Committee has been stated
under Corporate Governance Reportand formsanintegral part of report.

All recoommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. The role of the Committee is to
provide oversight of the financial reporting process, the audit process, the system of internal controls and compliance
with laws. All possible measures are taken by the Committee to ensure the objectivity and independence of
Independent Auditors.

HUMAN RESOURCE

Attracting, enabling and retaining talent have been the cornerstone of the Human Resource function and the results
underscore the important role that human capital plays in critical strategic activities such as growth. A robust Talent
Acquisition system enables the Company to balance unpredictable business demands with a predictable resource
supply through organicandinorganic growth.

Your Company firmly believes that employees are the most valuable assets and key players of business success and
sustained growth. Only with their participation we manage to achieve a healthy work culture, transparency in working,
fair business practices and passion for efficiency. Thus, development of human resources at all levels is taken on priority
to upgrade knowledge and skills of employees and sensitize them towards productivity, quality, cost reduction, safety
and environment protection. The Company's ultimate objective is to create a strong and consistent team of employees
wherein each link in the resource chain is as strong as the other. In view of this, various employee benefits, recreational
andteam building programs are conducted to enhance employee skills, motivation as also to foster team spirit.
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Your Company also conducts in-house training programs to develop leadership as well as functional capabilities in order
to meet future talent requirements and to enhance business operations. Industrial relations were cordial throughout
the year. To ensure that the employees are at their productive best, we continue to work on simplifying the internal
processes through collaborative efforts with our workforce.

MATERIAL CHANGES
Material Changes during the financial year 2021-22 :

During the year the company entered into a new line of business by incorporating a Subsidiary named Femto Green
Hydrogen Limited. The Company is in the process of research & development of devices and electronic chips which
can be usedinreducing pollution.

Material Changes after the end of financial year 2021-22 :
There were no material changes after the end of financial year 2021-22.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median of employees' remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 forms part of the Board's Report under “Annexure-F"” as Median Remuneration.

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the list of the top 10 employees in terms of remuneration forms part
ofthe Board's Report under “Annexure-F".

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company's Corporate Governance Practices are a reflection of the value system encompassing culture, policies and
relationships with its stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are key to Corporate Governance Practices to ensure that
the Company gain and retain the trust of its stakeholders at all times. Your Company is committed for highest standard
of Corporate Governance in adherence of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, a Report
on Corporate Governance forms an integral part of this annual report. A 'Certificate' from M/s Kaushal Ameta & Co,,
Practicing Company Secretary, confirming compliance by the Company of the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is also annexed as “Annexure-G” to this Board's Report.

The details of Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation are made part in the Annexure to Notice of 28" AGM under
Brief Profile of Directors seeking Re-Appointment as required under Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Being a Broking Company, we are not involved in any industrial or manufacturing activities and therefore, the
Company's activities involve very low energy consumption and have no particulars to report regarding conservation of
energy and technology absorption. However, efforts are made to further reduce energy consumption.

There hasbeennoearningsand outgo in foreign exchange during the financial year 2021-22.

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed
herewith and forms part of this Report as “Annexure-H".
SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY THE REGULATORS/ COURTS/ TRIBUNAL

During the financial year 2021-22, there were no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunalswhich affect the going concern status of the Company and its operationsin future.
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Otherdisclosuresrelated to financial year 2021-22:

A. Your Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme & Employee Stock Purchase Scheme for its
Employees/Directors.

B. Your Company has notissued shares with differential rights asto dividend, voting or otherwise.

C. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Director(s) of the Company received any remuneration or
commission from any of the Subsidiaries of your Company.

D. The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1and SS-2, relating to 'Meetings of Board of Directors' and 'General

Meetings' respectively, have been duly complied by your Company.

E. Your company has not made any application nor any proceeding is pending under insolvency and bankruptcy
code2016.
F. Yourcompany has not obtained One time settlementfrom the Bank or Financial Institution

GREEN INITIATIVE

Electronic copies of the Annual Report 2021-22 and the Notice of 28" AGM are sent to all members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/depository participants(s). For members who have not registered their email
addresses, were provided an opportunity to register the same. We strongly promote the purpose and intention behind
Green Initiative, and accordingly the required processes and efforts have been made to encourage the shareholders to
get their email addresses registered, so that Annual Reports, Notices and all other concerned information can be
received by them.

APPRECIATIONS & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude to Shareholders for the confidence reposed by them and thank all
the Clients, Dealers, and other business associates for their contribution to your Company's growth. The Directors also
wish to express their appreciation for the efficient and loyal services rendered by each and every employee, without
whose whole-hearted efforts, the overall satisfactory performance would not have been possible.

Your Board expresses its gratitude for the assistance and co-operation extended by SEBI, BSE, NSE, MSEI, CDSL, NSDL,
MCX, NCDEX, RBI, MCA, Central Government and Government of various States and other Regulatory Authorities
including Local Governing Bodies. Your Board appreciates the precious support provided by the Auditors, Lawyers and
Consultants. The Company will make every effort to meet the aspirations of its Shareholders.

Place: Indore By order of the Board of Directors
Date: 12" August, 2022 Indo Thai Securities Limited

Parasmal Doshi
(Chairman cum Whole-time Director)
DIN: 00051460
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List of Annexure to Board's Report

Annexure No. Description

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of
Annexure - A P . ; . \
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies as 'Form No. AOC-1.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the
Annexure - C company with related parties as 'Form No. AOC-2".

Policy on Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other
Annexure - E . Employees.

Disclosure in Board's Report as per provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies
Annexure - F Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1), 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

...............................................................................................................................................

Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance by the
Annexure - G . Company of the conditions of Corporate Governance.

Particulars Regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Annexure - H . Exchange Earnings and Outgo.
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Annexure-A
Form No. AOC -1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies.
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

(Part-A) : Statement relating to Subsidiary Companies

Amountin R
Details

Particulars Details Details
1 | Name of subsidiaries INDO THAI REALTIES INDO THAI GLOBE FIN (IFSC) | FEMTO GREEN HYDROGEN
LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED

5 Reporting period for the subsidiaries concerned, if 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22

different from the holding company's reporting period [ Same as Holding Company | Same as Holding Company | Same as Holding Company

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
3 |date of the relevant Financial Year in the case of foreign Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

subsidiaries
4 | Share capital 7,97,87,000 1,25,00,000 54,50,000
5 | Reserves & surplus 44,95,000 4,95,000 -58,28,000
6 |Total Assets 10,09,14,000 1,30,34,000 2,12,90,000
7 | Total Liabilities 1,66,30,000 39,000 2,16,68,000
8 | Investments - - -
9 |Turnover - 4,67,000 -
10 | Profit Before Taxation -21,40,000 2,18,000 -58,12,000
T | Provision for Taxation -4,18,000 26,000 16,000
12 | Profit After Taxation -17,22,000 1,92,000 -58,28,000

13 [Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil
14 | % of shareholding 100% 100% 57%
Note 1: Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Limited.
Note 2: Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NIL

(Part-B) : Statement related to Associate Company

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

S.No. Name of Associate Company INDO THAI COMMODITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 3lst March, 2022
2 Shares of Associate held by the Company on
theyear end
Number of shares held 7,44,100
Amount of Investment Rs. 42,52,000
Extent of Holding % 40.05%
3 Pescription of how there s significant There is significant influence due to Percentage(%) of Capital
influence
4 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not |Accounts have been consolidated, therefore, reporting
consolidated under this clause is not applicable
5 Networth attributable to Shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet e Rs. 15687621
6 Profit/Loss for the year
i.) Considered in Consolidation Rs.109158.28
ii.) Not Considered in Consolidation Nil

Note 1: Names of associates which are yet to commence operations - NIL
Note 2: Names of associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NIL
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Indo Thai
Securities Limited

For SP AR K & Associates Chartered
Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005313C/ C400311
Parasmal Doshi
Chairman cum Whole Time
Director
DIN: 00051460

Dhanpal Doshi
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 00700492
Chandresh Singhvi

Partner
Membership.No: 436593
12th August, 2022 Sanjay Kushwah
Company Secretary & Compliance

Officer

Deepak Sharma

Chief Financial Officer
Indore
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Annexure- B
Secretarial Audit Report
(For the financial year ended 31" March, 2022)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended]
To,
The Members
INDO THAISECURITIES LIMITED
Capital Tower, 2" Floor,
Plot Nos.169A-171, PU-4, Scheme No.-54,
Indore, Madhya Pradesh —452010.

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Indo Thai Securities Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-process and compliance-
mechanismin placetothe extent,inthe mannerandsubjecttothe reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
forthe financial year ended on 31" March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

I. CompaniesAct, 2013 (the 'Act') and the Rules made thereunder;

Il.Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder;

IIl. Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Applicable to the

extent of Overseas Direct Investment);

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company:-

a. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2017;

b. Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

C. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not

applicable tothe Companyduring the year);

d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
(Notapplicabletothe Company during theyear);

e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

f. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not
applicabletothe Companyduring theyear);

g. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to
the Companyduring theyear);
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h. Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable tothe
Company during theyear);

i The Company hascomplied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into

with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited,;
J- Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Stock Brokers) Regulations, 1992;

k. Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,2018;and

I Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015.
VI.Other specifically applicable laws to the Company:

Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002;

The Employee Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

Payment of Gratuity Act,1972;

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

©oo0 Do

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
Secretarial Standardsissued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

.The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directorsthat took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance withthe provisions of the
Act. °

Adequate notice was given to all the Directors, to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven clear days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

All the decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried out unanimously as
recorded inthe minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that:
® There are adequate systems and process in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitorand ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
There were no such specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, etc.,
having a major bearing onthe Company's affairs.

Place: Indore For Kaushal Ameta & Co.

Date: 6" August, 2022

Kaushal Ameta (Proprietor)
Practicing Company
Secretary

Mem. No.: F-8144, CP No.-9103
UDIN : FO08144D000752569

Thisreportisto beread with Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report which formsan integral part of thisreport.
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report

To,

The Members

INDO THAI SECURITIES LIMITED
Capital Tower, 2" Floor,

Plot Nos.169A-171, PU-4, Scheme No.-54,
Indore, Madhya Pradesh - 452010

My Secretarial Report of even dateisto beread along with thisletter.
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility

istoexpressan opinion on these Secretarial records based on the performed audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basisto ensure that
correct factswere reflected in secretarial records.

3. | believe thatthe processesand practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. | have not
verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4, Whereverrequired, | have obtained the Management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules
andregulationsand happening of eventsetc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standardsis the
responsibility of management.

6. The Secretarial Audit Reportis neitheran assurance astothe future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Indore For Kaushal Ameta & Co.
Date: 6" August, 2022

Kaushal Ameta (Proprietor)
Practicing Company Secretary
Mem. No.: F-8144, CP No.-9103
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Annexure-C
Form No. AOC -2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties

referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

m PARTICULARS DETAILS

1. - Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship. :
""" 2. ! Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions.
""" 3. Duration of contracts/arrangements/transactions. .
""" 4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or ,
... transactionsincluding the value ifany. NiL
5. - Justification for entering into such contracts or

. arrangements or tra nsactions.

. Date on which the special resolution was passed in
. General Meeting as required under first proviso
. to section 188.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:

m PARTICULARS DETAILS

1. - Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship. :
2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions.
3. . Duration of contracts/arrangements/transactions.  :
Do R TR R PREPEE : NI
L4 - Salient terms of the contracts or arrangementsor  :
: . transactions including the value, if any. :
5 Date(s) of approval by the Board.
6 Amount paid as advances, if any.
Place: Indore By order of the Board of Directors
Date: 12" August, 2022 Indo Thai Securities Limited

Parasmal Doshi
(Chairman cum Whole-time Director)
DIN: 00051460
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Annexure-D

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
For the Financial Year 2021-22

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, as amended.]

1. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is strongly connected with the principles of sustainability. An organization should
make decisions based not only on economic factors, but also on the social and environmental consequences. Therefore,
it is the core corporate responsibility of Indo Thai Securities Limited (the “Company”) to practice its corporate values
through its commitment to grow in a socially and environmentally responsible way, while meeting the interests of its
Stakeholders.

Indo Thai Securities Limited, since its inception, recognizes that its business activities have a wide impact on the society
in which it operates, and therefore an effective practice is required giving due consideration to the interests of its
Stakeholders. The Company endeavors to make Corporate Social Responsibility a key business process for sustainable
development. The Company is responsible to continuously enhance Shareholders' wealth; it is also committed to its
other stakeholdersto conductits businessin an accountable manner that creates a sustained positive impact on society.
Our Company iscommitted towards aligning with nature;and has adopted eco-friendly practices.

SINCERITY

i

ETHICS N RESPONSIBILITY
SUSTAINABILITY CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY MARKET
n -
[
LONG TERM RESOURCES

Our Company aims to provide a dedicated approach to community development in the areas of improving healthcare
infrastructure, supporting primary education, rehabilitating the destitute, abandoned women and children, removing
malnutrition, rural development, and contribute to the sustainable development of society and environment, and to
make our planet a better place for future generations.

The Company supports health, wellness, water, sanitation and hygiene needs of commmunities, especially those that are
marginalized. Particularly for this year, our CSR activities includes supporting COVID-19 relief measures by contributing
towards helping hospitals, destitute, daily wage workers and underprivileged sections of the society by distributing

them food packages.
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2.Composition of CSR Committee:
The CSR Committee of a Company is responsible for overseeing the execution of its CSR Policy. The CSR Committee of
the Company consists of the following Members:

Name of Director Designation /Nature Number of meetings Number of meetings of
of Directorship of CSR Committee CSR Commiittee

held during the year attended during the year
1 ' Mr. Parasmal Doshi * Chairman of the Company & CSR Committee 2 2
2 Mr. Dhanpal Doshi MD & CEO, member CSR Committee 2 2
ks * Mr. Rajendra Bandi * Whole Time Director, member of CSR 5 5

e oMt ee e
4 Mr. Om Prakash Gauba  : Non Executive Independent Director, 5 5

: member of CSR Committee

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company:

® \Web-Linkof composition ofthe CSR Committee -
http:/www.indothai.co.in/investor-overview/

® Web-Link of CSR Policy -
http://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

® \Web-Link of CSR projects approved by Board —
The amount of Rs. 160516 required to be spent by the Company in the Financial Year 2021-22 has already been spentason
31" March 2022. Therefore there is no need of approval of CSR Projects by the Board.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):

Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

Financial Year | Amount available for set-off Amount required to be

from preceding financial setoff for the financial
years (in Rs.) year, if any (in Rs.)

- ] Nil Nil

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 8,025,802

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) : Rs.160,516
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, ifany: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) : Rs. 160,516

8. (a) CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year:
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Amount Unspent (Rs.)

Total Amount

spent for the

Financial Year
(Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
Section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VIl as per proviso to
Section 135(5)

Name of the
Fund

Date of Transfer Amount | Date of Transfer

160,516* Nil NA NA Nil NA

*Note:: Forthe year2021-22 the CSR obligation was Rs.160,516 . Keeping in view the impact of COVID-19 situation created

by third wave in the month of April 2022 and May 2022 the Company considered its responsibility towards the society and
spent Rs. 8,13,006 in excess of actual CSR Obligation.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Amount
transferred to
Unspent CSR
Account for the
project as per
Section 135(6) (in
Rs.)

Amount
allocated

Mode of
Implement
ERCLE
Direct
(Yes/No)

Mode of
Implementation -
Through
Implementing
Agency

Item from the
list of activities
in Schedule ViI

to the Act

Amount spent in
the current
financial Year

Location of the
project

Local area
(Yes/No)

Project
Duration

CSR
Registration
No.

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other that ongoing projects for the financial year

Item from the

list of activitie

in Schedule VI
to the act

Name of the Project

Facilitating COVID-19 relief
efforts, providing essential
medical equipment and

1 infrastructure to various hospit
and frontline workers, supportif
daily livelihood requirements off
the poor and needy

(1), (xii)

Yes

Location of th
project

Indore

Amount

the

Project
(in Rs.)

1,60,516

Mode of
Mode of Implementation -
Through Implementing
Agency

tation -
Direct
(Yes/No)

CSR
Registration
No.

Shankardayal
Vijayvargiya
Parmarthik

Trust

Yes NA
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d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
f) Totalamount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs.160,516

g) Excess amount for set off, ifany :

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as

(i) . 1,60,516
per Section 135(5)

(i) Total amount spent for the financial year 1,60,516

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NA

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
(iv) programmes or activities of the previous financial Nil
years, if any

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial

years [(iii)-(iv)]

Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Amount
remaining to
be spentin
in the reporting succeeding

Financial Year ST financial
Name Of Date Of years (Rs. in

the Fund (Rs.in transfer
Lakhs) Lakhs)

Amount Amount transferred to any fund

transferred to specified under Schedule VIl as

Preceding Unspent CSR Amount spent per Section 135(6), if any

Financial Year | Account under
Section 135 (6)
(Rs. in Lakhs)

1 2021-22 NA 1,60,516 NA Nil |

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Amount
Total spent on the
Financial Yearin amount projectin

Cumulative | Status of
amount spent
at the end of | project -
reporting
Financial
Year (in Rs.)

Project | Name of the which the Project | allocated the
Project project was duration| forthe reporting
commenced project Financial
(inRs.) Year (in
Rs)

! Nil !

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spentinthe financial year

(asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : Nil

(b)Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

( c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their
address etc.: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset): Not Applicable
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11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section
135(5) : Not Applicable

CSR Responsibility Statement:
The CSR Committee hereby affirmsthat:

® The company has duly formulated a CSR Policy Framework which includes formulation ofa CSR Theme, CSR budget &
roles & responsibilities of the Committee as well as the various internal committees formed for implementation of the
CSR Policy;

® The Company hasconstituted a mechanism to monitorand report onthe progress of the CSR programs;

® The activities undertaken by the Company as well as the implementation and monitoring mechanisms are in
compliance with its CSR objectivesand CSR Policy.

For Indo Thai Securities Limited

Place:Indore Parasmal Doshi Dhanpal Doshi
Date: 12" August, 2022 (Chairman of CSR Committee) (Managing Director cum CEO)
DIN: 00051460 DIN: 00700492
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POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
1 INTRODUCTION:

Indo Thai Securities Limited (“the Company”) recognizes the importance of attracting, retaining and motivating
personnel of high calibre and talent for the purpose of ensuring efficiency and high standard in the conduct of its affairs
and achievement of its goals besides securing the confidence of the shareholders in the sound management of the
Company.

The provision of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) and rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and other applicable provisions of the Act and
Regulation 19 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, makes it mandatory for the Board of Directors of every listed company to constitute a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

In pursuance of the Company's policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable
remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees of the Company and to harmonize the
aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (hereinafter referred to as the Committee) has formulated the policy for remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMPs), Senior Management and other Employees of Indo Thai Securities Limited, in accordance
with the requirements of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Part D of Schedule Il of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

2. DEFINITIONS:

“Act” meansthe Companies Act,2013and Rulesframed thereunder,asamended from timetotime.

“Board"” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Company” means“Indo Thai Securities Limited.”

“Directors” means Directors of the Company.

“Independent Director” meansa Director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means as may be defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

As per section 2(51) “key managerial personnel”,in relation toa Company, means—
i. the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

ii. the Company Secretary;

iii. the Whole-time Director;

iv. the Chief Financial Officer;

V. such other officer,not more than one level below the directors whoisin whole time employment; designated as
key managerial personnel by the Board;and

Vi. such other officeras may be prescribed.

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors of the Company,
constituted inaccordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

“Policy or This Policy” means, “Policy for Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees”.

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and
includes perquisitesasdefined under the Income-tax Act,1961.
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“Senior Management” shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members of its core management
team excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below the
[“chief executive officer/managing director/whole time director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in
casetheyare not part of the board) and shall specifically include company secretary and chieffinancial officer.]

“Other employees” means, all the employeesother thanthe Directors, KMPs and the Senior Management Personnel.

3. REMUNERATION TO THE DIRECTORS:

The Company strives to provide fair compensation to Directors, taking into consideration industry benchmarks,
Company's performance vis-a-vis the industry, responsibilities shouldered, performance/track record, macroeconomic
review on remuneration packages of heads of other organizations.

The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company shall at all times be determined, in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

4. APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AND WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR:

The terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration payable to the Managing Director and Whole-time
Director(s) shall be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board for its approval which
shall be subject to approval by Shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company and by the Central
Government in case such appointment is at variance to the conditions specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013. Approval of the Central Government is not necessary if the appointment is made in accordance with the conditions
specifiedin Schedule Vtothe Act.

Interms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Company may appoint a person as its Managing Director or Whole-
time Director for aterm not exceeding 5 (five) yearsata time.

The executive directors may be paid remuneration either by way of a monthly payment or at a specified percentage of
the net profitsof the Company or partly by one way and partly by the other.

The break-up of the pay scale, performmance bonus and quantum of perquisites including, employer's contribution to
Provident Fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee and shall be within the overall remuneration approved by the Shareholders and
Central Government, wherever required.

While recommending the remuneration payable to the Managing Director/ Whole-time Director(s), the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee shall,inter alia, have regard to the following matters:

) Financialand operating performance of the Company
° Relationship between remuneration and performance
) Industry/sector trends for the remuneration paid to executive directors

Annual Increments to the Managing Director/ Whole Time Director(s) shall be within the slabs approved by the
shareholders. Increments shall be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at times it desires to do so
but preferably onanannual basis.

5. INSURANCE PREMIUM AS PART OF REMUNERATION:

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-time Director, Manager, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for indemnifying any of them against any liability in
respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in relation
to the company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any
such personnel.

However, if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the
remuneration.

6. REMUNERATION TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of

® Sittingfeesfor participationinthe Board and other meetings;

® Reimbursementofexpenses for participationinthe Boardand other meetings;

® Commissionasapproved by the shareholdersofthe Company.
Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options.
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board may decide the sitting fee
payable to Independent Directors, but the amount of such sitting fees shall not exceed the maximum limit permissible
underthe Companies Act, 2013.
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7. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS IN OTHER CAPACITY:

The remuneration payable to the directors including Managing Director or Whole-time Director or Manager shall be
inclusive of the remuneration payable for the services rendered by him/her in any other capacity except the following:

a) theservicesrendered are of a professional nature; and

b) In the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Director possesses the requisite
qualification for the practice of the profession.

8. EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS:

As members of the Board, the performance of the individual Directors as well as the performance of the entire Board and
its Committeesis required to be formally evaluated annually.

Section 178(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 also mandates the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to carry out
evaluation of every director's performance.

In developing the methodology to be used for evaluation on the basis of best standards and methods meeting
international parameters, the Board / Committee may take the advice of an independent professional consultant.

9. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION OF THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER THAN MANAGING
DIRECTOR/ WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS), KEY-EXECUTIVES AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

The executive management of a Company is responsible for the day to day management of the Company. The
CompaniesAct,2013 has used the term “Key Managerial Personnel” to define the executive management.

The Key Managerial Personnel's are the point of first contact between the Company and its stakeholders. While the
Board of Directors are responsible for providing the oversight, it is the Key Managerial Personnel and the Senior
Managementwho are responsible for not just laying down the strategiesaswell asitsimplementation.

The CompaniesAct, 2013 has for the first time recognized the concept of Key Managerial Personnel.

Among the Key Managerial Personnel's, the remuneration of the CEO or the Managing Director and the Whole-time
Director(s), shall be governed by the Section on Remuneration of the Directors of this Policy dealing with “Remuneration
of Managing Director and Whole-time- Director”.

Apart from the Directors, the remuneration of all the other Key Managerial Personnel's such as the Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary or any other officer that may be prescribed under the statute from time to time; and “Senior
Management” of the Company defined in the Regulation 16(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, shall be determined for the Key Managerial Personnel/s
and Senior Management of the Company in consultation with the Managing Director and/ or the Whole-time Director
(Finance).

The remuneration determined for all the above said senior personnel shall be in line with the Company's philosophy to
provide fair compensation to Key-Executive Officers based on their performance and contribution to the Company and
to provide incentives that attract and retain key executives, instill a long-term commitment to the Company, and
develop a pride and sense of Company ownership,allina manner consistent with shareholder interests.

The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer's contribution to Provident Fund, pension
scheme, medical expenses etc. shall be decided for the Company's Key Managerial Personnel/s.

Decisions on Annual Increments of the Senior Personnel shall be decided by the Human Resources Department in
consultation with the Managing Director and/or the Whole-time Director (Finance) of the Company.

10. REMUNERATION OF OTHER EMPLOYEES:

Apart from the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management, the remuneration for rest of the employees is determined on
the basis of the role and position of the individual employee including professional experience, responsibility, job
complexity and local market conditions.

The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate and reasonable compensation to
the staff. The Key Managerial Personnel/s shall ensure that the level of remuneration motivates and rewards high
performers,who perform according to set expectationsforthe individual in question.

The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances, perquisites etc. may be combined to ensure an
appropriate and balanced remuneration package.

The annual increments to the remuneration paid to the employees shall be determined based on the annual appraisal
carried out by the Head of Departments of various departments.

Decisiononannualincrementsshall be made onthe basisofthisannual appraisal.

1. REVIEW AND AMENDMENT:

Any or all the provisions of this Policy would be subject to the revision/ amendment in the Companies Act, 2013, related
rules and regulations, guidelines and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, on the subject as may be notified from time to time. Any such amendment shall
automatically have the effect of amending this Policy without the need of any approval by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and/ or the Board of Directors.
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Annexure-F
Disclosure in Board’s Report as per provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Requirements

Disclosure

1 Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median[Bl\El X #p][ =Y 1] ¢ Category
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the|Dhanpal Doshi Managing Director cum CEO 9.59
financial year: Parasmal Doshi Whole-time Director 10.10
Rajendra Bandi Whole-time Director 1.78
2 Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary
or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2021-22 are as follows:
Name of Director 2021-22 (in Rs.) 2020-21 (in Rs.) Increase (%)
Dhanpal Doshi (Managing Director cum CEQO) 2400000 1200000 100.00
Parasmal Doshi (Whole-time Director) 2526000 1452000 73.97
Rajendra Bandi (Whole-time Director) 445200 290400 53.31
Deepak Sharma (Chief Financial Officer) 385994 348900 10.63
Sanjay Kushwah (Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer) 451410 422100 6.94
Total 6208604 3713400 67.19
3 Percentage increase in the median remuneration of
employees in the financial year 2021-22
Particulars 2021-22 (in Rs.) 2020-21 (in Rs.) Increase (%)
Median Remuneration of all employees per annum 250135 237562 5.29
4 Number of permanent employees on the role of Company: 44 49 -10.20
5 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of|Average percentile decrease in the salaries of employees other than
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last|the Managerial Personnel was 0.62% whereas the increase in
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase|remuneration of Managerial Personnel was 67.19%.
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and|The remuneration of the Managing Director cum CEO is decided by
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for[the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on the basis off
increase in the managerial remuneration: individual performance and industry trends.
While deciding the remuneration, the Committee also considers
various facts such as Director's participation in the Board Meeting,
time spent in carrying out other duties, roles, functions and
responsibilities.
No exceptional circumstances arose leading to increase in the
managerial remuneration during the financial year 2021-22.
6 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration |Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and
policy of the Company: Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed
that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management is as per the Remuneration
Policy of your Company during the year.
7 Disclosure pursuant to Section 197 (14) of the Companies Act, [No commission was paid by Company to Mr. Dhanpal Doshi
2013: (Managing Director cum CEQ)
NOTE:

1 The Non-Executive Independent Directors are paid only sitting fee for attending the Board and Committee Meetings of the Company.
They are not entitiled to receive any other remuneration. Details are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

In computation of median remuneration, provident fund is not included.
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Il Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

. Last employment .
Remuneration % of Equity ) 5
Name of . 5 . Date of held by the Relation with
. . received Nature of Qualifications and shares held )
the Designation . . Commencement Age employee before any Director of
— (Amountin Employment Experience S . e ason G

mployee of Employmen joinin e ompan

ploy Rs)) ploy Joining 31.03.2022 pany

Company

Chairman Chartered Accountant
Parasma d MBA havi 34 Brother of Mr.
1 najeum 2526000 | Contractual |2" aVING % 51102010 | 65Vrs. - 166 |Dhanpal
| Doshi  |Whole Years of experience in Doshi
Time Securities Market.
X Chartered Accountant
Managing R Brother of Mr.
Dhanpal| . and MBA, having 29
2 ) Director 2400000 | Contractual . ) 19.01.1995 57 Yrs. - 1271 Parasmal
Doshi Years of experience in R
cum CEO . Doshi
Securities Market.
MBA having 17 years Not related
Abhay [Head- 'g Y R .
3 ) 754403 Contractual [of  experience in 01.10.2010 46 Yrs. - Nil to any
Suhane |Marketing X .
Marketing. Director
Dimplomain
X Electrical Not related
Mangles [Senior R . . .
4 597231 Contractual |Engineering having 01.04.2012 47 Yrs. - Nil to any
h Ostwal | Dealer ) )
18 years of experience Director
in Securities Market.
Sumit ) SSJ Not related
Cluster MCM having 15 years . .
5 Kanung 569467 | Contractual ) 01.04.2020 | 43Yrs. | Commodities Nil to any
Manager of experience. ) o ;
o Private Limited Director
Hemant Complian M.Com having an Not related
6 Agrawal ce and| 565890 [ Contractual |experience  of 28| 10.12.2014 49 Yrs. - 0.18 to any
Accounts years. Director
H -DP N |
Mohanla ead . Graduate and having Om Textile Pvt. ) ot related
7 Operation 503396 | Contractual ) 19.02.2008 58 Yrs. Nil to any
| Agar experience of 13 years Ltd. .
5 Director
Lokendr ] Not related
i Manager- MBA (IT) having 20 .
8 a Singh 454995 | Contractual ) 01.09.2014 | 42Vrs. - Nil to any
I years of experience. .
Solanki Director
Compan
. pany Graduate and
Sanjay |Secretary . Not related
qualified Company .
9 Kushwa |cum 451410 Contractual ) 31.07.2018 30 VYrs. - Nil to any
. Secretary having )
h Complian . Director
experience of 4 years
ce Officer
Vice
MBA and havin
Umasha |President- . 'g Not related
) experience in )
10 |nkar Business 450000 | Contractual Busi 01.04.2021 35Yrs. - Nil to any
usiness
Purohit [Developm Director
ont Development.

There was no employee during the year, who:

i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in theaggregate,one
croreandtwolakhrupees;

ii) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at arate which, in the
aggregate, eightlakh andfifty thousand rupees per month,;

iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that yearwhich, in the
aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of thatdrawn by the managing director
or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than
two percent of the equity shares of the company except Mr. Sarthak Doshi, whose details are mentioned in the table
abovein pointno. 8.
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Annexure-G

CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members
Indo ThaiSecurities Limited

I have examined all relevant records of Indo Thai Securities Limited (“Company”) for the purpose of certifying compliance
of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my
knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purpose of the above certification.

The compliance of the conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of corporate governance. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
ofthe efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

On the basis of my examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, | certify that the
Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended 31" March, 2022.

Place: Indore For Kaushal Ameta & Co.
Date: 12" August, 2022

Kaushal Ameta (Proprietor)
Practicing Company Secretary
Mem. No.: F-8144, CP No0.-9103
UDIN : FO08144D000760753

Board’s Report & Annexures

37



/

IndoThai

trade with confidence

(A)

(B)

(€)

Board’s Report & Annexures

28" Annual Report 2021-22

Annexure-H

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY

ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Conservation of Energy:

- 1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy - Efforts are taken to conserve energy to the best

2. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing possible extent.

: alternate source of energy :

. 3. The capital investment on energy conservation . ONIL .
. equipment : .
|

Technological Absorption:

- _____________________________________________________________________________________|
1. The efforts made towards technology absorption NIL :
2The beneﬂts denved I|ke product Improvememcost R R SRR LR LR R R R LR AR RRREREEARS
reduction, product development, or import substitution NIL

[3importedtechnology 7 Dl
" 4 Expenditure on research and development T :
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

1. Foreign Exchange Earnings in terms of actual .
+ inflow during the year . NIL :
. 2. Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows . NIL .
...........................................................................................
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 AT A GLANCE

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
GLOBAL

The war in Ukraine has triggered a costly humanitarian crisis that demands a peaceful resolution. At the same time,
economic damage from the conflict will contribute to a significant slowdown in global growth in 2022 and add to
inflation. Fuel and food prices have increased rapidly, hitting vulnerable populations in low-income countries hardest.

Global growth is projected to slow from an estimated 6.1 percent in 2021to0 3.6 percentin 2022 and 2023. Thisis 0.8 and 0.2
percentage points lower for2022 and 2023 than projected in January.

Beyond 2023, global growth is forecast to decline to about 3.3 percent over the medium term. War-induced commodity
price increases and broadening price pressures have led to 2022 inflation projections of 5.7 percent in advanced
economies and 8.7 percent in emerging market and developing economies—1.8 and 2.8 percentage points higher than
projected last January. Multilateral efforts to respond to the humanitarian crisis, prevent further economic
fragmentation, maintain global liquidity, manage debt distress, tackle climate change, and end the pandemic are
essential.

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to spread with millions of lives tragically lost so far, the novel coronavirus has been a
challenge like noother.

However, the world is adapting as a result of eased lockdowns and the rapid deployment of policy support at an
unprecedented scale by central banks and governments around the world. The globaleconomy iscoming back from the
depthsofitscollapse of last year.

Employment has partially rebounded after having plummeted during the peak of the crisis. This crisis is however far
from over. Employment remains well below pre-pandemic levels and the labour market has become more polarised
with low-income workers, youth, and women being harder hit. The poor are getting poorer with close to 90 million
people expectedto fallinto extreme deprivation thisyear.

The ascent out of this calamity is likely to be long, uneven, and highly uncertain. It is essential that fiscal and monetary
policy supportare not prematurely withdrawn.

Emerging market and developing economies are having to manage this crisis with fewer resources, as many are
constrained by elevated debt and higher borrowing costs.

The considerable global fiscal support of close to USD 12 trillion and the liquidity injections, and asset purchases by
central banks helped save livesand livelihoods and prevented a financial catastrophe. Thereis stillmuch that needsto be
done to ensure a sustained recovery. First, greater international collaboration is needed to end this health crisis. Second,
to the extent possible, policies must aggressively focus on limiting persistent economic damage from this crisis. The
sustained improvement in high-frequency indicators ignite optimism of improved economic performance and faster
than expected recovery.

INDIA

India's economy will grow 7.5% in fiscal year (FY) 2022 and 8% in FY2023, supported by increased public investment in
infrastructure and a pickup in private investment.

The outlook assumes sustained progress in coronavirus disease (COVID-19) vaccinations and that any new variants of the
virus are of limited severity.

India is on the path to a sustained economic recovery, thanks to the vigorous countrywide drive to deliver safe and wide-
reaching COVID-19 vaccinations, which helped reduce the severity of the third pandemic wave with minimal disruptions
to mobility and economic activity.

Risks to the outlook include uncertain global economic conditions, potential new surges in COVID-19 cases, and sharp
risesin commmodity prices.

Large publicinfrastructure investments planned over the next 2 years will encourage more private investment. Together
with the PM Gati Shakti initiative to improve India's logistics infrastructure, increased financial and technical support to
statesto expand capital investment will boost infrastructure spending and help spur economic growth.
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Forecasts are based on a normal monsoon, which, coupled with rising wheat prices, is expected to boost agriculture
output and improve farmers'income. The government's production-linked incentive scheme will provide a thrust to the
manufacturing sectorin FY 2022 and FY 2023.

Inflation will likely increase to 5.8% in FY 2022 amid rising oil prices. While monetary policy will remain accommodative,
the central bank may further hike policy rates in the later part of the fiscal year due to tightening of the United States
federal funds rate and elevated oil prices. The current account deficit is projected to widen to 2.8% of gross domestic
product in FY 2022 due to the rising oil import bill, and is expected to decline to 1.9% in FY 2023 amid an uptick in export
growth. Foreign direct investment inflow is expected to moderate amid rising global uncertainty and tightening of
globaleconomicand financial conditions

The government announced various schemes to control the damage. This included direct cash transfers and food
security measures to poor, with a call for building a self-reliant India/aatmanirbhar Bharat, Rs. 20 Lakh Crores size of
stimulus package announced under Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan, to provide effective social protection to migrant
workers through national portability of ration cards. The rural sector received assistance with refinance support from
NABARD, which included -injection of additional liquidity in the farm sector and by way of increased allocation for
the Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment Guarantee Scheme.

INDUSRTY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Pre COVID-19, market capitalisation on each major exchange in India was about $2.16 trillion. The 2019 stock market rally
was limited to 8-10 stocks within the large caps. The Sensex returned around 14% (excluding dividends) for the year 2019
but prominently featured blue-chip companies without which Sensex returns would have been negative. However, in
the start of 2020, there was overall recovery which led to both NSE and BSE traded at their highest levels, hitting peaks of
12,362 and 42,273 respectively. At the beginning of the year, there were close to 30 companies that were expected to file
IPO's. The market conditions were generally favourable asthey witnessed record highsin mid-January.

Ever since COVID-19 strike, markets loom under fear as uncertainty prevails. It has sent markets around the world
crashingto levels not witnessed since the Global Financial Crisis of 2008. Following the strong correlation with the trends
and indices of the global market as BSE Sensex and Nifty Fifty fell by 38%. The total market cap lost a staggering 27.31%
from the start of the year. The stock market has reflected the sentiments this pandemic unleashed upon investors,
foreign and domestic alike. Companies have scaled back; layoffs have multiplied and employee compensations have
been affected resulting in negligible growth in the last couple of months. Certain sector such as hospitality, tourism and
entertainment have beenimpacted adversely and stocks of such companies have plummeted by more than 40%.

While the world has witnessed many financial crises in the past, the last one being the global recession of 2008, the
current coronaviruscrisisis different from the past fallouts.

In response to current turmoil, RBl and the Government of India has come up with a slew of reforms such as reductions of
repo rate, regulatory relaxation by extending moratorium and several measures to boost liquidity in the system
howsoever the pandemic has impacted the premise of the corporate sector. Payments deferrals, subdued loan growth,
rising cases of bad loans and sluggish business conditions have impaired the growth and the health of the economic
activity. Deceleration of GDP growth, demand-supply chain, cut in discretionary expenses and CAPEX has been
observed during the lockdown, which has led to falling in household incomes, marketing spends, reduced travel cost
and hiring freeze.

As for the outlook for the market, we only need to look back at its history. Drops in BSE sensitive index is temporary, and
each dip provides investors with the opportunity to enter the market and earn a higher return especially for those with
long term horizon. Moreover, the higher the fluctuations, the higher chances of getting better returns. While these crises
are real and it impacts the world economy, but historically, such crisis has not lasted long, as the world is competent
enough to come up with answers to combat these challenges. Despite the fact that it's hard to predict the magnitude
and impact of Coronavirus on the economy. With an average annual return (CAGR) of around 15 per cent, by growing
from 100 points in 1979 to over 41,000 points in 2019, Sensex has proven time and again that corrections are temporary,
but growthis permanent.

INDO THAI OVERVIEW

(Trade with confidence)

Established as a stock broking company in year 1995, Indo Thai Securities Limited (“Indo Thai') commenced its journey
with a vision to build an empire with high quality growth businesses in financial services. Ever since our inception, our
strategy has beentoalign capabilitiesand marketinsightsto country'srapidly changing business environment.
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Today, Indo Thai is one of the leading broking company across central India. Our focus on self - defined rules of good
behavior has contributed significantly to growth. Over the last 27 Years we have experienced various growth phases in
our journey. Along with our people and our culture, together these are the pillars of what we are today. Our client
centricity has enabled us to emerge as a symbol of dependability, trust and confidence. We have come this far solely
based on our corevaluesserving as moral compassin ourdealings.

OPPORTUNITIES

The industry offers varied opportunities for the company to maintain growth. The Company continues to take efforts to
identify opportunities in various types of products, technological initiatives, and competitive advantage and deploys
effortsand resources that may be required.

e The number of retail investors has increased during the lockdown as people started working from home. Low prices of
stocks gave new investors an opportunity to enter markets, while people who are working from home also had time to
explore trading in equities. Low deposit rates in banks also brought new investors looking for higher returns compared to
other asset classes;

® Emergingtrendsintechnology hasalso opened up new ways for future growth. Consequently, we further plan to train our
employeesthrough Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning mechanisms;

® Growing shift from traditional instruments of saving to financialization of saving is also a great opportunity for capital
market participants;

e Credit, Insurance and Investment Penetrationisrisinginrural areas;
e India benefitsfromalarge cross - utilization of channels to expand reach of financial sector;

e Focus on financial inclusion by the government, channelizing the untapped savings currently lying in the form of bank
deposits and change in attitude from safeguarding wealth to growing wealth will also enhance the participation of
investorsacross segmentsthereby proliferating the prospects of Equity Brokerage business;

® Earning Urban Youth andincreased formal market job opportunities;
e Growing purchasing power of financially middle-classinvestors are interested in more investment opportunities;

e Favorable demographics of Indian capital markets like growing middle class and larger younger population with
disposable income and investible surplus focused on wealth creation will offer opportunities for our Wealth Management
and Mutual Fund Distribution business.

THREATS
The company constantly monitors the threats from competition, industry and takes steps to maintain/ enhance existing

competence.
® Market trends making other assets relatively attractive investment avenues;

® Systematic and non-systematic risks; Security market risks are of two types: Systematic (non-diversifiable) and non-
systematic (diversifiable) risks. Individual companies do not have any control over systematic risks. Non-systematic risks
basically fall in the company or industry-specific risk category. Non-systematic risks can be tackled by holding a portfolio
that contains multiple stocks from different sectors. Thisis the reason why market expertsinclude stock specific risks;

® |ncreased intensity of competition from local and global players;

e |nflationary pressuresand reduction in household savingsinfinancial productsisanother threattothe sector;

® |nfinancial services industry, security and sanctity of client data is of utmost importance. There exists a regular threat for
firm data theft via malicious malwares and emails. Cyber-attacks are getting larger in scale and size, eventothe extent of
co-ordinated attack from different geographies.

e |[fthe currenttightliquidity situation does not normalize soon, it could affect the natural growth of the complete sector;

® Changes in regulatory environment can adversely affect the business. Sudden changes may pose operational
challenges;

® Slower than expected recovery of macro-economy, domestically as well as globally and inability of government to push
through major economic reforms can delay the return of growth.
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Equity Segment

The Company's turnover in the equity segment was
Rs. 114 Crores in BSE and Rs. 3297 Crores in NSE
consisting essentially of secondary market equity,
currency, derivatives and debt broking.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

F&O Segment

The annual turnover recorded by the Company in this
segment for the financial year 2021-22 amounts to
Rs.6998 Crores.

Currency Derivatives Segment

The total turnover for the Company for the currency
derivatives segment has been Rs. 295.48 Crores, as
compared to Rs. 246.01 Crores in the financial year
ended 2021.

Mutual Fund Segment

The Company has recorded the asset under
management as on 31" March 2022 of Rs. 94.87 crore
for the Assets Mutual Fund Distribution Business
for the year 2021-22.

Income from Depository Operations

Your Company is a Depository Participant with Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL"), providing
services of dematerialization, rematerialisation and
settlement of trades through market transfers and off
market transfers. Our income from depository
operations for the financial year ended 3lst March,
2022 are Rs.23.6 Lakhs.

Commodity Segment:

The annual turnover recorded by the company in

Commodity segment for the financial year 2021-22

amountsto Rs.6980.44 Crores.

Rs. 114
Crores

Rs. 3297
Crores

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Rs. 6998 Rs. 12333.06
Crores Crores

FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Rs. 295.48 Rs. 246.01
Crores Crores

FY 21-22 FY 20-21

--------------------------------------------

Rs. 94.87 Rs. 96.47
Lakhs Lakhs

FY 21-22 FY 20-21

-------------------------------------------

Rs.23.6
Lakhs

FY 21-22

Rs.19.73
Lakhs

FY 20-21

Rs.6980.44
Crores

FY 21-22
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Indo Thai promptly addressed many of the challenges passed by. It ensured security of its employees and seamless
transition of Work From Home (WFH) with enhanced networking. We are steadfast in our commitment to capital
discipline and financial strength. We remain focused on operating excellence executing our projects and enhancing
shareholder value enhancement. The industry will focus on more stable borrowing, improving the cost of this borrowing
will be a key factorin value creation.

Indo Thai was successfully able to navigate all the dislocations in the market and continued to manage its financial
market risks prudently.

Indo Thaiis rewiring the business and future readying it for the post COVID-19 world through various measures to keep it
Covid- free. As we contemplate in the matter of Indo Thai Securities Limited, in the preparation for the next phase of
growth we see a lot of opportunities, but at the same time this demands a lot of dedication and efficiency. We believe in
empowering our people with the best available facilities such as technological upgradation and institutional clients and
to build aworkforce ready for the future.

RISKS & CONCERNS
Risk management entails identifying, assessing and prioritizing risks. Once threats in a company have been identified,
assessed and prioritized, resources are used to control and reduce the likelihood that the identified risk occurs. Risk
Managementisanintegral part of yearly business plan atIndo Thai. Itisvalued asan important tool for organization's risk
assessment. This process helps us identify variables (risks and opportunities) to which the Company may be exposed -
internal or external,oremerging.

Risk management at Indo Thai involves both 'top-down' and 'bottom-up' approaches for assessing risks/ opportunities,
whichisthen consolidated/ calibrated to get an overview of the entire organization.

The Risk Management Committee is chaired by Mr. Parasmal Doshi. The Committee reviews and discusses the risk
trends, exposure and potential impact analysis (including sustainability and information security related risks).
Key risks:
Therisk factorsthat can be specifically identified with our business operations are as outlined below:
1. Regulatory and Compliance Risks:
COVID-19 has led the government to announce a range of notifications which companies needs to adopt swiftly
and effectively. The Company is exposed to risks attached to various statutes, law and regulations. The Company is
mitigating these risks through internal as well as external compliance audits. Any non-compliance pertaining to
regulations may resultin considerable penaltiesand harmsthe reputation of the Company.

Mitigation: The Company has implemented compliance management system capable of effectively tracking and
managing regulatory and internal compliance requirements. Our legal and regulatory specialists are heavily
involved in monitoring and reviewing our practices to provide reasonable assurance that we remain aware of and
areinline with all relevant laws and legal obligations.

2. Operational Risk:
These risks arise from the failure of the systems, people and processes. The rapid development in financial services
business may increase suchrisks.

Mitigation: The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide high degree of assurance
regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, the reliability of
financial controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

3. Market Risks:

The financial sector is affected by variety of factors linked to domestic, economic progress and global
developments. Equity brokerage is the major source of revenue for the Company. Therefore, any changes in the
market sentiment can highly affect the trading volumes and revenues for the Company.
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Mitigation: The Company has diversified its revenue streams across multiple businesses including mutual funds
andwealth managementservices in order to mitigate such risks.

4. Competition Risks:

The Company is exposed to tremendous competition at national level. Entry of discount broking houses has also
affected otherfinancial broking companiesinthe industry.

Mitigation: Diversified and innovative services are offered to keep the clients and other stakeholders intact as well
ascontinuous research and development helps in mitigating the competition risk.

5. Financial Risks:

Maintaining flexible cost structure for protecting profitability in a market downturn and other related factors
exposes the Company to financial risks. Change in policies of the government of India may adversely impact our
businessand prospects.

Mitigation: The risk framework makes definite that risks are monitored and timely actions are taken for every
potential violation. Additionally, the asset liability mismatch and margin utilizations are reqularly assessed along
with close monitoring of liquidity requirements to maintain sufficient liquidity for uncertainties.

Effective mitigation strategies have been developed against each of the identified risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Indo Thai has an effective internal control and risk - mitigation system which are constantly assessed and strengthened
with new/revised standard operating procedures.

Internal control review is an overall assessment of the internal control system and its adequacy of each business area to
address the relevant risks. Through control review, an organization's resources are directed, monitored, and measured in
an effective manner. It playsanimportantrolein protecting the organization'stangible and intangible resources.

To create an effective internal control system, your Company established the following:

® Policiesand proceduresincluding,among others, organizational structure, job descriptions;
e Segregationofdutiesand responsibilities;

e Authorizationandapproval process;

e  Performance monitoring and control procedures;

e Safeguardingassets,completenessandaccuracy;

¢ Manpower management;

. Independentinternal audit function;

e Regulatorycompliance andrisk management.

Internal Control Systems are implemented:

1. Tosafeguard the Company's assets from loss or damage.
2. To keep constant check on cost structure.
3. To provide adequate financial and accounting controlsand implement accounting standards.

The system is improved and modified according to the changes in dynamic business condition, statutory and
accounting requirements. Internal controls are adequately supported by Internal Audit and periodic review by the
management.

The Audit Committee of the company meets periodically to review - Financial statements, with the management and
statutory auditors. Adequacy/scope of internal audit function, significant findings and follow-up thereon of any
abnormal nature, with the internal auditors.

The establishment of an effective corporate governance and internal control system is essential for sustainable growth
and long-term improvements in corporate value, and accordingly INDO THAI works to strengthen such structures. We
believe that a strong internal control framework is an important pillar of Corporate Governance. The current system of
Internal Financial Controlsis aligned with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The material information about the Company are promptly provided to all its Stakeholders through its website
www.indothai.co.in. where by enhanced level of information system security controls and monitoring systems are
integrated.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT
TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

1. Sources of funds/ Application of funds

(a) Share Capital:

At present, the Company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- each. The Company's
authorized share capital is Rs. 12 Crores, divided into 1.20 Crores equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The issued, subscribed and
paid up capital stood at Rs.10 Crores as on 31" March, 2022, unvaried from the previous financial year.

(b) Reserves & Surplus:

(i) Security Premium Reserve& Retained Earnings:

The balance in Securities Premium Account & Retained Earnings as on 31" March, 2022 amounted to Rs. 5343.78 Lakhs.
The balancereportedin previousyear was Rs. 4403.75 Lakhs.

(ii) Profit and Loss Account:

The balance in the Profit and Loss account as at 31" March, 2022 is Rs. 1040.03 Lakhs. The balance reported in the previous
year was Rs.1044.39 Lakhs.

2. Shareholder's Funds (NET WORTH)

The total Shareholder's Funds is Rs. 6343.78 Lakhs as on 31" March, 2022. The balance reported in previous year was Rs.
5403.75 Lakhs.

3. Prices on exchanges during the year:

The Company'sshares' high and low pricesin BSE & NSE are as under:

BSE f 397.70 } 31/03/2022 } 4710 } 26/04/2021

4. Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities

We recorded 3.01 Lakhs deferred tax assets as on 31Ist March, 2022 as compared to Rs. NIL during the previous year.
Deferred Liabilities were reported Rs. NILas on 31st March, 2022 as compared to 40.31 Lakhs during the previous year.

5. Trade Receivables

Thereisadecrease in trade receivables of the Company ascompared to previousyear. The figure of trade receivables was
reported at Rs.264.74 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2022 which was Rs. 353.39 Lakhs as on 31stMarch, 2021.

6. Cash & Cash Equivalents

The Cash & Cash Equivalents of the Company has decreased as compared to previous financial year and reached at
Rs.127.98 Lakhs on 31st March, 2022 which was Rs.597.57 Lakhs in previous year.

7. Revenue

Total revenue from operations has been reported Rs. 1985.15 Lakhs as on 3l1st March, 2022 as compared to Rs. 2188.19
Lakhson 31st March, 2021.

8. Earnings Per Share

The earnings per share for the financial year 2021-22 is Rs.10.40/- in comparison to figure reported for financial year 2020-
2li.e.Rs.10.30/-

DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

At Indo Thai, our relentless focus is on attracting, retaining and nurturing the best of talents to lead the organization
towards achieving its strategic goals. We ensure a work culture free of discrimination and bias and provide equal
opportunitytoall.

In the past, training was the only planned way of developing human resources. But now Human Resource Management
(HRD) hasemerged asaninterdisciplinary and integrated approach tothe development of human resources.

In the organizational context, human resource development may be described as a continuous and planned process by
which employees of an organization are helped to:

(a) Acquire or sharpen capabilities required to perform various functions associated with their present or expected future
roles.
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(b) Develop their general capabilities as individuals and discover and exploit their own inner potential for their own
and/or organizational development purpose.

(c) Develop an organizational culture in which superior-subordinate relationships, teamwork and collaboration among
sub-unitsare strong and contribute to the professional well-being, motivation and pride of employees.

HRD for Indo Thaiin briefis transformation of potential human resources into kinetic human resources for optimisation
ofthe potential capacity of employees.

Human rather than capital is the key to development.HRD is needed by any organization that wants to grow
continuously. No organisation can grow and survive in the present-day environment without the growth and
development of its people.lnspite of the Economic slow-down the Company recognized the contribution of the
employeesthrough structured compensation revision process.

The scope of HRD is not limited to the development of the organizational role of the employees but extends to the
individuals inner feelings, genius and latent potentialities of those working in the organization. Individuals in an
organization have unlimited potential for growth and development and this can be multiplied and channelized through
systematic efforts. The company views human resources as the total knowledge, skills, creative, abilities, talents and
aptitudesofan organization's workforce aswell asthe values, attitudes and beliefs of the individual involved.

HRD is an effort to develop capabilities and competence among employees as well as to create an organizational
environment conducive to the employee's development.

The highest standards of safety and precautionary measures were established, Work Frorn Home concept was initiated
wherever possible. In order to uphold the values of ethical conduct and compliance, the Company ensured all employees
followed a detailed and structured training and awareness to familiarize themselves with the standards and
expectations on ethics. During these difficult times, the Company reached out to the disadvantaged and weaker
sections of society and provided assistance through our CSR program. The Indo Thai family consists of 59 employees
including 5 Key Managerial Personnel.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The significant changesin the key financial ratios of the Company which are more than 25% as compared to the previous
year aresummarized as below:

Net-Profit Margin for FY 2021-22 Current Ratio
(o)
52% 18.34%
DECREASED
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This report contains several forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited
to, risks inherent in Indo Thai's growth strategy, acquisition plans, dependence on certain businesses, dependence on
availability of qualified and trained manpower, economic conditions, government policies and other factors. The
company's actual results, performances or achievements could thus differ materially from those expressed or implied
in such forward-looking statements. This report should be read in conjunction with the financial statements included
herein and the notes annexed thereto.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION
“Good governance with good intentions is the hallmark of our Company.
Implementation with integrity is our core passion.”
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The Company's corporate governance philosophy is based on an effective independent Board, the separation of the
Board's supervisory role from the executive management and the Board Committees. Our Board has Independent
Directors, highly respected for their professional integrity as well as rich financial experience and expertise. Corporate
Governance is the combination of voluntary practices and compliance with laws and regulations leading to effective
control and management of the organization. It essentially involves balancing the interests of the Company's
stakeholders, such as shareholders, senior management executives, customers, suppliers, financers, the government
and the community.

The Report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India in Chapter IV read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given below:

1. THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE
The governance philosophy of Indo Thai Securities Limited (the “Company” or “ITSL") is based on three pillars of
trusteeship, transparency and accountability. We believe that good Corporate Governance emerges from the
application of the best and sound management practices and compliance with the laws coupled with adherence to
the highest standards of transparency and business ethics.

Our corporate governance is a reflection of our value system encompassing our culture policies and relationships
with our stakeholders. The Company's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Internal Code of Conduct for regulating,
monitoring and reporting of trades by Designated Persons and the Charter-Business for peace are an extension of
ourvaluesand reflect ourcommitment to ethical business practices, integrity and regulatory compliances.

AtITSLthe governance framework is based on the following principles:

e Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with each member bringing in expertise in their respective domains;

® Professionalism ensures that management team across the organization are qualified and have clear understanding
oftheirrolesand responsibilities;

e Availability of information to the members of the Board and Board Committees to enable them to discharge their
fiduciary duties;

e Timely disclosure of material, operational and financial information to the stakeholders;
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The Company continues to focus its resources, strengths and strategies to achieve the vision of becoming a leader in
securities market while upholding the core values of quality, trust, leadership and excellence. The Company not only
adheres to the prescribed Corporate Governance practices as per the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, but has also undertaken several initiatives towards
maintaining the zenith of governance asdetailed in thisreport.

2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board of Directors

The Board at ITSL is entrusted with the responsibility of the Management, directions and performance of the
Company. ITSL recognizes that an independent and well-informed Board is essential to enhance governance
standards. The Board's primary role is fiduciary. The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and its
independent view to the Company's management while discharging its responsibilities and ensures that the
managementadheresto ethics, transparency and disclosures.

The Board'sactionsand decisionsare aligned with the Company's best interests. The Board iscommmitted to the goal of
sustainably elevating the Company's value creation. The Company has defined guidelines and an established
framework for the meetings of the Board and Committees. These guidelines seek to systematise the decision-making
processatthe meetings of the Board and Committeesin an informed and efficient manner.

The Members ofthe Board discuss each agenda item freely in detail. Some of the mattersincluded are:

Minutes of the earlier Board Meeting;

Minutes of the Committee Meetings;

Minutes of Board Meetings of Subsidiary Company (ies);

Consolidated and Standalone Audited/Unaudited Annual/Quarterly Financial Results;

Company'sAnnual Financial Statements, Auditor's Report and Board's Report;

Limited Review Report/Audit Reportissued by Auditor of the Company on quarterly basis;

Review of the Financialand Operational Performance of the Company;

Formation/Reconstitution and renaming of Committees;

Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directorsand Key Managerial Personnel;

Appointment of Internal Auditor and Secretarial Auditor;

Fixing of remuneration of Statutory Auditor of the Company;

Disclosure of interest of Directorsand Key Managerial Personnel;

Declaration by Independent Directors;

Quarterly review on shareholding pattern, share transfers, etc,;

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report under the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India
(Depositories & Participants) Regulations, 2018;

Action Taken Report on decision taken in Previous Meetings;

Review of Internal Audit Report(s);

Investment of Company's funds;

Applying and availing credit facilities;

Materially important show cause,demand, prosecution and penalty notices.

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted the following Committees viz, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC), Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and Risk
Management Committee. Each Committee is mandated to operate within a well-defined Charter.

a) Composition and Category of Directors

As per Regulation 17(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company shall have an optimum combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors with at least one-Woman Director and not less than fifty percent of the Board
of Directors comprising Non-Executive Directors. The composition and strength of the Board is reviewed from time to
time forensuring thatitremainsaligned with statutory aswell as business requirements.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board representsan optimum mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience as categorized under:
Composition of the Board as on 31" March, 2022

Category Name of Directors

Non-Executive : Mr. Om Prakash Gaulba

Independent Directors Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni
Mrs. Shobha Santosh Choudhary

Mr. Dhanpal Doshi
(Managing Director cum Chief Executive
Officer)

Executive Directors : Mr. Parasmal Doshi
(Whole-time Director cum Chairman)

Mr. Rajendra Bandi
(Whole-time Director)

During the financial year 2021-22, in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company were reappointed at 25" Annual General
Meeting held on 28" September, 2019 to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from 20" September, 2019.
Theterm of5yearsshallend on 19" September, 2024.

Further, the Executive Directors of the Company were re-appointed for a term of 3 (Three) consecutive years from 20"
September, 2020 in 26" Annual General Meeting held on Wednesday, 30" September, 2020, out of them Mr. Parasmal
Doshiand Mr. Rajendra Bandi are liable to retire by rotation. The term of three years shall end on 19" September, 2023.

Thus, the composition of the Board is in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Board Meetings

The Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of management, directions and performance of the Company.
The Board assembles at regular interval to discuss and decide crucial matters and strategies to attain the goal in
efficient mannerand to cope up with the dynamic and competitive environment.

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Board met 6 (Six) times. The Meetings of the Board were held at registered office
ofthe Company i.e. “Capital Tower, 2nd Floor, Plot Nos.169A-171, PU-4, Scheme No.-54, Indore, Madhya Pradesh 452010”
onthefollowing dates:

i, Monday, 05" April, 2021
ii. Wednesday, 30" June, 2021
iii. Friday, 13" August, 2021

iv. Friday, 12" November, 2021
V2 Saturday, 27" November, 2021
Vi. Friday, 11" February, 2022
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In consonance with Regulation 26(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, none of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than ten committees and
Chairpersonin more than five committeesacross all the Public Companiesin which they are Directors.

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the financial year 2021-22 and at the last
Annual General Meeting held on 29" September, 2021 together with the number of other Directorships, and
Committee Memberships/Chairmanships as on 31¥ March, 2022 are as follows:

No. of |Attendance| #No. of #No. of No. of Committee No. of Committee Inter-se *No. of

Name & Category

. " Board at the last other Chairmanship Membership Membership and
Designation

Board

relationship] Shares

Number

c [}
S <
e £
o o . a 5 o
£ Direct: E £ Meetings| Annual [Directorship in other and Chairmanship Chairmanship in
of Director = % attended| General in other | companies [in other Companies ITSL
3 w during Meeting | companies ason as on 31.03.2022 as on 31.03.2022
5 o the ason 31.03.2022
g g financial 31.03.2022
[
'E 23’;:;2 As As As As
- Member |Chairman]Member [Chairman
© Mr. Parasmal - Promoter, * . : : : : : : : :
Doshi . Executive . 8 ) .
i Director | ) . . . : : . . : :
(Chairman E 8 6 . Present . 10 . 9 NIl - NIl - 4 .2 . Brother of  .1165900
cum g 2 . : . : : : . Mr. Dhanpal
Whole-time o ' o . Doshi
Director) .
Mr. Dhanpal : Promoter, * .
Doshi . Executive . ~ "
f . Director o)) o .
. (Managing - S S, . . . . . . . i . .
- Director cum - =T ; Present : 15 : 3 SNl DoNio: 2 Nibo-Brotherof 1270500
2. . Chief g : 9 6 - - - - - - - Mr. Parasmal
Executive - . T . . . . . . . - Doshi
Officer)
Mr. Rajendra . B "
Bandi ZEI;?CL’:"’SZ I:92° : :
. . irector . . . . . . . . . . H . A .
(Whole-time . Qs g o Present ! 3 : 2 DONilCONi T oONib il 210061
X . . .o - . . . . . . . . .
Director) 8 E
o o~
Mr. Sunil % 8
.+ Non i K . . . ) . . . . . ) .
Kumar Soni ve. Q@ 6 . Present 1 © Nil DNl N3 2 © Nl Nl
. (Ind dent | Executive + p 3 . . . . . . . . .
4 ndependent . . - 3 = . . . . . . . . .
. Director) N
. — .
Mr. Om . . O
Prakash - Non - & -8 .
Gauba . Executive - ué . g 6 . Present - 1 . Nil : Nil NIl - 5 oo . Nil - ONil
. " Dbirector - .9 . . . . . . . . .
5. - (Indgpendent : - q
Director) .
Mrs. Shobha © 3
Santosh oNen D3 8 . . . . . . X . X .
Choudhary : Executive @ : 3 5 : Present 1 : Nil SNl NiL 3 : Nib Nil . Nil
. - Direct .
6. : (independent : Director = & Q
Director)

Note : # The above includes the directorship & chairmanship in Private Limited Companies also.
* There were no convertible instruments held by any Director.

The Board and the Management of the Company strive to attain paramount of success and high standards of
Corporate Governance ensuring trust and interest of stakeholder and undeniably the general public. The Company
without any delay regularly recapitulates Corporate Governance System to ensure frictionless best corporate practices
timely.
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c) Attendance of Directors and details of other Boards or Committees where Director/s are a Member or
Chairperson
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d) Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
Regulation 25(7) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 requires listed companies to conduct familiarization programme for the Independent Directors that

includes:
e Briefing on theirrole, responsibilities, duties and obligations asa member of the Board.
e Nature of business and business model of the Company, Company's strategic and operating plans.

Indo Thai Securities Limited facilitates the members of its Board to familiarize themselves with the Company and its
operations to enable them to gain in depth and thorough understanding about the perspective of the Company. The
web link of the same isas mentioned below:
http:f//mwww.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Details-of-Familiarization-Programmes_2021-22.pdf

e) Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the policy on Board Diversity. The Board comprises of qualified
members who bring in qualified skills, competence and expertise that enable them to make effective contributions to
the Company's working. The Board of Members have expertise and extensive experience in the field of financial
services, sales & marketing, corporate governance, administration, decision making and effective corporate
management. They uphold ethical standard, integrity and probity and exercise their responsibility in the best interest
ofthe Company and all stakeholders.

The key qualification, expertise and competenciesthat Board possess to render effective servicesto the Company are:

Leadership and Business Acumen
Unique blend of Finance and Legal
Governance and Social Responsibility
Global Businessand Technology

¥ ¥ o1

Accordingly,a matrixchart setting out the core skillsand competencies of the Board of Directors is mentioned below:

Skills/Competencies/Expertise Area of Directors

Area of expertise

Business Marketing

Mr. Parasmal Doshi : v

Mr. Om Prakash Gauba v v v
© Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni v v
Mrs. Shobha Santosh I 4 S I 4
Choudhary ; : ' : :
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f) Access to Information and Updation to Board

The Company,in consultation with itsdirectors, prepares and circulates a tentative annual calendar for the Meetings of
the Committees/board in order to facilitate and assist the directors in planning their schedule well in advance to
participate and render their valuable suggestionsin the Meetings. The Company regularly places, before the Board for
its review, the information as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and
concerned Stock Exchanges from time to time such as quarterly results, quarterly updates, minutes of meetings of the
Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board, risk management and mitigation measures, etc.
Comprehensively drafted notes for each agenda item along with background materials, wherever necessary, are
circulated well in advance to the Board/Committee Members, to enable them for making value addition as well as
exercising their business judgementin the Board/Committee meetings.

The Board reviews all information provided periodically for discussion and consideration at its meetings in terms of
Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. These are submitted as a part of the agenda papers well in advance for the Board Meetings. The
Board also reviews the declaration made by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
regarding compliance of all applicable laws on quarterly basis. The Board maintains a Status cum Action Taken Report
to record the actions taken on the matters since last Board Meeting of the company and the matters forming part of
suchreportare considered inthe Board Meetingitself.

9) Code of Conduct

The Company has in place the Code of Conduct for Business and Ethics, for members of the Board and Senior
Management Personnel, Officers & Employees, approved by the Board and duly commmunicated. The Code requires
Directors and Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically, and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional,
courteous and respectful manner. The Code has also been hosted on the Company's website
http:/www.indothai.co.in/ All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel, Officers & Employees have
confirmed compliance with the Code for the year ended 31" March, 2022. This Annual Report contains a declaration to
this effect signed by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The Company has also formulated the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors; this Code is a guide to professional
conduct for the Independent Directors. Adherence to these standards by Independent Directors and fulfillment of
their responsibilities in a professional and faithful manner will promote confidence of the investment community,
particularly minority shareholders, regulatorsand companiesin the institution of the Independent Directors.

h) Meeting of the Independent Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 25(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and Clause VII(3) of the Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 the Independent
Directors met on 08" March, 2022, inter alia, to:

e Evaluate performance of Non-Independent Directorsand the Board of Directorsasawhole;

P Evaluate performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non- Executive Directors;

e Evaluate and assessthe key transactions (including related party transactions) undertaken since the
lastindependent directors meeting, and the assessment of the performance of the same;

e Evaluate the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the Managementand the
Board thatis necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform itsduties;and

e Review recommendation from the last Independent Directors meeting.

Allthe Independent Directors were present at this Meeting.

1) Appointment of Directors

In terms of Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a brief resume of the Directors, proposed to be appointed/re-appointed, nature of
their expertise in specific functional areas, their other Directorships and Committee Memberships, their
shareholdings and inter-se relationship with other Directors are provided in the Annexure to notice convening the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company's financial reporting process and
internal controls. The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All members of the Audit Committee are financially
literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation, Economics, Risk and International Finance. It functions
inaccordance with itsterms of reference that definesits authority, responsibility and reporting function.

a) Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of Audit Committee covers the matters specified for Audit Committee under Regulation 18 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
well asin Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014. The Role of an Audit Committee is as prescribed under Regulation 18(3) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Role ofan Audit Committee includes the following:
P Overseeing the Company'sfinancial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
toensurethatthefinancial statementsare correct, sufficientand credible;

P Recommending tothe Board for appointment (including re-appointment and replacement),
remuneration and terms of appointment of the Auditors of the Company;

e Approval of payment to Statutory Auditor for any other servicesrendered by the Statutory Auditor;
e Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial Statementsand Auditor's Report thereon
before submission tothe Board for approval, with particular reference to:
a) Mattersrequired to beincludedinthe Directors' Responsibility Statementto beincludedin
the Board's Reportintermsof clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013;
b) Changes, ifany,inaccounting policiesand practicesand reasonsfor the same;
) Major accounting entriesinvolving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;
d) Significantadjustments made inthefinancial statementsarising out ofaudit findings;
e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirementsrelating to financial statements;
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions;
g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.
e Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board
forapproval;
Pe Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an

issue (publicissue, rightsissue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes
otherthanthose stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the
monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rightsissue,and making
appropriate recommendationsto the Board to take up stepsin this matter;

Pe Reviewing and monitoring the auditor'sindependence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

e Approval orany subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

e Scrutiny of inter-corporate loansand investments;

e Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever itis necessary;

e Evaluation ofinternal financial controls and risk management systems;

Pe Reviewing, with the management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors,adequacy of the

internal control systems;
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Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, ifany,including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with Internal Auditor of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of anyinternalinvestigations by the Internal Auditor into matterswhere there
issuspected fraud orirregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and

reporting the matter tothe Board,;

Discussion with Statutory Auditor before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit
aswell as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

Tolookintothe reasons for substantial defaultsin the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
Shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism;

Overseeing the performance of the Company's Risk Management Policy;

Approve the appointment of CFO (i.e., Whole-time Director - Finance or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc.ofthe candidate;

Carrying outany other function asis mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee;
Any other function as may be required from time to time by the Securitiesand Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015and the Companies Act,

2013 along with rules made there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory
requirementsto be attended by such Committee.

Composition, names of Members and Chairperson

The Audit Commmittee consists of 3 (Three) Non-Executive Independent Directors and 1 (One) Executive Director, they

are asfollows:

Category Name of Director

) . Mr. Om Prakash Gauba
Non-Executive : Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni
Independent Directors Mrs. Shobha Santosh Choudhary

The Composition of the Committee is in accordance with Regulation 18(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Maximum members of the Commmittee are Non-Executive Directors of the Company with Mr. Om Prakash Gauba asits
Chairman.The Company Secretary of the Company, actsas the Secretary tothe Commmittee.

Corporate Governance Report
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c) Particulars of Meetings and attendance by the Members of the Audit Committee
Total 5 (Five) Audit Committee Meetings were held and the details of attendance of the members at the Meetings
duringthefinancial year 2021-22 are as follows:

Name & Meeting Date

Designation 05" April, 2021 |30" June, 2021 |13" Aug, 2021 | 12" Nov, 2021 | T1" Feb, 2022

Mr. Om Prakash Gauba :
Chairman :

Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni :
Member : ( : ( : ( : ( : (

B L R H e
Choudhary T A v oo 4

Member

Mr. Parasmal Doshi v v " v v

Member

+ - Present
4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a) Terms of reference

While deciding on the remuneration of the Directors, the Committee considers the performance of the Company, the
currenttrendsin the industry, their experience, past performance and other relevant factors. The Committee regularly
keeps track of the market trends in terms of compensation levels and practices in relevant industries. This information
is used to review remuneration policies. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances
to its Managing Director and Whole-Time Directors. No remuneration by way of commission was given to any
Executive Director. The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are asfollows:

e Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a

Directorand recommmend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key

Managerial Personneland other Employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of the Independent Directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

e Identifying personswho are qualified to become Directorsand who may be appointed in senior
managementinaccordance with the criteria laid down,and recommend to the Board their
appointmentand removal;

¥

¥

e Extend or continue the term of appointment of Independent Directors, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors;
e Any other function as may be required from time to time by the Securitiesand Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and
rules madethere underandany other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirementsto be
attended by such Committee.

b) Composition, name of Members and Chairperson

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 3 (Three) Non-Executive Independent Directors namely
Mr.Sunil Kumar Soni, Mr.Om Prakash Gauba and Mrs. Shobha Santosh Choudhary. Mr. Sunil Kumar Soniis heading the
Committee asthe Chairman.The Company Secretary of the Company acts asthe Secretary to the Committee.

The Composition of the Committee is in accordance with Regulation 19 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

c) Meeting and attendance during the year

During the financial year 2021-22, 2 (Two) Meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held and the
details of attendance of the members at the Meeting are as follows:
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Name & Meeting Date

Designation 30" June, 2021 13" August, 2021

Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni v v
Chairman : :

- Mr. Om Prakash Gauba - v v
. Member : .

Mrs. Shobha Santosh : :
Choudhary : v : v
Member ' '

]
+ - Present

d) Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the evaluation of the Independent Directors, which was done by the Board of
Directors was based on the following assessment criteria as laid by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Attendance and participation in the Meetings;

Raising of concerns to the Board;

Level of integrity (maintenance of confidentiality);

Commitment towards the Board;

Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the Company;

Impartiality in conducting discussions and seeking views;

Contribution in the Meetings of the Board and Committees;

The Director possesses requisite knowledge, competencies, qualifications and experience;
Ability to function as a team member;

Fulfillment of functions as assigned by the Board and Law from time to time.

¥FY P Y OYEOYOYEYOYEOY

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
a) Remuneration Policy

The Company's Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees is annexed as
“Annexure-E" to the Board's Report.

The Company strives to provide fair compensation to the Directors, taking into consideration industry benchmarks,
Company's performance vis-a-vis the industry, responsibilities shouldered, performance/ track record and macro-
economic review on remuneration packages of heads of other organizations.

The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company shall, at all times, be determined in accordance with the
provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

Apart from the Directors, the remuneration of all the other KMPs such as the Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary or any other officer that may be prescribed under the statute from time to time and “Senior Management”
ofthe Company as defined in the Regulation 16 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationsand
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, shall be determined as per the Company's remuneration policy and in
consultation with the Managing Director and/ or the Whole-time Director- Finance.

b) During the year, there were no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the Company and any of its
Non- Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) apart from sitting fees drawn by them for attending the
Meeting of the Board and Committee(s) thereof.
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c) Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors

The Company has formulated the criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors, which has been uploaded
onthe Company's website. The web link of the same isas mentioned below:

http:/www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/Policy-of-Remuneration-for-Directors-KMP-and-other-
employees_21.08.2019.pdf

d) Details of Remuneration to the Directors
e Executive Directors:

The Company has paid remuneration to Executive Directors for the year ended 31" March, 2022 as per following manner:

(Amount in Rs.)

Mr. Dhanpal Doshi] Mr. Parasmal Doshi| Mr. Rajendra Bandi

(Managing Director (Chairman cum (Whole-Time Director)
cum CEOQO) Whole-Time Director)

Remuneration 2304000 2430000 409200
........ HRAOO o
Conveyance 96000 96000 36000
Ch”d A Howance .................. o .......................... o ......................... O ............
...... TOTAL24000002526000445200
Provident Fund 59040 51840 0

° Non-Executive Directors:

Allthe Non-Executive Independent Directors receive remuneration only by way of sitting fees for attending Meetings of
the Board/Committees. The details of sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors during the financial
year 2021-22 areasunder:

(Amount in Rs.)

Mr. Om Prakash Mr. Sunil Kumar Mrs. Shobha Santosh
Gauba Soni Choudhary

(Independent (Independent (Independent
Director) Director) Director)

Sitting Fee 36000 24000 27000
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e) None ofthe Independent Directors of the Company holds shares of the Company.
f) Presently, the Company does not have a scheme for grant of any Stock Option either to the Executive Directors
or Employees.
g) The Company has notentered in any service contracts with Managing Director or any other Director.

6. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a) The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee consists of 3 (Three) Non-Executive Independent Directors and 1
(One) Executive Director. The Composition of the Committee is in accordance with Regulation 20 of the Securitiesand
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the
CompaniesAct,2013.

During the financial year 2021-22,1 (One) Meeting of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee was held and the details of
attendance ofthe membersat the Meeting are asfollows:

Name & Meeting Date
v

Designation 30" June, 2021

Mr. Sunil Kumar Soni
Chairman

éMr. Om Prakash Gauba v
: Member :

Mrs. Shobha Santosh

Choudhary (
Member :

Mr. Parasmal Doshi v
Member :

]
¥ - Present

b) Mr. Sanjay Kushwah, Compliance Officer of the Company is Secretary to the Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee.
c) Role of the Committee includes the followings -

Pe Totake action for efficient transfer of sharesincluding review of cases for refusal of transfer/

transmission of sharesand debentures;

e Redressal of Shareholders'and investors' complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance
sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, duplicate share certificates, etc,;

P Issuance of duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates;

e To take effective action for allotment and listing of shares;

[ To monitor,under the supervision of the Company Secretary, the complaints received by the
Company from the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Registrar of Companiesand the Share/ Debentures/Security holders of the Company, etc.and
the actiontaken forredressal ofthe same;

e To monitor and expedite the status and process of dematerialization and rematerialisation of shares,
debenturesand securities of the Company;

e Tosuggest statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances;and make sure proper
andtimely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances;

e To ratify and approve the function/s of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Companydonein
line with conditions mentioned in the Agreement and/or Memorandum of Understanding executed
between the Company and the Registrarand Share Transfer Agent from time to time.

d) No complaint was received aswell as pending during the financial year 2021-22.
e) A Qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Auditona quarterly
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basis to reconcile the total admitted capital with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) with the total issued and listed capital and the report is placed for the perusal of
the Board. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report confirms that the total issued and the listed capital is in
agreement with the total number of sharesin physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized form held
with CDSL&NSDL.

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) is under the Chairmanship of Mr. Parasmal Doshi,
Whole-time Director of the Company. The Composition of the CSR Committee is in accordance with Section 135 of the
CompaniesAct,2013. The Committee consists of 4 (Four) Directorsas members.

During the financial year 2021-22, 2 (Two) Meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held and the
details of attendance of the members at the Meeting are asfollows:

¥ - Present

Name & Meeting Date
Mr. Parasmal Doshi  : v v
Chairman : :
Mr. Dhanpal Doshi  : v e
Member : :

Mr. Rajendra Bandi :
Member : v : v
Mr. Om Prakash Gauba : v e
: Member : : :
y |

The Company Secretary ofthe Company actsasthe Secretary to the Committee.

The Annual Report formulated for Corporate Social Responsibility is forming the part of the Board's Report as
“Annexure-D"” and the CSR policy may be accessed on the Company's Website at the below mentioned link:
http:/www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

8. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
a) The Composition of the Risk Management Committee is in accordance with Regulation 21 of the Securities

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Committee
consists of 4 (Four) members, 3 (Three) of which are Directors.

During the financial year 2021-22, 1 (One) Meeting of Risk Management Committee was held and the details of
attendance ofthe membersat the Meeting are as follows:

¥ - Present

Name & Meeting Date

Mr. Parasmal Doshi
Chairman

Mr. Dhanpal Doshi v
Member :

© Mr. Om Prakash Gauba v
: Member :

Mr. Deepak Sharma v
Member :
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b) Risk Management Committee has been set up for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk
management plan for the Company and such other functionsasit may deemfit.

c) Company hasformulated a Risk Management Policy to manage the risks effectively and the policy formulated
forsuch purpose may be accessed on the Company's website at the below mentioned link:
http://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/Risk-Management-Policy_20.09.2018.pdf

9. GENERAL BODY MEETING

I. General Meeting
Annual General Meeting (“AGM"):

Video Conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio-Visual Means

2020-21 . Wednesday, . 0500 P.M. . (OAVM) deemed to be
29" September, 2021 : : conducted at the
. Registered Office
................................................................................ ofthe Company
: Video Conferencing (VC) /
. Other Audio-Visual Means
2019-20 " Wednesday, ;0500 P.M. (OAVM) deemed to be
30" September, 2020 : : conducted at the
Registered Office
of the Company
Brilliant Convention Centre,
5018-19 . Saturday, : : B0t No. £
28" September, 2019 © 12:00 P.M. : scherme No.78-l1
. Vijay Nagar, Indore (M.P.)
b) Extraordinary General Meeting:

No extraordinary general meeting of the memberswas held during FY 2021-22

c) Special Resolutions:
The following are the details of special resolutions passed at the last three AGM.

Summary of Special Resolutions Passed

increasing the remuneration of Mr. Dhanpal Doshi, Managing Director cum CEO of the

Company:
. ®  |ncreasing the remuneration of Mr. Parasmal Doshi, Chairman cum Whole Time
2020-21 . Director of the company
. ® |ncreasing the remuneration of Mr. Rajendra Bandi, Whole Time Director of the
Company

® Re-appointmentof Mr. Dhanpal Doshias Managing Director cum Chief Executive
: Officer ofthe Company.
2019-20 e Re-appointment of Mr. Parasmal Doshias Whole Time Director of the Company, being
liable toretire by rotation.
e Re-appointmentofMr.Rajendra Bandias Whole Time Director of the Company, being
liable toretire by rotation.

......................................................................................................

: e Re-appointmentof Mr.Om Prakash Gaubaasan Independent Director ofthe
2018-19 : Company.
. ® Re-appointmentof Mr.Sunil Kumar Soniasan Independent Director of the Company.
e Re-appointmentof Mrs.Shobha Santosh Choudharyasan Independent Director of
the Company.
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Il. Details of special resolutions passed through postal ballot, the persons who conducted the

postal ballot exercise, details of the voting pattern and procedure of postal ballot:
No postal Ballot was conducted during the Financial Year 2021-22

lll. Details of special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:
None of the businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM requires passing of a special resolution through
postal ballot.

10.MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The Board believes that effective commmunication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance.
The Company regularly interacts with Shareholders through multiple channels of communication such as Company's
website and stipulated communications to Stock Exchanges where the Company's shares are listed for
announcement of Financial Results, Annual Report, Company's policies, notices and outcome of Meetings, etc.

a) Financial Results

The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual financial results of the Company were submitted to the Stock Exchanges and
were published in one English daily newspaper circulating in the whole and in one daily newspaper published in the
vernacular language, where the registered office of the Company is situated. Simultaneously, they were also uploaded
onthe Company's website. Presently, the same are not sent to the shareholders separately.

b) Newspapers wherein results are normally published

The Financials Results are published in Free Press (English newspaper) and Choutha Sansar (Hindi newspaper) in
compliance with Regulation 47 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

c) Website

IThe Company has a website addressed as www.indothai.co.in. It contains the basic information about the Company -
details of its business, financial information, Shareholding Pattern, compliance with Corporate Governance, contact
information of the designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor
grievances and such other details as may be required under sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 from time to time. The
Company ensuresthatthe contents of this website are periodically updated.

d) NEAPS and BSE Listing Centre

For the beneficial interest of Shareholders and public at large, periodic compliances covering Notices of the Board and
General Meetings, Quarterly / Annual Results, Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, Reconciliation of
Share Capital Audit Report, Certificate under Regulation 7(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, agreement between the Company & Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent, and all other essential information updated and amended relating to the Company are
uploaded on the Company's website www.indothai.co.in and electronically filed to NSE and BSE through their web
based application NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS), BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing
Centre (BSE Listing Centre).

e) SCORES

Securities and Exchange Board of India Complaints Redress System (SCORES) is a web based centralized grievances
redressal system where upon the investors complaints are processed. This enables the market intermediaries and
listed companiestoreceive the complaints online from investors, redress such complaints and report redressal online.
The salient features of this system are: Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports
(ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current
status. Thereisnocomplaintlodged by any Shareholderin the last three years through SCORES orin any other way.

f) No official news was released by the Company in financial year 2021-22

g) No presentation was made by the Company to institutional investors or to the analysts.
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Annual General : 28"Annual General Meeting

Meeting . Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing / Other Audio- :
a. . Date, Time - Visual Means (OAVM) deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company :
: , : :

: and Mode : assetoutinthe Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

1% April, 2022 to 31" March, 2023 :
Tentative Calendar for Financial Year Ending 31" March, 2023 for consideration of quarterly :
: + Financial Results are asfollows: .
b.: Financial Year : . Q1(30.06.2022) - 2™ Week of August, 2022*
. . Q2 (30.09.2022) - 2" Week of November, 2022*
Q3(31.12.2022) - 2™ Week of February, 2023*
Q4 (31.03.2023) - 2™ Week of May, 2023*
Tentative date for Annual General Meeting - September, 2023*
*or such other date as may be allowed by SEBI/MCA.

c . Date of Book . Saturday, 24" September, 2022 to Tuesday, 27" September, 2022 (both daysinclusive)
* ! Closure :
d. Dividend . Dividend, ifdeclared, will be paid on or after 30" September, 2022
. Payment Date
Listing on The Company's shares were listed on 02™ November, 2011 at BSE & NSE.
e Stock Exchanges . 1. BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001
: Phones : 91-22-22721233/4, 91-22-66545695 (Hunting)
. Fax:91-22-22721919
CIN: L67120MH2005PLC155188
. Email: corp.comm@bseindia.com
2. National Stock Exchange of India Limited
. Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G. Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) Mumbai — 400051
: Tel No: (022) 26598100 - 8114
 Fax No: (022) 26598120
CIN: U67120MH1992PLC069769
. Email:secretarialdept@nse.co.in
Stock Code : BSE:533676; NSE:INDOTHAI
Symbol ISIN - INE337MO01013
Registrar & Share . Bigshare Services Private Limited
9 . Transfer Agent 1% Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri
: . East,Mumbai- 400059, Maharashtra
. Tel: +91-22-62638200
Emailinvestor@bigshareonline.com
. Website: www.bigshareonline.com
h) Share Transfer System

Shares lodged for transfers are normally processed within seven days from the date of lodgment, if the documents are valid in all
respects. All requests for dematerialization of securities are processed and the confirmation is given to the Depositories within three
days. Grievances received from the Shareholders and other miscellaneous correspondence on change of address, mandates, etc. are
processed by the Share Transfer Agent of the Company within three days. However, no request for dematerialization of securities and
no grievanceswere received from the Shareholdersduring the financial year 2021-22.

Certificates are being obtained and submitted to Stock Exchanges, on half-yearly basis, from a Practicing Company Secretary towards
due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company within the due dates, in terms of Regulation 40(9) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Certificates have also been received
from a Practicing Company Secretary and submitted to the Stock Exchanges, on a quarterly basis, for timely dematerialization of
shares of the Company and for reconciliation of the share capital of the Company, as required under Regulation 76 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018.

The Company, as required under Regulation 85(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, has designated the e-mail ID, namely compliance@indothai.co.in for redressal of investors'
grievances.

1) Shareholding pattern of the company as on 31" March, 2022.
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held

... Promoters . . e e ;
............. Indian 727897 i 72179
Foreign : Nil Nil :
Sub-Total (A) 72,17,897 72.179
S Public
o Banks and Financial Institutions : NI NIl
o Corporate Bodies 1 n2909 i [N B
: Clearing Members : 74079 : 0.74
: Indian Individuals 24,22 551 2422
o NRIs/OCBs/Flls . . . . . : .. . .5143 . . 005
o HUF 167,421 oo 67 .
Market Maker Nil Nil
Sub-Total (B) 27,82,103 27.82
1,00,00,000 100.00

Grand Total (A+B)

j) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2022

No. of Shares No. of Holders | NO- of Holders | g, oholding | Shareholding
(in %) (In %)

86.4189 : 347688 : 3.4769

.....................................................................................

....................................................................................
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k) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

Total Folios | No. of Shares Holding
. In %
SR R :

In' Dematerialized form 5858 92.93.075 9293
with CDSL : : :
.............. 2 Domaterializad formy T
2 1500 7.07
............ withNSDL G o Teslo e
3 In Physical form 1 15 0.00
TOTAL 4359 : 1,00,00,000 100.00

Ason 31" March,2022,99.99% of the total equity share capital was held in dematerialized form with the NSDL and CDSL. The market lot is
oneshareandthetradingin equity shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form.

1) Market Price Data of Company's Shares

April-21 6260 : 4710 62.50 . 4755
May-21 56.70 . 50.00 56.25 49.00
June-21 5515 50.10 54.80 49.60
..... JUIy21730050207290 51oo
| Aug-21 86.00 67.60 86.35 68.00
. Sep-21 : 91.35 79.05 © 9100 . 7860 .
Oct-21 109.70 85.05 109.55 86.05
L Nov21 ......... | 4500 ....... 1032 .O ......... 144 ;35 ........ 102 .8 .o. o
. Dec-21 . 352.50 118.00 | 352.80 116.25
' Jan-22 . 49585 330.65 496.20 32765
. Feb-22 . 355.60 257.75 | 357.25 256.40
s Ma rCh 22 ........ ; .9.7.7.(; ....... 28410 ........ 396 35 ........ 28650 o

m) Share Price performance in comparison to broad based indices BSE Sensex & NSE Nifty

BSE (% change) NSE (% change)

ITSL SENSEX ITSL NIFTY

8.0% L 75.49%

The above changes in percentage is based on the closing price of the T* day of financial year (i.e. T* April, 2021) and last trading
day of financial year (i.e. 31 March, 2022)
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PERFORMANCE OF THE SHARE PRICE OF THE COMPANY IN
COMPARISON TO THE BSE SENSEX

30000 ITSL Share Price & BSE Sensex Movement
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® ITSL @ SENSEX

The monthly closing prices of the SENSEX and ITSL's equity shares have been indexed to 100
as on T April, 2021.

------------------------------

PERFORMANCE OF THE SHARE PRICE OF THE COMPANY IN
COMPARISON TO THE NSE NIFTY
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® ITSL @ NIFTY

The monthly closing prices of the NIFTY and ITSL's equity shares have been indexed to 100 as
on T April, 2021.
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n) Corporate Benefits to Investors

Dividend declared for the last 3years are asfollows:

Dividend per Equity

Financial Year Dividend Declaration
Date
2020-21 . 29" September, 2021
: 2019-20 )
2018-19 28" September, 2019

R R R T T T T T

*Dividend paid @10% on the paid-up value of Rs.10/- per share.

Share* (Rs.)

o) Outstanding Global Depository Receipts (GDRs)/American Depository Receipts (ADRs)/Warrants or any convertible

instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments in the past and hence, as on 31" March, 2022, the
Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

p) Plant Locations

The Company does not have ambit in any manufacturing sector and hence does not have any manufacturing plant. Therefore, this

clauseisnotapplicable onthe Company.

In the view of the nature of the Company's business (i.e. Share Broking Services), the Company operates from its branches and

authorized persons'locationin India.

q) Address for Correspondence:

Registered Office: Compliance Officer:

Indo Thai Securities Limited Mr. Sanjay Kushwah

“Capital Tower”, 2™ Floor, Company Secretary cum

Plot Nos. 169A-171, PU-4, Compliance Officer

Scheme No.-54, Indo Thai Securities Limited
Indore- 452010, Madhya Pradesh. Capital Tower, 2™ Floor, Plot Nos.
Phone: 0731-4255800 169A-171, PU-4, Scheme No.-54,
Email._indothaigroup@indothai.co.in Indore, 452010, Madhya Pradesh
Website: www.indothai.co.in Phone: 0731-4255813

Email: compliance@indothai.co.in

12. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:
Bigshare Services Private Limited
1* Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,
Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai-
400059, Maharashtra

Tel: +91-22-62638200
Email:._investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

a) Materially Significant Related Party Transactions

A related-party transaction is a deal or arrangement between two parties who are joined by a pre-existing business
relationship or common interest. All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the
business and on arm's length basis. The Company presents a statement of all related party transactions before the
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis for review and recommendation to the Board for their approval, specifying the
nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions. Transactions with related parties are entered in a
transparent manner in the interest of the Company as utmost priority. There are no significant related party
transactions, monetary transactions or relationships between the Company and its Directors, the management,
subsidiaries or relatives except as disclosed in the Note No. 39 of financial statements of this report for the year ended

31" March, 2022.

As required under Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with
Related Party Transactions. The policy may be accessed on the Company's Website at the below mentioned link:
http://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions_30.06.2021.pdf
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b) Instances of Non-Compliance & Penalties during the last 3years Amount in Rs.

Regulatory Particulars of F.Y. F.Y.

Body Non- Compliance 2021-22 2020-21

© Observations on regular Inspection
NSE - of Books of Accounts and Documents

Adverse findings in Half Yearly Internal
* Audit Report(s)

: Observations on regular Inspection 50991
. of Books of Accounts and Documents

BSE © Adverse findings in Half Yearly Internal
© Audit Report(s)

: Observations on regular Inspection - _
: of Books of Accounts and Documents

Adverse findings in Half Yearly Internal : :
: COMMODITlES§ Audit Report(s)

..............................................................................................................

Suo Moto filed compounding application
NCLT/RD - for offence u/s 621A of Companies - - -
: Act, 1956 /441 of Companies Act, 2013 H

c) Whistle Blower Policy

The Board has adopted Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for employees to
report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of
conduct. This Policy has been adopted by the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in order to report
unethical behaviour and bring it to notice of the Management respectively. None of them have been denied access
pertaining to the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company. The Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer of the
Company is designated as the Vigilance Officer to hear the grievances of employees and to take necessary steps to
resolve the issues, if any, arising during the period under review. The Policy also provides for adequate safeguard
against victimisation of Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and provides for the access to Mr. Om Prakash
Gauba, Chairman of the Audit Commmittee of the Company.

Our Company believes in conducting its business and working with all its Stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers and Shareholders in an ethical and lawful manner by adopting highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. This ensures a healthy and hassle-free working
environmentin the Company. The Company isintolerable to such issues and ready to take strict actions against such
graveact.

The Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place/suspected to have taken place, misuse or abuse of
authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of Company rules, manipulations, negligence causing danger to public
health and safety, misappropriation of monies, and other matters or activity on account of which the interest of the
Company isaffected and formally reported by whistle blowers concerning itsemployees.
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No personnel were denied accessto the Audit Committee of the Company.

The policy may be accessed on the Company's Website at the below mentioned link:
http://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Vigil-Mechanism-Policy_06.05.2017.pdf

d) Compliance with Mandatory / Non-mandatory requirements

The Company hasadhered to all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance norms as prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Specifically, your Company confirms compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulations17
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The non-mandatory requirements have been adopted to
theextentandinthe mannerasstated atthe appropriate positionsinthisreport.

e) Subsidiary and Weblink for Material Subsidiary Policy
During the financial year 2021-22, Indo Thai Realties Limited, Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Limited & Femto Green
Hydrogen Limited were the three Subsidiary Companies.

Indo Thai Realties Limited was incorporated on 1st March, 2013 as a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Indo Thai Securities
Limited and ITSL has invested Rs. 7,97,87,000/- (Rupees Seven Crores Ninety-Seven Lakhs Eighty-Seven Thousand only)
as subscription to the Memorandum of Association. Mr. Parasmal Doshi, Mr. Om Prakash Gauba, Mr. Mayur
Rajendrabhai Parikh and Mr. Dhanpal Doshi are holding office as Directors of the Company. Ms. Bhumika Saxena has
resigned from her services as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 03" April, 2022.

Femto Green Hydrogen Limited was incorporated on 23 December, 2021 as a Subsidiary of Indo Thai Securities Limited
and ITSL has invested Rs. 3079500/- (Rupees Thirty Lakh Seventy Nine Thousand Five Hundred only) as subscription to
the Memorandum of Association. Mr. Parasmal Doshi, Nandan Kundetkar Vinayakrao, Dhanpal Doshi and Shobha
Santosh Choudhary are holding office as Directors of the Company.

Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Limited was incorporated on 20" February, 2017 as a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Indo Thai
Securities Limited and ITSL has invested Rs. 1,25,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Twenty-Five Lakhs only) in the Company.
Mr. Dhanpal Doshi, Mr. Sarthak Doshi, Mr. Sunil Kumar Soniand Mr. Rajendra Bandi are holding office as Directors of the
Company.

The minutes of the Board Meetings of Unlisted Subsidiary Company/ies of ITSL are periodically placed before the Board
and financial results of the subsidiary company/ies are reviewed by the Audit Committee/Board with consolidated
financial results of the Company on quarterly basis.

Inaccordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a policy for determining Material Subsidiary and the
same has been hosted on the website of the Company at the web link:
http:/www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Policy-for-Material-Subsidiary_15.05.2019.pdf

f) Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

The Company has not dealt in commodity for 2021-22 or hedging commodity activities for 2021-22 and therefore, there
was no need to take forward cover in respect of its foreign currency exposure for import of raw materials and traded
goodsduring the financial year ended 31" March, 2022.

g) Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company
Total fees of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) for financial year 2021-22 for all services, was paid by the Company and
its Subsidiarieson a consolidated basis to the Statutory Auditors.

h) Details of Adoption of non - mandatory requirement

The Board of Directors consisting of persons with considerable professional expertise and experience, provides
leadership and guidance to the management. Half of Directors in the Board are Non-Executive Independent Directors
toensure integrity, transparency and proper conductin the interest of Stakeholder.

1) Certificate from company secretary in practice

A certificate has been received from Kaushal Ameta & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.
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j)Shareholder Rights

The quarterly/half-yearly /annual results of the Company are published in English and Vernacular newspapers and are
also hosted on the Company's website namely www.indothai.co.in and at the official website of the Stock Exchanges,
where the shares of the Company are listed /traded, as soon as the results are approved by the Board.

k) Separate post of Chairperson and Managing Director/ CEO
Mr. Parasmal Doshi is the Chairperson of the Company and Mr. Dhanpal Doshi is the Managing Director of the
Company.

1) Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditor has direct access to the Audit Committee and presents their Internal Audit observations to the
Audit Committee.

m) Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report.

n) CEO and CFO Certification

The Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company have
certified tothe Board pertaining to financial and other matters, in accordance with Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of
Schedule Il of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, for the financial year ended 31" March, 2022.

o) Risk Management

Risk managementisembedded in your Company's operating framework. Your Company believes that managing risks
helps in maximizing returns. The Company's approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive and includes
periodic review of such risks and a framework for mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks. The risk
management framework is reviewed periodically by the Board and the Audit Commmittee. The Company has laid down
procedures to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimization procedures, to ensure that Executive
management controls risk through means of properly defined framework.

p) Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

In compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prevention of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as
amended till date, the Company has a comprehensive code of conduct and the same is being strictly adhered to by the
Directors, Senior Management and other persons covered by this code. Pursuant thereof, the Company as a listed
Company and market intermediary has formulated and adopted a code for prevention of Insider Trading including
Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, incorporating the
requirements in accordance with the regulations, clarifications and circulars and the same are updated as and when
required. The Company regularly follows closure of trading window prior to the publication of price sensitive
information. The Company has been informing the Directors, Senior Management and other persons covered by the
code about the same and advising them not to trade in Company's Securities, during the closure of trading window
period.

q) Internal Complaints Committee and Policy against Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

In order to provide and ensure safe and secure working environment to women in the organization, the Company
constituted the Internal Complaints Committee in the Board Meeting held on 14" May, 2015 and the Board has
modified the same in the Board Meeting held on 12" February, 2021, in adherence of the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder,
consisting of the optimum number of the membersincluding Presiding Officer as Woman. The Company on periodical
basis keeps a checklist on such acts and an immediate response is given to such happenings. Company has also
formulated and implemented a Policy against Sexual Harassment of Women, the same has been hosted on the
website of the Company attheweblink:
http://www.indothai.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Policy-Against-Sexual-Harrasment_12.02.2021.pdf

Disclosure in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal Act, 2013):

e Number of complaintsfiled during the financial year- Nil
e Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year —Nil
e Number of complaints pending ason end of the financial year- Nil

r) Audit Qualification
The Statutory Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 are unqualified.
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s) Listing Fee & Custodian Fee

The Company has paid Listing Fee for the financial year 2021-22 to the Stock Exchanges on which the equity shares of
the Company are listed. Company has also paid Issuer / Custodian Fee for folios maintained by National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited for the financial year 2021-22.

t) Electronic Voting
The Company providesfacility of electronic voting to Company's Shareholders; tripartite agreement was executed with
Company, Depository and Registrar & Transfer Agenttofinalize the termsand conditions of voting system.

u) Non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report
The Company hascomplied with all requirements of Corporate Governance Report for the financial year 2021-22.

v)Disclosures of Compliance

The Company hascomplied with all the provisions specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation
(2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 for the financial year 2021-22.
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DECLARATION ON ADHERENCE WITH COMPANY'S
CODE OF CONDUCT

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted Code of Conduct for all the members of Board of Directors, Senior
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dlsclosure Requwements) Regulations, 2015, and the members of
Board of Directors, Senior Management, Officers and Employees of the Company have affirmed compliance with
Code of Conduct for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022.

Date: 12" August, 2022 For Indo Thai Securities Limited
Place: Indore

Dhanpal Doshi
(Managing Director cum CEO)
DIN: 00700492
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM CEO & CFO

[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) and Part B of Schedule Il of Securities and Exchange Board of India

To,

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

The Board of Directors,
Indo Thai Securities Limited

We, Dhanpal Doshi (Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer) and Deepak Sharma (Chief
Financial Officer) of Indo Thai Securities Limited hereby certify that:

a.

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year

ended 31st March, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

b.

1 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statementsthat might be misleading;
(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the

Companyduring theyearwhich are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

C..

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial

reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d.

We have indicated tothe Auditorsand the Audit Committee:

1) significantchangesininternal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosedinthe notestothefinancial statements;and

(3) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal
control system over financial reporting.

However, during the year there were no such changes andinstances.
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Dhanpal Doshi Deepak Sharma
Date: 12" August, 2022 (Managing Director (Chief Financial Officer)
Place: Indore Cum Chief Executive Officer)
DIN: 00700492 PAN: AUIPS4819F
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CERTIFICATE OF NON- DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para-C clause (10)(i) of the Securities Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members

Indo Thai Securities Limited,
Capital Tower, 2™ Floor,

Plot Nos.169A-171, PU-4,

Scheme No.54, Indore, M.P.- 452010

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of Indo Thai Securities Limited having CIN: L67120MP1995PLC008959 and having registered office at
Capital Tower, 2nd Floor, Plot Nos. 169A-171, PU-4, Scheme No. 54, Indore (M.P.)- 452010 (hereinafter referred
to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company &its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directorson the
Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Name of the Director Date of Appointment
in Company

Mr. Parasmal Doshi : 00051460 - 01/10/2010
...... 2 Mr Dhanpa| Dosh,oo7oo49219/o1/1995
R 3 ...... . Mr Ra_]end raBa nd| ................. 00051 441 ............ : 9/01/ 1995 .......
: e 4 o Mr 5un|| Kumar Son| .............. 00508423 ........... 2 8/03/2002 .......
...... 5 Mr Omprakash Gana0005923129/01/2005
6. Mrs. Shobha Santosh 06934418 20/09/2014
Choudhary

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on my
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 08" August, 2022 For Kaushal Ameta & Co.
Place: Indore

Kaushal Ameta (Proprietor)

Practicing Company Secretary

Mem. No. F-8144, CP No. - 9103

UDIN : FO08144D000760753
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of Indo Thai Securities Limited
(CIN No. L67120MP1995PLC008959)

Opinion

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Indo Thai Securities Limited ("the Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
acceptedin India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2022, profit, total comprehensive income, changes
inequity and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Thereisno keyaudit matter to be coommunicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor'sreport thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtainedinthe audit, or otherwise appearsto be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothingtoreportinthisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgmentsand estimatesthatarereasonable and prudent;and design,implementation and maintenance of adequate

Standalone Financial Statlements 74



IndoThai 28" Annual Report 2021-22

trade with confidence

internalfinancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether duetofraudorerror.

In preparing the financial statements, the managementisresponsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative buttodoso.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceisa high level of assurance butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identifyand assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Concludeontheappropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
eventsor conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achievesfair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence,and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such commmunication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
i. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Governmentin
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs3
and 4 ofthe Order.

ii. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have soughtand obtained all the information and explanationswhich to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appearsfrom ourexamination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of accounts maintained for the purpose or preparation of the financial statements.

d.Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e.Onthe basisofthe written representationsreceived from the directorsas on March 31,2022 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2022 from being appointed asa
director interms of Section164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure-B".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
tothe explanationsgivento us:

i.The Company has no pending litigationsonitsfinancial position inits Standalone Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were noamounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

h. 1. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the noted of the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loans or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s)
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries;

Il. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
ultimate beneficiaries;and

I1l. Based on audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (I) and (I1)
containany material misstatement.

i. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company isin compliance of section 123 of the Act.
j. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its managing director during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

For SPARK & Associates Chartered AccountantsLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.005313C/C400311

CA Chandresh Singhvi
Partner

Membership No. 436593
UDIN: 22436593AJEYLGT1123

Place: Indore
Date:18" May,2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone financial Statements of Indo Thai
Securities Limited

The annexure referred to the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the company on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31,2022, we report that:

| a) i. The said Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plantand Equipment.
ii. The company generally maintained proper records showing full particulars ofintangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment referred to in Note no. 11 of financial statements have been physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals (covering all the assets in a period of three years), which
in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the said Company and nature of its assets. As
informed to us, no material discrepancy was noticed on such physical verification.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the title deeds ofimmovable properties are held in the name of the company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the said company has not revalued its Property,
Plantand Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder as details
provided by management.

Il. a)Asexplainedto usthe stock of sharesduring the year was in demat form and management has verified the
same from the demat account statement. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. The
company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no discrepancies were noticed on verification
between electronic records and book records.

b) As explained to us, and information provided to us. During any point of time of the year, company has not
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial

institution on the basis of security of current asset.
I1l. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made investment in,

provided any guarantee or security or granted any loan or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, accordingly this clause is not applicable
tothe said Company.

IV.In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the loans made.

V.The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as governed by the provision of section 73to 76 or
any other relevant provision of the Companies Act,2013 and rules framed their under.

VI.The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost record under section 148(1) of the Act, for
any ofthe servicesrendered by the company. Accordingly reporting under thisclause is not applicable.

VIl. a) According tothe information and explanations given to usand on the basis of our examination of records of
the company, it is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
Provident fund, Employee's state insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Duty of customs, Duty of Excise, Value
added tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According the Information and
explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31" March, 2022, for a period of more
than sixmonthsfrom the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or

other statutory dueswhich have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes.
VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transaction that are not recorded in

books of accounts have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment under

income taxact,1961(43 of 1961). Hence, this clause is not applicable.

IX. @) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to
us, the Company did not default in repayment of loans or borrowing from any lender during the year.
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company is not declared as willful defaulter by
bankorfinancial institution or other lender;

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
obtained anyterm loans. Accordingly, reporting under the clause isnotapplicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by the Company.
Accordingly, reporting under thisclause isnot applicable.

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
jointventures.

f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.

X. a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph (x) of the orderis not applicable.

b) The company has made not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

Xl. a)Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under subsection (12) of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during theyear.

XIl. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company.Accordingly, paragraph (xii) of the orderis not applicable.

XIll. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

XIV. 3a) In our opinion the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.
XV. On the basis of information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactionswith directors or personsconnected with him during the financial year.
XVI. a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence this clause is not applicable
tothe Company.

b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, the clauseisnotapplicable.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the clause is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Company
does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the clause isnot applicable.
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XVII.Based on our examination the company has notincurred any cash losses in the financial year 2021-22and in
preceding financial year,and hence, thisclauseis notapplicable.

XVIII. Thereisnoresignation of the statutory auditorsduring the year. Accordingly, the clause is not applicable.

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty found as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee norany assurance thatall liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
willgetdischarged by the Company asand when they fall due.

XX. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other than ongoing projects, and
transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135
ofthesaid Actare notapplicabletothe company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to transfer any
amountto specialaccountin compliance with provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

xXi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company makes consolidated financial
statement.

For SPARK & Associates Chartered AccountantsLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311

CA Chandresh Singhvi
Partner
Membership No. 436593

Place: Indore
Date: 18" May, 2022
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Indo
Thai Securities Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indo Thai Securities Limited ("the Company")
as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
endedonthatdate.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibilitiesinclude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing (the “Standards”), issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
onthe Company'sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changesinconditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reportingissued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SPARK & Associates Chartered AccountantsLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.005313C/C400311

CA Chandresh Singhvi
Partner
Membership No. 436593

Place: Indore
Date:18" May,2022
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 2 127.98 597.57
(ii) Bank balance other than (i) above 3 4,727.05 2,506.23
(iii) Securities for trade 4 2,053.41 958.27
(iv) Receivables
(a) Trade Receivables 5 264.75 353.39
(b) Other Receivables - -
(v) Loans 6 359.67 101.77
(vi) Investments 7 2,344.96 2,315.51
(vii) Other financial assets 8 661.99 577.26
Total Financial Assets 10,539.81 7,409.99
2 Non Financial Assets
(i) Current tax assets (Net) 9 - 13.29
(ii) Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 3.01 -
(iii) Property, plant and equipment 1Ll 201.02 217.06
(iv) Other intangible assets 1Ll 0.15 0.34
(v) Other non financial assets 12 34.60 87.44
Total Non Financial Assets 238.78 318.13
TOTAL ASSETS 10,778.59 7,728.12
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
(i) Payables
(a) Trade Payables 13

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises 4,126.66 2,167.26
(b) Other Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises - -

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -

(ii) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 14 147.69 22.67
(iii) Deposits 15 43.82 41.34
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 57.42 41.04
Total Financial Liabilities 4,375.58 2,272.30
2 Non-financial Liabilities
(i) Current tax liabilities (Net) 17 55.15 -
(i) Provisions 18 4.07 -
(iii) Other non financial liabilities 19 - .76
(iv) Deferred tax Liabilities 10 - 40.31
Total Non Financial Liabilities 59.22 52.07
3 Equity
(i) Equity share capital 20 1,000.00 1,000.00
(i) Other equity 21 5,343.78 4,403.75
Total Equity 6,343.78 5,403.75
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10,778.59 7,728.12
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai Securities Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311 Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi
Managing Director & CEO Chairman & Whole Time Director
Chandresh Singhvi DIN: 00700492 DIN: 00051460
Partner
Membership No. 436593
Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah
Place: Indore Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &
Date: 18" May, 2022 Compliance Officer

UDIN:22436593AJEYLG1123
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STANDALONE PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations
(a) Interest income 22 230.24 185.97
(b) Dividend income 23 27.29 Nn.64
(c) Fees and commission income 24
- Brokerage income 480.96 443,01
- Income from services 0.97 4.75
(d) Net gain on Fair Value Changes 25 1,222.08 1,523.09
(e) Sale of services 26 23.62 19.73
(f) Others - -
(1) Total Revenue from operations 1,985.16 2,188.19
(1) Other Income 27 10.05 75.28
(111) Total Income (1+11) 1,995.20 2,263.47
Expenses
(a) Finance cost 28 85.44 83.63
(b) Fees and commission expense 29 206.19 124.70
(c) Net loss on fair value changes - -
(d) Employee benefits expenses 30 270.27 211.34
(e) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 31 28.31 33.87
(f) Other expenses 32 213.26 172.02
(IV) Total Expenses 803.47 625.56
(V) Profit/(loss) before tax (111 -1V) 1,191.73 1,637.91
(VI) Tax expense: 33
(a) Tax Expenses 194.65 (112)
(b) Deferred tax (43.22) 389.57
(VII) Profit/(loss) after Tax excluding impact of changes in tax rate 1,040.31 1,249.45
One time impact on Tax Expenses(current & deferred) due to change in tax Rate 34 - 218.95
(VIII) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,040.31 1,030.50
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined employee benefit
plans (0.38) 18.57
(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 0.10 (4.67)
(IX) Other Comprehensive Income (0.28) 13.90
(X) Total comprehensive income for the year (VIII+IX)
(comprising Profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive income for
the year) 1,040.03 1,044.39
Earnings per equity share:(Face value Rs. 10/- per share) 35
Basic (in Rs.) 10.40 10.30
Diluted (in Rs.) 10.40 10.30
Significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai Securities Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005313C/C4003 Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi

Managing Director & CEO Chairman & Whole Time Director
Chandresh Singhvi DIN: 00700492 DIN: 00051460
Partner

Membership No. 436593

Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah
Place: Indore Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &
Date: 18" May, 2022 Compliance Officer

UDIN:22436593AJEYLGI23
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Cash Flow from Operating Acti

Profit before tax 1,191.73 1,637.91
Add /(less): Adjustments

Depreciation / Amortization 28.31 33.87
Interest expenses 85.44 83.63
Net (gain)/loss arising on financial assets measured at FVTPL (1,222.08) (1,523.09)
Dividend income (27.29) (1.64)
Interest income (230.24) -
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) - -

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes (174.13) 220.68
Adjustment for:

(Increase)/ Decrease in other bank balances (0.80) (312.94)
(Increase)/ Decrease in securities for trade (1,095.15) (612.32)
(Increase)/ Decrease in receivables 88.64 733.39
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets (84.73) 127.57
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non financial assets 52.84 (6.93),
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 1,959.40 474.58
Increase/ (Decrease) in deposits 2.48 (0.38)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 16.39 7.6
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 4.07 (8.23)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non financial liabilities (1.76) (6.75),
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 757.25 615.83
Direct tax paid (126.59) (13.28),
Net cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities (A) 630.67 602.55
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Payments made/received for purchase/sale of PPE/ capital expenditure (12.07) (10.03)
(Purchase) / Sale of Investments (1,027.40) 310.55
Loans - Financial Assets (257.89) (44.19)
Net proceeds (to)/from financial asset 230.24

Dividend income 27.29 11.64
Net cash from/ (used in) Investing Activities (B) (1,039.83) 268.97
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowings 125.02 (671.35)
Interest paid (85.44) (83.63),
Dividend and Dividend distribution tax (100.00) -
Net cash from/ (used in) Financing Activities (C) (60.42) (754.98)|
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (469.59) 116.53
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 597.57 481.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 127.98 597.57
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Cash in hand 2.76 2.45
Balance with scheduled banks - -
Current account 125.22 594.15
Fixed deposit - 0.97

Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 127.98 597.57

Standalone Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005313C/C4003

Chandresh Singhvi
Partner
Membership No. 436593

Place: Indore

Date: 18" May, 2022
UDIN:22436593AJEYLGTI23
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For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai

Securities Limited

Dhanpal Doshi

Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 00700492

Deepak Sharma

Chief Financial Officer

Parasmal Doshi
Chairman & Whole
Time Director
DIN: 00051460

Sanjay Kushwah
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer




I'VA
P4 IndoThai

‘ trade with confidence

28" Annual Report 2021-22

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

A Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid up No. of shares |
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
Issued During the year - -
Changes in equity share capital during the current year - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
Issued During the year - -
Changes in equity share capital during the current year - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 1,00,00,000 1,000.00

B Other Equity
(Rs. In Lakhs)
) Retained General |Securities Capital
Particulars . .
Earnings Reserve | Premium Reserve

Balance as on 31 March, 2020 973.21 - 2,386.15 - 3,359.36
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -
Other Comprehensive Income for the current year 13.90 13.90
Dividends -
Transfer to retained earnings -
Profit for the year 1,030.50 - - 1,030.50
Balance as on 31 March, 2021 2,017.60 - 2,386.15 - 4,403.76
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -
Other Comprehensive Income for the current year (0.28) (0.28)
Dividends (100.00) (100.00)
Transfer to retained earnings -
Profit for the year 1,040.31 - - 1,040.31
Balance as on 31 March, 2022 2,957.63 - 2,386.15 - 5,343.78

As per our report of even date attached

For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311

Chandresh Singhvi
Partner
Membership No. 436593

Place: Indore
Date: 18th May, 2022
UDIN:22436593AJEYLGI123

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Indo Thai Securities Limited

Parasmal Doshi
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00051460

Dhanpal Doshi
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 00700492

Deepak Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Sanjay Kushwah
Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31,2022

Corporate Information

Indo Thai Securities Limited (“ITSL" or the “Company”) carries on the business as stock and share brokers on the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”") and the BSE Limited (“BSE"); depository participants and other related ancillary
services. On September 14, 1995 ITSL received a certificate of registration from the Securities and Exchange Board uf
India (“SEBI") under sub-section 1 of section 12 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 to carry on tke
business as a stock broker. Accordingly, all provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, and Rules
and Regulationsrelating thereto are applicable to the Company. On November 2,2011, the Equity shares of the Company
were listed onthe NSE and the BSE.

1. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Basis of Accounting and Preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard ('Ind AS'). The Company is covered under the definition of NBFC and the Ind AS is
applicable under Phase Il as defined in notification dated March 30, 2016 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA),sincethe companyisa listed company.

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under Sec133 of the Companies Act ("the Act'') read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

These Financial Statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule Il (Division lll) of the Companies Act,
2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). These Financial Statements of the
Company are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR"), which is also the Company's functional currency and all values
areroundedto nearest Lacs upto two decimal places, except otherwise indicated.

The Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 are being authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 18, 2022.

b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that management make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the income and expense for the reporting period. The actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimatesare recognised in the period in which the estimate isrevised and in any future periods affected.

The Company makes certain judgments and estimates for valuation and impairment of financial instruments,
fair valuation of employee stock options, useful life of property, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets and
retirement benefit obligations. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial

statementsare prudentand reasonable.

c) Revenue Recognition

i. Revenue from brokerage activitiesis accounted for on the exchange settlement date of the transaction.

ii. Revenue from issue management, debt syndication, financial advisory services etc.,, is recognized based
onthestage of completion of assignmentsand terms of agreement with the client.

iii. Gains/losses on dealing in securities are recognized on the exchange settlement date of the transaction.
iv.Interestincome isrecognized using the effective interest rate method.

v.Revenue fromdividend isrecognized when theright to receive the dividend is established.
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d) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Measurement atrecognition:

i. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, ifany. Subsequent costsareincluded in the asset's carrying amount.

ii. All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met, and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition forthe intended use.

iii. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

iv. Any gain or loss on disposal of an ite m of property, plant and equipment is recognized in statement of
profitand loss.

Depreciation:
i. Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a Written-Down-Value (WDV)
basis using the ratesarrived at based on the useful lives estimated by management.

ii. Depreciation on assets is provided on a Written Down Method as per the rates prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis from the
date the asset is available for use. Depreciation on sale / deduction from fixed assets is provided for up to the
date ofsale/deduction/scrapping, asthe case may be.

iii. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
arereviewed atthe end of each financial year and changesifany, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Capital Work in Progress:
i. Cost of the assets not ready for intended use, as on reporting date, is shown as capital work in progress.
Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each reporting date are shown as other
non-financial assets.

ii. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work- in-progress until construction and installation is completed
and assetsareready foritsintended use.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of profit and Loss
whentheitemisderecognized.

e) Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assetsare carried at cost lessaccumulated amortization.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated using the straight- line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives and is included in the depreciation and amortization in the
statement of profitand loss.

Intangible asset Useful life / Amortisation Period
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f) Financial instruments

The Company recognizes all the financial assets and liabilities at its fair value on initial recognition; In the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial asset are added to the fair value on initial recognition. The financial assets are accounted on a trade date
basis.

For subsequent measurement, financial assets are categorised into:

Amortised cost: The Company classifies the financial assets at amortised cost if the contractual cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and the assets are held under a business
model to collect contractual cash flows. The gains and losses resulting from fluctuations in fair value are not recognised
forfinancial assets classified inamortised cost measurement category.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): The Company classifies the financial assets as FVOCI if the
contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and the
Company's business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial assets. In case of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI, changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. The
impairment gains or losses, foreign exchange gains or losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. On de-recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is re- classified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. In case of equity
instruments irrevocably designated at FVOCI, gains / losses including relating to foreign exchange, are recognised
through other comprehensive income. Further, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain permanently in equity and are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss on
derecognition.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): The financial assets are classified as FVTPL if these do not meet the criteria for
classifying at amortised cost or FVOCI. Further, in certain cases to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (accounting mismatch), the Company irrevocably designates certain financial instruments at
FVTPL atinitial recognition. In case of financial assets measured at FVTPL, changesin fair value are recognised in profit or
loss.

Profit or Loss on sale of investmentsis determined on the basis of first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis.

Fairvalueisthe price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transactiontosell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability,assuming that market participantsactin theireconomic best interest.

Afairvalue measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
assetinitshighestand best use.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques,assummarized below:

Level1-Thefairvalue hierarchy have been valued using quoted prices forinstrumentsin an active market.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e.derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes
inputsthatare not observable and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation.
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Impairment of financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss model (ECL)
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract
assets and/ or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. At each reporting date, the Company
assesses whether the loans have been impaired. The Company is exposed to credit risk when the customer defaults on
his contractual obligations. For the computation of ECL, the loan receivables are classified into three stages based on the
defaultandtheaging ofthe outstanding.

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related objectively toan
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the excess is written back by reducing the loan impairment
allowance account accordingly. The write-backis recognised in the statement of profitand loss.

For subsequent measurement, financial liability are categorised into:

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction cost that are attributable to the separate
liabilities. All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by
the Company asanacquirerin a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated
asat FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for- trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, tothe amortised cost of a financial liability.

Equity instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instrumentsissued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition:

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid isrecognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

g) Employee Benefits

Gratuity

The Company pays gratuity, a defined benefit plan, to its employees who retire or resign after a minimum period of five
years of continuous service. The Company makes contributions to the LIC Employees Gratuity Fund which is managed
by Life Insurance Company Limited (LIC) for the settlement of gratuity liability.

A defined benefit plan is a post- employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net
obligation in respect of the defined benefit planis calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employee
has earned in exchange of their service in the current and prior periods and discounted back to the current valuation
datetoarrive at the present value of the defined benefit obligation. The defined benefit obligation is deducted from the
fair value of plan assets, to arrive at the net asset/ (liability), which need to be provided for in the books of accounts of the
Company.
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As required by the Ind AS19, the discount rate used to arrive at the present value of the defined benefit obligations is
based on the Indian Government security yields prevailing as at the balance sheet date that have maturity date
equivalenttothetenure of the obligation.

The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results
in a net asset position, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in form of
reductionsin future contributions.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprises of actuarial gains and losses on benefit obligations, the
return on plan assets in excess of what has been estimated and the effect of asset ceiling, if any, in case of over funded
plans. The Company recognizes these items of remeasurements in other comprehensive income and all the other
expenses related to defined benefit plansasemployee benefit expensesin their profitand lossaccount.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed or settlement occurs, the portion of the changed
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment or settlement, is recognized immediately
inthe profitorlossaccountwhenthe planamendment orwhen a curtailment or settlement occurs.

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company is statutorily required
to contribute a specified portion of the basic salary ofan employee to a provident fund as part of retirement benefitstoits
employees. The contributionsduring the year are charged to the statement of profitand loss.

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costsinclude interest expense as per the effective interest rate (EIR) and other costs incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those
tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized asan expense in theyearinwhich theyareincurred.

i) Foreign exchange transactions

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. Transactions in foreign
currency are recorded on initial recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the
statement of profitand lossin the period in which they arise.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate at each reporting period. Income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated at monthly average rates. The resultant exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income in case of foreign operation whose functional currency is different from the
presentation currency and in the statement of profit and loss for other foreign operations. Non-monetary items which
are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

j) Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

As per the requirements of Ind AS 116 the company evaluates whether an arrangement qualifies to be a lease. In
identifying a lease the company uses significantjudgementin assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
andthe applicable discountrate.

The Company determinesthe lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by
an option to extent the lease if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company revises the
lease termifthereisachangeinthe non-cancellable period ofalease.

Company as alessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Right of Use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the
lease commmencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lesseeindismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on whichitislocated.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the
written down value method from the commmencement date over the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for
impairmentwhenever thereisany indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable and impairment loss, if
any, isrecognised in the statement of profitand loss.

Company hasrecognised lease hold land asright of use asset and depreciated over its lease term.

Lease Liability

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.
For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolioasawhole.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due
to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reductionin
the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profitand loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated
with these leases are recognized asan expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating leases

The Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases
previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, is or
contains a lease, at the date of initial application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS
37 immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review, excluded
initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application and used hindsight when
determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease. The Company has used a
single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Company as alessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The
Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease. If an arrangement contains lease and non-
lease components, the Company applies Ind AS115 Revenue from contracts with customersto allocate the consideration
inthe contract.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has elected by class of underlying asset to not recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term
leasesthat have alease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.
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k) Income tax

The income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax incurred by the Company. Income tax expense is
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or OCI, in
which case the tax effect is recognised in equity or OCI. Income tax payable on profitsis based on the applicable tax laws
in each taxjurisdiction and isrecognised as an expense in the period in which profit arises. Current tax is the expected tax
payable/receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates enacted for the reporting period and any
adjustment to tax payable/receivable in respect of previousyears.

Currenttaxassetsand liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) The entity haslegally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and
b) Intends either to settle on a net basis, orto realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purpose and the amounts for tax purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised, for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extentthatitisnolonger probablethatthe related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred taxassetsand liabilities are offset only if:
C) The entity haslegally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities;and
d) The deferred tax assetsand the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority onthe same taxable entity.

The tax effects of income tax losses, available for carry forward, are recognised as deferred tax asset, when it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be set-off.

Additional taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends by the Company are recognised directly in equity at the
sametime asthe liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

I) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with the banks and
short-term investments with an original maturity of three monthsor less,and accrued interest thereon.

m) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at the reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash- generating unit's (“CGU”") fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
downtoitsrecoverable amount.In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses are
recognised in statement of profitand loss.

n) Provisions

Provision isrecognised when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) asaresult of a pasteventand it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate
can be made. Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date, supplemented by experience of similar transactions. These are reviewed at the balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

o) Contingent Liabilities and Assets
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
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control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as a
contingent liability. The existence of a contingent liability isdisclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assetsare neither recognised nor disclosed.

p) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential
equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss
for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

g) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow are reported using Indirect Method, where by profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of transaction of
non cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipt or payments and items ofincome or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flow from operating, investing & financing activities of the
companyissegregated based on the available information.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(@) Cash in hand 2.76 2.45
(b) Balance with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalent)
In current account with banks
- In India with schedule banks 12522 594.15
(c) Others
Fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months
-In India - 0.97
Total 127.98 597.57
3 Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)

As At
March 31, 2022

Particulars

Other bank balance

As At
March 31, 2021

(@) Earmarked Balances with Banks:

- Unpaid Dividend Accounts 4.3] 3.50
(b) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the
borrowings, guarantees, other commitments 472274 2,457.42
(c) Fixed deposits with banks original maturity more than 3 months

-InIndia - 4531
(d) Interest receivable - -

TOTAL 4,727.05 2,506.23
4 Security for trade (Rs. in Lakhs)

As At
March 31, 2022

Particulars

Measured at Fair value through profit and loss
- Securities for trade In India

As At
March 31, 2021

- Equity instruments 2,053.41 958.27
Total (Gross) 2,053.41 958.27
Less: Impairment loss -
Total (Net) 2,053.41 958.27
5 Trade Receivables Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Receivables considered good - Secured 196.88 276.63
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 67.87 76.76
Receivables - creditimpaired 12.70 13.74
Total (Gross) 277.44 367.13
Less: Impairment allowance (12.70) (12.74)
Total (Net) 264.75 353.39
Note : Related party transaction are given in note no. 38
6 Loans (Rs. in Lakhs)

As At
March 31, 2022

Particulars

At amortized cost

As At
March 31, 2021

Loansin India

Loan to Related Party - Unsecured

- Indo Thai Realties Limited 156.35 101.77
- Femto Green Hydrogen Limited 203.31
Total - (Gross) 359.67 101.77
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total - (Net) 359.67 101.77
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7 Investments

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments in India
(A) At fair value through profit and loss
(i) Equity Instruments:
- Quoted and fully paid up
Asian Paints 6.31 2.54
Agri Tech (India) Ltd. - 0.44
Alok Industries 1.80 3.02
Adani Power 0.99 4253
Adani total Gas - 14.42
Arti Industries 14.37 16.48
Adani Enterprises 8293 580.15
Ambika Cotton Mills 4.71 -
Ashoka Buildcon 22.95 -
Available Finance 16.85 -
Balkrishna Industries 4.27 3.38
Britannia Industries 4.88 9.06
Birla Soft - 12.65
Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd. 590 29.25
Biocon Ltd. - 2.45
Bombay Dyeing 19.69 -
Bosch Limited 1.01 -
BSE Ltd 5.66 -
Castrol India Ltd. - 0.25
Colgate-Palmolive India Ltd. - 1.56
Camlin Fine Sciences 139.45 136.24
CSB Bank 57.01 62.88
Central Depository Services (India) 29.61 -
Cosmo Films 5.20 -
Dabur India 5.36 5.41
Data Patterns (India) 0.24 -
Devyani International 1.58 -
Eicher Motors 2.46 2.60
EKI Energy Services 392 -
Gabriel India Ltd. - 4.23
Glenmark Pharmaceuticals 4.42 4.65
HBL Power Systems - 56.70
Hero Motocorp - 5.83
HDFC Bank 22.79 2315
Hindustan Construction Company Ltd. 0.80 0.41
Hindustan Unilever 410 1216
Himatsingka Seide 3.01 -
Indusind Bank Ltd. - 0.95
Indian Railway Catering & Tourism Corporation - 2.64
ITC Limited - 219
Infosys 32.45 274
Indiabulls Housing Finance 0.32 -
Indiabulls Real Estate 10.65 -
Indo Count 0.32 -
Jubilant Pharmova - 10.22
Jubilant Ingrevia - 390
Jain Irrigation 20.43 -
Jaiprakash Power Ventures 6.80 -
KPIT Technologies 6.01 -
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L&T Finance Holdings Ltd. 2.42 2.88
Larsen & Toubro Ltd. 5.30 -
Lupin Ltd. - 2.04
Latent View Analytics 0.49 -
Laxmi Organic Industries 79.75 -
M.R.F Limited 7.15 411
Motherson Sumi 1.63 2.01
Maral Overseas 40 -
Marico Limited 8.23 5.89
MSTC Ltd 6.12 -
Nahar Spinning 3.08 -
Nath Bio-Genes (India) Ltd. - 6.32
Nazara Technologies - 0.34
Nestle India - 515
NBCC (India) Ltd. - 0.35
Oberoi Realty 10.34 -
Orient Paper 0.69 -
Prakash Woollen & Synthetic Mills Ltd. 229.56 -
Prestige Estates Projects nn -
Reliance Industries Ltd. 11.86 14.04
Reliance Power 2.84 -
Rupa & Company 8.32 -
S.S. Infrastructure Development Consultants Ltd. 29.28 12.00
SBI Cards & Payment Services 34.92 -
Shiva Texyarn 2.04 -
Sovereign Gold Bond 2.50% AUG 2028 SR-V 2020-21 (IN0020200161) 47.72 -
State Bank Of India 6.42 -
Sterling and Wilson Renewable Energy 318 -
Suryalakshmi Cotton 4.73 -
Suzlon Energy 13.08 -
Tata Coffee 14.09 -
Tata Elxsi 8.84 -
Tata Power Company 2.39 -
Tata Consultancy Services 4.53 6.36
Tata Steel Ltd. 0.65 0.41
Techindia Nirman Ltd. - 0.10
Trident 2.67 -
United Spirits 0.89 -
Wipro Limited 592 -
Whirlpool of India 472 1.3
Worth Peripherals Ltd. - 2.89
Pidilite Industries - 9.05
Prakash Woollen & Synthetic Mills - 14.53
Punjab National Bank - 5.68
SBI Cards & Payment Services - 4270
Suven Pharmaceuticals 8.66 6.96
Titan Company 2.54 1.56
Usha Martin - 13.22
Suven Life Sciences - 2.47
Zota Health Care 2.98 -
Agri-Tech (India) 1.74 -
Biocon Limited 2.01 -
Castrol India 0.20 -
Colgate-Palmolive India 1.54 -
Gabriel India 4.59 -
Indusind Bank 0.94 -
Nath Bio-Genes (India) 4.49 -
NBCC (India) 0.27 -
Rajasthan Gases 0.01 -
Techindia Nirman 0.48 -
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(i) Investment in Mutual Funds

Aditya Birla Sun Life MIDCAP Fund-Growth 7.63 583
Aditya Birla Sun Life Pure Value Fund - Growth Option 4.83 4.06
Axis Focused 25 Fund - Growth Option 11.53 10.03
Axis Liquid Fund- Growth Option - nmn
Axis Long Term Equity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 7.84 6.89
Axis Long Term Equity Fund - Growth 7.99 7.08
DSP Equity Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 2.63 229
Franklin India PRIMA FUND - Direct - Growth 9.14 7.97
HDFC MID-CAP Opportunities Fund Growth Option 2.82 228
ICICI Prudential Multicap Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 2.57 2.09
ICICI Prudential Value Discovery Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 8.38 6.33
IDFC Emerging Business Direct Plan Growth N7 8.31
Kotak Emerging Equity Scheme - Growth 322 2.58
Kotak Equity Hybrid - Growth 7.94 6.76
L&T Mid Cap Fund-Growth 2.74 2.37
Nippon India Equity Hybrid Fund - Growth Plan 1.29 1.10
Nippon India Small Cap Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Option 12.69 8.58
Nippon India Small Cap Fund - Growth Plan - Growth Option 3.70 2.57
SBI Focused Equity Fund Regular Plan Growth 2.70 217
SBI Small Cap - Regular Plan - Growth 3.08 2.40
Sundaram Mid Cap Fund- Direct Plan - Growth Option 15.57 12.56
Tata Equity P/E Fund -Direct Plan Growth 323 2.69
UTI Mid Cap Fund-Growth Option- Direct 6.01 4.86

(iii) Investment in Physical Gold 51.32 -
Total (A) 1,348.78 1,350.12

(B) At Deemed Cost
- Wholly owned subsidiaries

(@) Indo Thai Realities Ltd. 797.87 797.87
(b) Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. 125.00 125.00

(c) Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. 30.80 -

- Associate Company

(@) Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd. 4252 4252
Total (B) 996.19 965.39

Less: Provision for Diminution in the value of Investment - -
Total (A+B) 2,344.96 2,315.51

*The Company has elected to measure investment in subsidiaries & Associate companies at deemed cost as per Ind AS 27.
- Rs. 0.00 Lakhs indicates values are lower than Rs. 0.01, where applicable.

8 Other Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
As At As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars

(A) Security deposits

a. Unsecured, considered good

i. Deposits with Exchange 578.70 528.84
ii. Other Security Deposits 40.45 39.62
(B) Others
a. Accrued Interest - -
b. Receivables from stock exchange against Daily Obligation 21.84 8.81
c. Income Tax Refund 12.57
d. Others 8.42
Total (A+B) 661.99 577.26
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9 Current Tax Asset (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
i U U
Advance tax paid (Net of provisions) - 13.29
Total - 13.29
10 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net) (Rs. igLalgps)
Particulars ‘ As At ‘ As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets (refer note no. 33) 3.01 (40.31)
MAT credit entitlement - -
Total 3.01 (40.31)
12 Other Non-Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
. ‘ As At ‘ As At
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advances other than capital advances
- Prepaid expenses 20.52 18.36
- Advancesto creditors 2.68 393
- Advances to Staff 562 218
- Other Receivable 578 29.44
- Income Tax Refund - 33.53
Total 34.60 87.44
13 Payables (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars ‘ As At ‘ As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(A) Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 4,126.66 2,167.26
(B) Other payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -

enterprises -
Total 4,126.66 2,167.26

Note: There are no micro, small and medium enterprises, to which company owes dues. This information is required to be disclosed
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 that has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

14 Borrowings (other than debt securities)
As At
March 31, 2021

q As At
Particulars |

March 31,2022

In India
Secured

- Atamortized cost
(i) From Banks
Bank overdraft

a. HDFC Bank OD * 147.69
b. Indusind Bank OD ** 22.67
Total 147.69 22.67

*OD taken against fixed depositand personal guarantee of Directors at the rate ofinterest 8.25%
**OD taken against fixed depositatthe rate ofinterest 8.25%
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15 Deposits Rs. in Lakhs
‘ As At ‘ As At

Particulars

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(A) Atamortized cost

- Security deposits (From Branches & Franchisees) 43.82 41.34
Total 43.82 4134
16 Other Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars ‘ As At ‘ As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest payable 16.08 -
Expenses creditors 27.23 30.08
Dividend payable 4.3] 350
Other payable 1.47 0.93
Statutory Liabilities 357 -
Employee Related Liabilities 4.77 -
Derivative financial instrument liability - 6.52
Total 57.42 41.04
(Rs. in Lakhs)
17 Current Tax Liabilities
i 0 0
Provision for Income Tax 5515 -
Total 55.15 -
18 Provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars ‘ As At ‘ As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for gratuity 0.48 -
Provision for CSR Expenses - -
Other Provision 359 -
Total 4.07 -
19 Other Non-Financial Liabilities (Rs.in Lakhs)
Particulars ’ As At ‘ As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory Dues - 502
Employee Related Liabilities - 6.74
Total - 1.76
20 Equity Share Capital (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars ‘ As At ‘ As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(A) Authorized:
1,20,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,200.00 1,200.00
(March 31,2021:1,20,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
Total 1,200.00 1,200.00
(B) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Shares
1,00,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
(March 31,2021:1,00,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
Total 1,000.00 1,000.00
[~ (C) Reconciliation of shares
outstanding at the beginning and at the
At the beginning of the year (Nos.) 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Issued during the year (Nos.) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.) 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
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(D) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % shares

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Name of Shareholder --
No. of shares % held No. of shares
Parasmal Doshi 11,65,900 11.66% 11,65,900 11.66%
Dhanpal Doshi 12,70,500 12.71% 12,65,000 12.65%
Varsha Doshi 14,74,550 14.75% 14,09,850 14.10%
Sadhana Doshi 10,45,000 10.45% 10,45,000 10.45%
Nishit Doshi 577,000 5.77% 5,77,000 577%
Sarthak Doshi 5,60,000 5.60% 4,98,000 4.98%

(E) Details of Promoters shareholding pattern in the Company

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 .
% Change during the
Name of Shareholder No. of
No. of shares year
shares
Dhanpal Doshi HUF 2,62,300 2.62% 2,52,900 2.53% 3.56%
Paras Doshi HUF 1,59,500 1.60% 1,59,500 1.60% 0.00%
Rajmati Hinged 29,400 0.29% 47,400 0.47% -38.30%
Sadhana Doshi 10,45,000 10.45% 10,45,000 10.45% 0.00%
Dhanpal Doshi 12,70,500 12.71% 12,65,000 12.65% 0.47%
Parasmal Doshi 1,65,900 11.66% 1,65,900 11.66% 0.00%
GauravJain 29,400 0.29% 29,400 0.29% 0.00%
Varsha Doshi 14,74,500 14.75% 14,09,850 14.10% 4.61%
Vijaya Jain 40,550 0.41% 40,500 0.41% 0.00%
Chandra Shekhar Doshi 12,000 0.12% 12,000 0.12% 0.00%
Nivya Doshi 67,750 0.68% 62,500 0.63% 7.94%
Nishit Doshi 577,000 5.77% 577,000 577% 0.00%
Sarthak Doshi 5,60,000 5.60% 4,98,000 4.98% 12.45%
Kusum Doshi 28,500 0.29% 28,500 0.29% 0.00%
3M Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 38,500 0.39% 38,500 0.39% 0.00%
Future Infraestates Pvt. Ltd. 51,000 0.51% 51,000 0.51% 0.00%
Indothai Wealth Management Pvt. Ltd. 1,335,000 1.35% 1,35,000 1.35% 0.00%
Citadel Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 2,71,097 2.71% 2,71,097 2.71% 0.00%

(F) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity sharesis entitled to one
vote per share. The dividend, in case proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholdersin the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(G) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment.

(H) Other details of equity shares for a period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2022:

No. of Shares

Particulars
20 | 2020 | zow | 201 017

Aggregate number of share allotted as

fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) - - - -
without payment being received in cash

Aggregate number of shares allotted as
fully paid bonus shares

Aggregate number of shares bought back - - - -
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21 Other Equity

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Security Retained

Premium Earnings
Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,386.15 973.21 3,359.36
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - 1,030.50 1,030.50
Other comprehensive income for the year - 13.90 13.90
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,386.15 2,017.60 4,403.75
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - 1040.31 1,040.31
Other comprehensive income for the year - (0.28) (0.28)
Dividend - (100.00) (100.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,386.15 2,957.63 5,343.78

Nature and Purpose of reserve

1. Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such asissuance of bonus shares, writing off the preliminary expenses in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. It
also includes actuarial gainsand losses on defined benefit plans recognized in other comprehensive income (net of taxes).

22 Interest Income

Particulars

As At March 31,

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As At March 31, 2021

Interest income on financial assets
measured at amortised cost :

2022

(i) Fixed deposits with banks 192.20 159.40
(i) Funding and late payments 22.99 21.55
(iii) Interest on ICD 14.33 5.02
(iv) Interest on Sovereign Gold Bonds 0.72
Total 230.24 185.97
23 Dividend Income (Rs. In Lakhs)
. As A N : .
0

Dividend Income 27.29 .64
Total 27.29 1.64

(Rs. in Lakhs)

24 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars

As At March 31,

2022

As At March 31, 2021

Brokerage income
Brokerage income 480.96 44301
Total A 480.96 443.01
Income from services
Others 0.97 4.75
Total B 0.97 4.75
Total (A+B) 481.93 447.76

25 Net Profit / (Loss) on Fair Value Changes

As At March 31,

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As At March 31, 2021
2022

(A) Net gain/(loss) on financial

instruments at fair value through profit
(i) Profit/(loss) on sale of derivatives held for trade (net) (61.02) 599.11
(i) Profit/(loss) on other securities held for trade 385.47 390.38
(iii) Profit/(loss) on sale of investments

. ) 897.62 533.60
(net) at fair value through profit or loss
Standalone Financial Statements
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(B) Total net gain on fair value changes 1,222.08 1,523.09
(C) Fair value changes:
(i) Realised 970.85 829.83
(ii) Unrealised 251.23 693.26
Total 1,222.08 1,523.09
26 Sale of Services (Rs. in Lakhs)
) As A w .
0
Income from Depository 23.62 19.73
Total 23.62 19.73
27 Other Income (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As At March 31,
Particulars As At March 31, 2021
2022
Recovery of bad debts - 0.06
Reversal of Doubtful Debts Provision 1.04 66.04
Rent received 6.00 8.40
Miscellaneous Income 3.00 0.78
Total 10.05 75.28
28 Finance Cost (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars

As At March 31,
2022

As At March 31, 2021

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings 78.44 77.55
Other borrowing cost 7.00 6.08
Total 85.44 83.63

29 Fees and Commission Expenses (Rs.in Lakhs)

. ‘ As At March 31,
Particulars As At March 31, 2021
2022

Commission to Branches & AP's 200.33 118.02
Depository charges 1.78 2.59
Membership and Subscription Fees 4.08 4.09
Total 206.19 124.70

30 Employee Benefit Expenses Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

As At March 31,
2022

As At March 31, 2021

31

Salary and Wages 209.67 162.56
Contribution to Provident fund and other fund (Refer Note no. 42) 10.16 9.35
Staff Welfare expenses 50.43 39.43
Total 270.27 21.34

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Particulars

As At March 31,
2022

’ As At March 31, 2021

Depreciation on Property, plantand equipment 281 33.57
Amortisation on other intangible assets 0.20 0.30
Total 28.31 33.87
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32 Other Expenses

As At March 31,

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars ‘ As At March 31, 2021
2022

Rentand amenities 47.40 442
Insurance 424 4.23
Travelling and conveyance expenses 6.93 324
Annual Maintenance Expenses 4834 38.84
Electricity expenses 14.08 1291
VSAT and Internet expenses 7.84 15.28
Communication expenses 278 299
Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 1259 734
Printing and stationery 1.05 128
Auditor's fees and expenses ** 1.25 125
Bad Debts 0.18 159
Repairs, maintenance, upkeep and others 4.37 3.8I
Legal and professional charges 161 10.73
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses 21.34 1.62
Miscellaneous Expenses 24.77 278

Total 213.26 172.02

** Details of Auditor's Remuneration (excluding GST)

As At March 3],

As At March 31, 2021

2022
Statutory Audit Fee 0.75 0.75
Tax Audit Fee 0.25 0.25
Certification fee 0.25 0.25
Total 125 125
33 Tax Reconciliation
Amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year
ended March 3],
2022

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

Tax on profit for the current year 194.53 -
Tax on profit for the previous year 0.12 112
Deferred tax (43.32) 389.57
Tax expense for the year charged to the 151.32 388.45
Profit and loss (a)

Deferred tax of amounts recognised in

other comprehensive income (b) (0.10) (4.67)
Total Tax expenses for the year (a+b) 151.22 383.78

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars

For the year
ended March 3],

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

2022

Profit / (Loss) before tax 1,191.73 1,637.91
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 2517%
Computed Tax Expense 194.53 41223
Tax effect of :

Exempted income - -
Income / Expenses allowed & disallowed (19518) (23.99)
Deferred Tax on account of Property ,Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 0.65 0.21
Tax Expenses recognised during the year 0.00 388.45
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Movement in deferred tax balances

(Rs.in Lakhs)
For the F.Y. 2021-22

As at
Particulars April 1,

Recognised As at

in profit or Recognised March 31, 2022
2021 ploss in oClI U EL)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation -

Fair valuation of Investment - -
Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - -
Deferred Tax Assets

Depreciation 24.50 (1.60) 22.90

Provision for Doubtful debts 3.46 (0.26) - 3.20

Defined Employee Plan (0.53) 0.41 (0.2
Other timing difference - -

Fair valuation of Investment (67.74) 4478 (22.96

Total - Deferred Tax Assets (40.31) 4333 - 3.01

Net tax (Assets)/Liabilities 40.31 (43.33) - (3.01)

(Rs.in Lakhs)

As at For the F.Y. 2020-21
As at

March 31, 2021

Particulars April 1, Recognised Recognised
2020 in profit or in OCI

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation -

Fair valuation of Investment - -
Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - -
Deferred Tax Assets

Depreciation 0.24 24.26 24.50

Provision for Doubtful debts 20.74 (17.28) - 3.46

Defined Employee Plan 4.49 (5.02) (0.53
Other timing difference (50.52 50.52 -

Fair valuation of Investment 115.19 (182.93) (67.74

Total - Deferred Tax Assets 90.14 (130.45) - (40.31)

Net tax (Assets)/Liabilities (90.14) 130.45 - 40.31

34 One time impact on Tax Expenses(current & deferred) due to change in tax Rate

One time impact on Tax Expenses(current & deferred) due to change in tax Rate 218.95
Total - 218.95

Note: On September 20, 2019, the Government of India, vide the Taxation laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted Section T15BAA
in the Income Tax Act, 1961, which provides domestic Companies an option to pay Corporate Tax at reduced rate effective April 1, 2019
subject to certain conditions. Accordingly the Company has decided to exercise the option of lower tax rate available under Section
N5BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019,with effect from FY 2020-2021.
Accordingly, the Company has recognised the provision for income tax for year ended March 31,2021 and re-measured the accumulated
deferred tax asset/liabilities at March 31, 2021 based on the rate prescribed under Section 115BAA. Consequently, the company has

reversed MAT Credit of Rs.218.95 Lakhs during the current quarter. This matter hasresulted in one time impact on Tax expenses (current
& deferred).
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35 Earning Per Shares (EPS)
The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is given below:

For the year For the year ended
Particulars ended March 31, March 31, 2021

2022

i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity
. 1,040.31 1,030.50
Shareholders (in Lakhs)
ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS (in
1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
numbers)
iii) Basicand Diluted Earnings per share 10.40 10.30
(Face value Rs.10/- per equity share)

36 Statement of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure
During the period ended March 31, 2021 the Company has spent X 21.34 Lakh (Previous year X 11.18 Lakh) out of the total amount of
X O (Previous year X 11.18 Lakh) required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of Corporate Social
Responsibility [CSR].

Amount spentin cash during the year on: (Rs.in Lakhs)
As At March 31,

Particulars As At March 31, 2021
2022

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above S 118

Contingent Liabilities Rs.in Lakhs
37
As At March 31,

Particulars As At March 31, 2021
2022

Counter guaranteesin respect of

guarantees given by banks to the Stock
] ) 690.00 590.00
Exchanges towards base capital, margin

deposits etc.

Pledged of fixed deposits (including
Interest) with the bank against the above 345.00 296.95
bank guarantees

38 Intheopinion of the management, there isonly one reportable business segment as envisaged by Ind AS108 on 'Operating
Segment' issued by Institute of Chartered accountant of India. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is
required to be made in the financial statements of the Company. Secondary segmentation based on geography has not been
presented as the Company operates primarily in India and the Company perceives that there is no significant difference in its risk
and returns in operating from different geographic areas within India.

39 Related Party Disclosure
As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures (Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Company are as

(A) List of related parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions have taken place and

relationships :

Nature of relationship Name of the related party
Parasmal Doshi (Whole Time Director & Chairman)
Dhanpal Doshi (Managing Director & Chief Executive Off]
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Rajendra Bandi (Whole Time Director)

Deepak Sharma (Chief Financial Officer)

Sanjay Kushwah (Company Secreta

Entities where control exists:

Indo Thai Realties Ltd.

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd
Subsidiary Company Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd
Associate Company Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd
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M/s Sun Décor World
M/s Balmukund Ramkishan Bang

Sky Space Ventures LLP

Citadel Real Estates Private Ltd.
Future Infraestates Private Ltd.
3M Consultants Private Limited
Surana Estate And Commodity Trading Pvt. Ltd.
Geetanjali Buildcon Pvt. Ltd.
Other Related Parties Vistar Villas Pvt. Ltd

Prosperity Residency Pvt. Ltd.
Rising Infrareal Pvt. Ltd
Provident Real Estate Pvt. Ltd
Red Carpet Residency Pvt. Ltd
Suresh Chandra Shantila & Co.
Sky Space Insurance Broking LLP
Sujanmal & Sons

Indo Thai Wealth Management Pvt. Ltd
Dhanpal Doshi (HUF)

Nivya Doshi

Jaya Bandi

Nishit Doshi

Palak Bandi

Paras Doshi (HUF)

Praveen Bandi

Rajendra Bandi (HUF)

Sadhana Doshi

Sarthak Doshi
Relatives of Key Management Personnel Sunita Bandi

Vijaya Jain

Rajmati Hingad

Varsha Doshi

Paras Doshi (WTD)

Ritu Doshi Jain
TripatJain

Chandra Shekhar Doshi
Kumkum Jain

Romil Bandi

Anita Khasgiwala

(B) Significant Transactions with Related Parties Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Relationship

Brokerage Received
Citadel Real Estates Pvt Ltd Other related party - 0.02
Dhanpal Doshi KMP 0.13 0.3
Dhanpal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 1.83 0.80
Indo Thai Wealth Management Private Other related party 3.87 0.46
Rising Infrareal Pvt.Ltd. Other related party - 0.16
Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd. Associate Company 0.41 -
Jaya Bandi Relative of KMP 0.09 0.13
Nishit Doshi Relative of KMP 0.10 0.25
Paras Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 0.14 1.06
Parasmal Doshi KMP 0.20 1.35
Praveen Bandi Relative of KMP 0.08 0.10
Rajendra Bandi KMP 0.12 0.21
Sadhana Doshi Relative of KMP 9.52 13.46
Sarthak Doshi Relative of KMP 0.04 0.09
Sunita Bandi Relative of KMP 0.05 0.3
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP 0.03 0.12
Romil Bandi Relative of KMP 0.01 -
Varsha Doshi Relative of KMP 0.95 3.97
Deepak Sharma KMP 0.03 0.09
Rajmati Hingad Relative of KMP 0.28 0.09
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Vijaya Jain Relative of KMP 0.06 0.12
Nivya Doshi Relative of KMP 0.12 0.38
Anita Khagiwala Relative of KMP 0.08 0.02
Indo thai Realties Ltd. Subsidary 0.04 -
Sanjay Kushwah KMP 0.03 0.10
Total 18.22 33.23
Remuneration
Sarthak Doshi Relative of KMP - 4.40
Praveen Bandi Relative of KMP 314 220
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP = 1.87
Total 314 8.47
Remuneration/Compensation to KMP *

) Short term employee benefi 24.00 12.00

Dhanpal Doshi .
Post employment benefits 0.59 0.57
Total 24.59 12.57
. Short term employee benefi 25.26 14.52

Paras Doshi !
Post employment benefits 0.52 0.50
Total 25.78 15.02
RS Short term employee be'nefl 4.45 290
Post employment benefits - -
Total 4.45 2.90
Short term employee benefi 3.82 3.49

Deepak Sharma )
Post employment benefits - -
Total 3.82 3.49
. Short term employee benefi 4.52 4.22

Sanjay Kushwah .
Post employment benefits - -
Total 4.52 4.22

*As the liabilities for gratuity and leave compensation are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the

amounts pertaining to the key management personnel is not included above.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Relationship
Rent Paid
Balmukund Ramkishan Bang Other related party 2494 2494
Paras Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 1.62 1.62
Dhanpal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 114 114
M/s Sun Decor World Other related party 12.47 12.47
Total 40.17 40.17
Rent Received
Sky Space Ventures LLP Other related party 6.00 8.40
Total 6.00 8.40
Interest Received
Indo Thai Realties Ltd Subsidary 10.64 502
Femto Green Hydogen Ltd Subsidary 3.68 -
Total 1433 5.02
Deposits Given
Paras Doshi HUF Relative of KMP 4.00 4.00
Sun Décor World Other related party 5.00 5.00
M/s Balmukund Ramkishan Bang Other related party 10.00 10.00
Total 19.00 19.00
Loan Given
Indo Thai Realties Ltd (net) Subsidary 145.00 3917
Femto Green Hydogen Ltd Subsidary 200.00 -
Total 345.00 39.17
Balances outstanding as on
Loan receivable outstanding
Indo Thai Realties Ltd Subsidary - 101.77
Total - 101.77
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Receivables
Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd Subsidary = 1.83
Vijaya Jain Relative of KMP - 1.70
Dhanpal Doshi HUF Relative of KMP - 537
Nivya Doshi Relative of KMP 0.00 -
Rajendra Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.71
Sunita Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.68
Jaya Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.69
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.79
Praveen Bandi Relative of KMP 0.20 1.29
Anita Khasgiwala Relative of KMP 0.02 -
Deepak Sharma KMP - 1.30
Sanjay Kushwah KMP - 1.34
Parasmal Doshi KMP - 0.51
Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd Subsidary 8.42 -
Total 8.64 20.23
Payables
Parasmal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP - 6.82
Paras Doshi KMP 0.07
Varsha Doshi Relative of KMP - 1.90
Sarthak Doshi Relative of KMP - 0.47
Sadhana Doshi Relative of KMP 0.25 12.51
Nishit Doshi Relative of KMP - -
Nivya Doshi Relative of KMP - 4.67
Romil Bandi Relative of KMP 0.02 -
Jaya Bandi Relative of KMP 0.01 -
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP 0.12 -
Rajendra Bandi KMP 1.38
Dhanpal Doshi KMP 0.06 0.39
Dhanpal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 0.50 -
Anita Khasgiwala Relative of KMP - 2.04
Indo Thai Wealth Management Private
o Other related party
Limited - 12.74
Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd. Associate Company 3210 -
Total 34.50 4153
Investment Balance
Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd. Associate Company 4252 4252
Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd Wholly Owned Subsidiary 125.00 125.00
Indo Thai Realties Ltd Wholly Owned Subsidiary 797.87 797.87
Total 965.39 965.39
- Rs. 0.00 Lakhsindicates values are lower than Rs. 0.01, where applicable.
40 Significant Investment in the Subsidiaries & Associates (Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of the Company

Principal Place of Business

% of Shares Held

Indo Thai Realties Ltd

Capital Tower, 2nd Floor, Plot No. 169A-
171, PU-4, Scheme No. 54, Behind C21

Wholly-owned

Mall Indore — 452010 Subsidiary 100.00%
Unit No. 326 Signature Building, Second
Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. Floor Block 13B, Zone-1, GIFT SEZ Wholly-owned
Gandhinagar (Gujrat)- 382355 Subsidiary 100.00%
Capital Tower, 3rd Floor, Plot No. 169A-
Indo Thai Commodities Pvt Ltd 171, PU-4, Scheme No. 54, Behind C21 Associate
Mall Indore — 452010 Company 40.05%
Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. Plot No.170, 171, Scheme No. 54, PU-4, Subsidiary
Near C21 Mall, Indore Indore MP 452010 Company 57.00%

Standalone Financial Statements

111




.'VA
: IndoThai

trade with confidence

28" Annual Report 2021-22

41 The Board hasdeclared a dividend @10% i.e. Re. 1/- per equity share of Rs. 10/-each for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

42 Employee Benefit
As per Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee benefits”, the disclosures as defined are given below:
A) Defined Benefit Plans:
Company has made an arrangement with Life Insurance Corporation for Gratuity Benefits. Now the company makes annual
contributions to the Employees’ Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation of India, a funded
defined benefit plan for eligible employees. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service
cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations.

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation (Rs.in Lakhs)
Particulars year ended ‘ year ended March 31,
March 31, 2022 2021

Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the period 29.32 41.68
Interest cost 213 2.91
Current service cost 4.79 4.7
Benefits paid (ifany) - (0.68)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (0.92) (18.77)
Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 35.31 29.31

(ii) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars

As At March 31,

2022

(Rs.in Lakhs)
As At March 31, 2021

Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 35.31 29.31
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 34.82 31.43
Net liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 0.48 (2m
Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit) (0.48) 21
(iii) Expense recognized during the year (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars

year ended

March 31, 2022

year ended March 31,
2021

In Income Statement

Interest cost 213 2.91
Current service cost 4.79 4.18
Past Service Cost - -
Expected return on plan asset (2.28) (1.7
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under " Employee beng 4.64 5.38
In Other Comprehensive (income) / expenses

Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation (0.92) (18.77
Actuarial (gain)/loss - plan assets 1.31 0.20
Net (income)/expense for the year recognised in OGI 0.38 (18.57)

(iv) Actuarial assumptions

| Particulars | | year ended March 31,2022 |

year ended March 31, 2021

Rate of discounting 7.25% 7.00%
Rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 5.00% 5.00%

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality rate during employment
Y g empioy Mortality (2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

Mortality rate after employment N.A.

N.A.

(v) Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary
increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented below may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as itis unlikely that the change in assumption would occur
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below:
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| Particulars | |  As At March 31,2022 | As At March 31, 2021
3530,920 @Salary Increase 29,31,653 @ Salary Increase Rate : 7% and
Rate:7%and Discount Rate : 7%

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) Discount Rate : 7.25% SO
33,00,067; x=1.00% [Change

Liability with x% increase in Discount Rate (©6)%1] 27,43,269 x=1.00% [Change (6)% ]
37,88,893; x=1.00% [Change

Liability with x% decrease in Discount Rate 7% ] 31,47,904; x=1.00% [Change 7% ]

Liability with X% increase in Salary Growth 37,86,941; x=1.00% [Change

Rate 7%] 31,45,777; x=1.00% [Change 7%]

Liability with x% decrease in Salary Growth 33,05,594; x=1.00% [Change

Rate ©)%] 27,41,587; x=1.00% [Change (6)% ]

Liability with x% increase in Withdrawal 35,25,387; x=1.00% [Change

Rate 0% ] 29,23,760; x=1.00% [Change 0% ]

Crability With X% decrease in Withdrawal 35,36,060; x=1.00% [Change

Rate 0% ] 29,39,688; x=1.00% [Change 0% ]

(vi) Maturity analysis of benefit obligations (Rs.in Lakhs)

. Year ended Year ended March 31,

Particulars
March 31, 2022 2021

01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 - 6.77

01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 8.03 0.97

01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 0.71 0.57

01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 1.96 1.51

01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 514 4.45

01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027 0.38

01 Apr 2027 Onwards 19.08 15.02

(B) Defined Contributions Plans: (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Contribution to provident fund 2.54 2.51

Contribution to ESIC 1.85 1.46

Total 4.39 3.97

43 Lease

Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' effective April 1, 2019 and elect not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 since all
leases are short term leases.

44 Comparatives

Previous year figures are re-grouped, and re-classified and re-arranged, wherever considered necessary to confirm to current
year's presentation.

45 Asset pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are: (Rs.in Lakhs)

. As At March 31,
Particulars As At March 31, 2021

2022

Financial Asset
First charge

Stock for trade 140.83 180.33
Investment 34.33 12.59
Deposits 4,722.74 2,457.42

Total assets pledged as security 4,897.91 2,650.34
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(Rs.in Lakhs)

As At March 31,

Particulars As At March 31, 2021
2022
Equity derivatives - Future 1,149.77 896.18
Equity derivatives - Option 13.63 -
Commodity derivatives - Future 39.70 -
Commodity derivatives - Option 5.89 -
Total Exposure 1,208.99 896.18

47

- The derivatives are used for The purpose of Trading

Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:

a) Credit Risk

It is risk of financial loss that the Company will incur a loss because its customer or counterparty to financial instruments fails to
meet its contractual obligation. The Company'’s financial assets comprise of Cash and bank balance, Securities for trade, Trade
receivables, Loans, Investments and Other financial assets which comprise mainly of deposits. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is primarily fromm Company’s trade receivable.

Following provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivables:

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Particulars | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Trade and Other Debtors
Secured
Due 0-180 days 184.37 273.28
Due more than 180 days 12.51 4.33
Total (a) 196.88 277.62
Un-secured
Due 0-180 days 14.07 19.99
Due more than 180 days 66.49 69.52
Total (b) 80.57 89.51
Total (a+b) 277.44 367.13
Less: Impairment Loss (12.70) (13.74)
Total 264.75 353.39

Standalone Financial Statlements

The Company has followed simplified method of ECL in case of Trade receivables and the Company recognises lifetime expected
|losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. At each reporting date, the Company assesses the
impairment requirements.

Other financial assets considered to have a low credit risk:

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalentsis limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and stock exchanges with high
credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments comprise of Quoted Equity

instruments and Mutual Funds which are market tradeable.

b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity represents the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its financial obligations on time, both in
normal and in stressed conditions, without having to liquidate assets or raise funds at unfavourable terms thus compromising its
earnings and capital. The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable
investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflow on financial liabilities. Funds required for short period is taken care
by borrowings through utilizing overdraft facility.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and liabilities.

Particulars

March 31, 2022

Less than 1

1to 5 Years | Less than1Year

(Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31, 2021

1to 5 Years

Year

Financial Assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 127.98 597.57

(ii) Bank balance other than (i) above 4.31 4,722.74 48.81 2,457.42

(iii) Securities for trade 2,053.41 958.27

(iv) Trade Receivables 264.75 353.39

(v) Loans 359.67 101.77

(vi) Investments 1,348.78 996.19 1,350.12 965.39

(vii) Other financial assets 661.99 8.80 568.46
Total Financial Assets 4,820.88 5,718.93 3,418.73 3,991.27

Financial Labilities

(i) Trade Payables 4,126.66 2,167.26 -

(ii) Borrowings 147.69 22.67 -

(iii) Deposits 43.82 41.34 -

(iv) Other financial liabilities 57.42 41.04 -

Total Financial Liabilities 4,375.58 - 2,272.30 -

Net Excess / (Shortfall) 44530 5,718.93 1,146.43 3,991.27

c) Market Risk

Market risk arises when movementsin market factors (foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices) impact the Company'sincome or the

market value of its portfolios. The Company, in its course of business, is exposed to market risk due to changein equity prices, interest rates and foreign

exchange rates. The objective of market risk managementisto maintain an acceptable level of market risk exposure while aiming to maximize returns.
The Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios. Both the portfolios are managed using the following

sensitivity analyses:

i) Equity Price Risk

ii) Interest Rate Risk

(Rs.in Lakhs)
March 31, 2022 A A
. — Primary risk
Particulars Carrying . . o
Traded Risk| Non-traded Risk sensitivity
Amount
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other Bank balances 4,855.03 - -
Financial asset at FVTPL 3,402.19 3,402.19 - Equity price
Trade Receivables 264.75 - -
Loans 359.67 - - Interest rate
Investment in Subsidiary 996.19 - -
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 661.99 - -
Total 10,539.81 3,402.19 -
Liabilities
Trade payable 4,126.66 - -
Borrowings 147.69 - - Interest rate
Deposits 43.82 - -
Other financial liabilities 57.42 - -
Total 4,375.58 - -

Standalone Financial Statlements
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March 31, 2021 : i
arch 31, 20 Primary risk

Particulars Carrying

Traded Risk | Non-traded Risk sensitivity
Amount

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other Bank balances 3,03.80 - -
Financial asset at FVTPL 2,308.39 2,308.39 - Equity price
Trade Receivables 353.39 - -
Loans 101.77 - - Interest rate
Investment in Subsidiary 965.39 - -
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 577.26 - -

Total 7,410.00 2,308.39 -
Liabilities
Trade payable 2167.26 - -
Borrowings 22.67 - - Interest rate
Deposits 41.34 - -
Other financial liabilities 41.04 - -

Total 2,272.30 - -

(Rs.in Lakhs)
i) Equity Price Risk
The Company exposure to price risk arising form investment and security in trade held by the company and is classified in the balance sheet
through fair value through profit & loss account. Company has investment in Exchange Traded Funds & equity shares under various scheme
and its exposure.
The below sensitivity depicts a scenario where a 10% movement in equity prices, everything else remaining constant, would result in an
exchange obligation for both Traded and Non-traded (client) positions and their impact on statement of profit and loss account

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Impact on statement of profit and loss

Particulars
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2022 31,2021
Equity prices up by 10% 335.09 230.84
Equity prices down by 10% (335.09) (230.84)

ii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Interest rate change does not affects significantly short term borrowing and current investment therefore the Company's exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt and Non current investment.

As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 a parallel shift of 250% in the yield curve would result in the following impact on the statement of profit

and loss.
(Rs.in Lakhs)
Impact on statement of profit and loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2022 31,2021
parallel upward shift of 2.50% (5.30) (1.98)
parallel downward shift of 2.50% 530 1.98

48 Financial Instruments
Refer to financial instruments by category table below for the disclosure on carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities. For
financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
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The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Total . A q
. . Amortised Total fair Fair value .
Particulars carrying Fair value through OCI
cost value through P&L
value

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other Bank balances 4,855.03 4,855.03 -
Security in trade 2,053.41 2,053.41 2,053.41 -
Investment 2,344.96 996.19 1,348.78 1,348.78 -
Trade Receivables 264.75 264.75 -
Loans 359.67 359.67 -
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 661.99 661.99 -

Total 10,539.81 7,137.62 3,402.19 3,402.19 -
Liabilities
Trade payable 4,126.66 4,126.66 - - -
Borrowings 147.69 147.69 - - -
Deposits 43.82 43.82 - - -
Other financial liabilities 57.42 57.42 - - -

Total 4,375.58 4,375.58 - - -

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2021 is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. Tot.al Amortised Total fair Fair value .
Particulars carrying Fair value through OCI
cost value through P&L
value

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other Bank balances 3,103.80 3,103.80 - - -
Security in trade 958.27 - 958.27 958.27 -
Investment 2,315.51 965.39 1,350.12 1,350.12 -
Trade Receivables 353.39 353.39 - - -
Loans 101.77 101.77 - - -
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 577.26 577.26 - - -

Total 7,410.00 5,101.61 2,308.39 2,308.39 -
Liabilities
Trade payable 2,167.26 2,167.26 - - -
Borrowings 22.67 22.67 - - -
Deposits 41.34 41.34 - - -
Other financial liabilities 41.04 41.04 - - -

Total 2,272.30 2,272.30 - - -

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

Level 1-The fair value hierarchy have been valued using quoted prices for instruments in an active market.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted pricesincluded within Level 1that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices).

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs that are not
observable and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation.

The following table summarises financial instruments measured at fair value on recurring basis:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022 | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3 | Total
Financial instruments:
Securities for trade 996.19 - - 996.19
Mutual Funds 138.70 - - 138.70
Equity Shares (other than subsidiaries) 1,158.76 - - 1,158.76
Total 2,293.65 - - 2,293.65
(Rs.in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3 | Total
Financial instruments:
Securities for trade 958.27 - - 958.27
Mutual Funds 122.88 - - 122.88
Equity Shares (other than subsidiaries) 1,227.24 - - 1,227.24
Total 2,308.39 - - 2,308.39
Standalone Financial Statements 7
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Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value.

The Following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are

recorded at fair value.

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Particulars | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Opening Balance S -
purchase - -
Less: Sales - -

Add: Gain/ (Loss)

Transferin Level 3

Less: Transfer from Level 3

Closing Balance

49 Maturity Analysis
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March Within 12 Months After 12 Months
31,2022
ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 127.98 127.98
(ii) Bank balance other than (i) above 4,727.05 4.3] 4,722.74
(iii) Securities for trade 2,053.41 2,053.41
(iv) Receivables
(@) Trade Receivables 264.75 264.75
(b) Other Receivables
(v) Loans 359.67 359.67
(Vi) Investments 2,344.96 996.19 1,348.78
(vii) Other financial assets 661.99 42.84 619.15
Total Financial Assets 10,539.81 3,849.14 6,690.67
Non Financial Assets
(i) Current tax assets -
(ii) Deferred tax assets 3.01 3.01
(iii) Property, plantand equipment 201.02 201.02
(iv) Other intangible assets 0.15 0.15
(v) Other non financial assets 34.60 34.60
Total Non Financial Assets 238.78 34.60 204.18
Total Assets 10,778.59 3,883.74 6,894.85
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(i) Payables
(@) Trade Payables - - -
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 4,126.66 4,126.66 -
(b) Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
(ii) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 147.69 147.69 -
(iii) Deposits 4382 43.82 -
(iv) Other financial liabilities 57.42 57.42 -
Total Financial Liabilities 4,375.58 4,375.58 -
Non-financial Liabilities
(i) Current tax liabilities 5515 5515 -
(ii) Provisions 4.07 4.07 -
(iii) Other non financial liabilities -
(iv) Deferred tax Liabilities -
Total Non Financial Liabilities 59.22 59.22 -
Total Liabilities 4,434.81 4,434.81 -
Net 6,343.78 (551.07) 6,894.85

Standalone Financial Statlements
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at March .
Particulars Within 12 Months After 12 Months
31,2021
ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 597.57 597.57 -
(ii) Bank balance other than (i) above 2,506.23 48.81 2,457.42
(iii) Securities for trade 958.27 958.27 -
(iv) Receivables - -
(@) Trade Receivables 353.39 353.39 -
(b) Other Receivables - - -
(v) Loans 101.77 101.77 -
(vi) Investments 2,315.51 1,350.12 965.39
(vii) Other financial assets 577.26 8.80 568.46
Total Financial Assets 7,410.00 3,418.73 3,991.27
Non Financial Assets
(i) Current tax assets 13.29 13.29 -
(ii) Deferred tax assets - - -
(iii) Property, plant and equipment 217.06 - 217.06
(iv) Other intangible assets 0.34 - 0.34
(v) Other non financial assets 87.44 87.44 -
Total Non Financial Assets 318.13 100.72 217.41
Total Assets 7,728.13 3,519.45 4,208.68
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(i) Payables
(@) Trade Payables - - -
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 2,167.26 2,167.26 -
(b) Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -
(ii) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 22.67 22.67 -
(iii) Deposits 4134 4134 -
(iv) Other financial liabilities 41.04 41.04 -
Total Financial Liabilities 2,272.30 2,272.30 -
Non-financial Liabilities
(i) Current tax liabilities - - -
(i) Provisions - - -
(iii) Other non financial liabilities .76 1.76 -
(iv) Deferred tax Liabilities 40.31 - 40.31
Total Non Financial Liabilities 52.07 1.76 40.31
Total Liabilities 2,324.37 2,284.06 40.31
Net 5,403.76 1,235.39 4,168.37
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50 Event After Reporting Date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai Securities Limited

For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi
Chartered Accountants Managing Director & CEO Chairman & Whole Time Director
Firm Reg No. 005313C/C4003T1 DIN: 00700492 DIN: 00051460

Chandresh Singhvi
Partner Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah
Membership No. 436593 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer
Place: Indore

Date: 18th May, 2022
UDIN:22436593AJEYLGI123
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Membersof

Indo Thai Securities Limited

(CIN No. L67120MP1995PLC008959)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) financial statements of Indo Thai Securities Limited
("the Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies (Holding Company and its subsidiary companies together referred to as
“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (Including other comprehensive income), consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of consolidated
Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred toas'"the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, consolidated profit, total consolidated
comprehensive income, consolidated changesin equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder,and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opiniononthe
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. There is no key audit
matter to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management's Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone and
consolidated financial statementsand our auditor'sreport thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtainedinthe audit, or otherwise appearsto be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of thisauditor's report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin
thisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
The respective Board of Directors of the companiesincluded in the Group are responsible for
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maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies;making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statementsthat give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process ofthe Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
orthe override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

® Concludeonthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
thefinancial statementsrepresent the underlying transactionsand eventsina manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bearonourindependence,and where applicable, related safeguards.

122

Consolidated Financial Statements



np7 _
P4 IndoThai 28" Annual Report 2021-22

‘ trade with confidence

From the matters commmunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

a. The consolidated financial results include the audited financial results of Indo Thai Realties Limited, Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC)
Limited and Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. whose financial statements reflect Group's share of consolidated total assets of Rs.
1,352.37 Lakh as at March 31,2022, Group's share of consolidated total revenue of Rs. 37.15 Lakh and Group's share of consolidated
total net loss after tax of Rs. 73.58 Lakh in which include minority interest loss share of Rs. 24.99 Lakh for the year ended on that
date,asconsidered in the consolidated financial results, which have been audited by us.

b. The consolidated financial results includes the share of associate company Indo Thai Commmodities Private Limited whose
financial statementsreflect total assets of Rs.272.81 Lakh as at March 31,2022, Group's share of total asset is Rs. 65.25 Lakh and total
profit is Rs. 1.09 Lakh, which is considered in the consolidated financial results, which have been audited by other independent
auditor. The independent auditors' reports on financial statements have been furnished to us by the management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial results, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
entities, is based solely onthe report of such auditor.

Ouropinionisnot modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been keptsofarasitappearsfrom our examination of those books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of
changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose or preparation of the financial statements.

d.In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act,read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of
the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in
termsof Section164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin "Annexure-A".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
giventous:

i The Group hasno pending litigations onits financial position inits consolidated Financial Statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during theyearended March 31,2022;
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company during the year ended March 31,2022.

h. i. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
noted of the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loans or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or
thelike on behalfof ultimate beneficiaries;

ii. The management hasrepresented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly
lend orinvestin other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries;and

iii. Based on audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing hascome
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (I) and (ll) contain any
material misstatement.

I. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the holding company is in compliance of section 123 of the
Act.

j. Withrespecttothe matterto beincludedinthe Auditors' Report under section197(16) of the Act,asamended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid during the
current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies to its directors is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For SPARK & Associates Chartered AccountantsLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311

CA Chandresh Singhvi
Partner

Membership No. 436593
UDIN :22436593AJEYRNG309

Place: Indore
Date: May 18,2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated financial Statements of Indo
Thai Securities Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

In conjunction with our report of the consolidated financial statements of Indo Thai Securities Limited (the 'Holding
Company') as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent and its
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated
inIndia.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includesthose policiesand proceduresthat;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made onlyin accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assetsthat could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on t..e
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For SPARK & Associates Chartered AccountantsLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.005313C/C400311

CA Chandresh Singhvi
Partner

Membership No. 436593
UDIN:22436593AJEYRNG309

Place: Indore
Date: May 18,2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 2 178.68 603.84
(i) Bank balance other than (i) above 3 4,829.79 2604.73
(iii) Securities for trade 4 2,053.41 958.27
(iv) Receivables
(@) Trade Receivables 5 264.75 353.39
(b) Other Receivables - -
(v) Loans - -
(vi) Investments 6 1,461.07 1486.95
(vii) Other financial assets 7 679.59 591.39
Total Financial Assets 9,467.27 6598.56
2 Non Financial Assets
(i) Inventories - -
(ii) Current tax assets (Net) 8 - 13.29
(iii) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9 22.37 -
(iv) Investment property 10 930.54 831.79
(v) Property, plant and equipment n 207.23 217.07
(vi) Other intangible assets n 0.15 0.34
(vii) Right of asset use 12 12.92 14.27
(viii) Other non financial assets 13 233.82 185.70
Total Non Financial Assets 1,407.02 1262.46
TOTAL ASSETS 10,874.29 7861.02
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
(i) Payables
(@) Trade Payables 14
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises = -
(ii) other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
4,126.66 2,167.26
(b) Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - -
(ii) other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
0.30 0.32
(ii) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 15 147.69 22.67
(iii) Deposits 16 52.86 58.21
(iv) Other financial liabilities 17 62.41 42.3]
Total Financial Liabilities 4,389.92 2290.76
2 Non-financial Liabilities
(i) Current tax liabilities (Net) 18 5524 0.30
(ii) Provisions 19 4.07 -
(iii) Other non financial liabilities 20 0.71 12.05
(iv) Deferred tax Liabilities 9 = 24.80
Total Non Financial Liabilities 60.02 37.15
3 Equity
(i) Equity share capital 21 1,000.00 1,000.00
(ii) Other equity 22 5,425.64 453318
(iii) Non controlling interest 23 (1.29) -
Total Equity 6424.35 5533.11
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10874.29 7861.02
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Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai Securities Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311 Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi

Managing Director & CEO Chairman & Whole Time Director

DIN: 00700492 DIN: 00051460

Chandresh Singhvi Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &
Membership No. 436593 Compliance Officer

Place: Indore

Date: May 18, 2022
UDIN: 22436593AJEYRN6309
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Notes
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Revenue from operations

(a) Interest income 24 217.05 187.94
(b) Dividend income 25 27.29 11.64
(c) Fees and commission income 26

- Brokerage income 480.96 443.01

- Income from services 0.97 4.75
(d) Net gain on fair value changes 27 1,225.62 1,523.09
(e) Sale of services 28 23.62 19.73
(I) Total Revenue from operations 1,975.50 2,190.16
(1) Other Income 29 43.61 15.28
(111) Total Income (1+I1) 2,019.11 2,305.44
Expenses
(a) Finance cost 30 85.44 83.63
(b) Fees and commission expense 3] 206.19 124.70
(c) Net loss on fair value changes - -
(d) Employee benefits expenses 32 306.85 217.16
(e) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 33 61.30 76.43
(f) Other expenses 34 243.85 185.46
(IV) Total Expenses 903.63 687.38
(V) Profit/(loss) before tax (Il -IV) 1,115.48 1,618.06
(VI) Tax expense: 35

(a) Tax Expenses 194.65 (0.82)
(b) Deferred tax (46.99) 383.60

(Vi) Profit/(loss) for the year (V-VI) 967.82 1,235.28
One time impact on Tax Expenses(current & deferred) due to change in tax Rate 36 - 218.95
(VIlI) Profit/(loss) for the year 967.82 1,016.33

Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined employee

benefit plans (0.38) 18.57

(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss 0.10 (4.67)
(1X) Other Comprehensive Income (0.28) 13.90

(X) Total comprehensive income for the period (VIII+IX)
(comprising Profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive income

for the period) 967.54 1,030.22
Total Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owner of the Company 992.53 1,030.22
Non Controlling interest (24.99) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owner of the Company 992.81 1,016.33
Non Controlling interest (24.99) -
Earnings per equity share:(Face value 10/- per share) 37
Basic (in Rs.) 9.67 1018
Diluted (in Rs.) 9.67 1018
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai Securities Limited

For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311 Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi
Managing Director & CEO Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00700492 DIN: 00051460

Chandresh Singhvi

Partner

Membership No. 436593 Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Indore & Compliance Officer

Date: May 18, 2022
UDIN: 22436593AJEYRN6309
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

For the year For the year

Particulars ended March 31, ended March 31,
2022 2021

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit before tax 1,115.48 1,618.06
Add /(less): Adjustments
Depreciation / Amortization 61.30 76.43
Interest expenses 85.44 83.63
Net (gain)/loss arising on financial assets measured at FVTPL (1,225.62) (1,523.09)
Dividend income (27.29) (M.64)
Interest Income (217.05) (187.94)
Short Term Capital Gain - (0.29)
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes (207.74) 55.15
Adjustment for:
(Increase)/ Decrease in other bank balances (0.80) (311.44)
(Increase)/ Decrease in securities for trade (1,095.15) (612.32)
(Increase)/ Decrease in receivables 88.64 733.39
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets (88.19) 18.27
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non financial assets (49.27) 4487
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 1,959.38 473.98
Increase/ (Decrease) in deposits (5.35) (8.18)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 20.11 (29.22)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 4.07 (8.23)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non financial liabilities (11.33) (6.61)
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 614.43 449.67
Direct tax paid (126.59) (13.29)
Net cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities (A) 487.83 436.38

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Payments made/received for purchase/sale of PPE/ capital expenditure (148.66) (111.80)

Purchase of Investment Property - -

Decrease/ (Increase) in Investment Financial Asset - -

Increase/(Decrease) in Bank Deposit (2,224.206) -

Interest received 217.05 187.94
(Purchase) / Sale of Investments 1,275.99 305.55
Loans - Financial Assets - -

Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Financial Asset - (1.50)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities - (1.85)
Net proceeds (to)/from financial asset - (3.18)
Dividend income 27.29 1.64
Net cash from/ (used in) Investing Activities (B) (852.58) 376.74
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Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 125.02 (671.35)
Proceeds from financial liabilities - 44.19
Interest paid (85.44) (83.63)
Dividend and Dividend distribution tax (100.00) -
Net cash from/ (used in) Financing Activities (C) (60.42) (710.79)
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (425.18) 102.33
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 603.84 501.51
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 178.67 603.84
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
Cash in hand 3.62 3.03
Balance with scheduled banks
Current account 175.05 599.84
Fixed deposit - 0.97
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 178.68 603.84

Significant accounting policies

]

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For SPARK & Associates Chartered
Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311

Chandresh Singhvi
Partner

Membership No. 436593

Place: Indore

Date: 18th May, 2022

UDIN:22436593AJEYRNG309

For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai Securitie

Limited

Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi

Chairman & Whole
Time Director
DIN: 00051460

Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 00700492

Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah

Company Secretary &

Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
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A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Equity Shares No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares
At the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
Add: Shares Issued during the year R - R R
Closing at the end of year 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
B. Other Equity (Rs. In Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Security . ]
) Retained Earnings
Premium
Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,386.15 1,116.73 3,502.88
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 1,016.33 1,016.33
Total comprehensive income for the year - 13.90 13.90
Dividend - - -
Dividend Distribution Tax - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,386.15 2,146.96 4,533.11
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 992.81 992.81
Total comprehensive income for the year - (0.28) (0.28)
Dividend - (100.00) (100.00)
Dividend Distribution Tax - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,386.15 3,039.49 5,425.64

As per our report of even date attached

For SPARK & Associates Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Indo Thai Securities Limited

Chandresh Singhvi Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi
Partner Managing Director & CEO Chairman & Whole Time Director
Membership No. 436593 DIN: 00700492 DIN: 00051460

Place: Indore

Date: May 18, 2022 Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah

Company Secretary &

UDIN: 22436593AJEYRNG309 Compliance Officer

Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2022

1. (1) Corporate Information

Indo Thai Securities Limited (“ITSL" or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) carries on the business as stock and share brokers on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE") and the BSE Limited (“BSE”"); depository participants, Real estate and other related ancillary
services. On September 14, 1995, ITSL received a certificate of registration from the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI") under sub-section 1of section 12 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 to
carry on the business as a stock broker. Accordingly, all provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992, and Rules and Regulations relating thereto are applicable to the Company. On November 2, 2011 the
Equity shares of the Company were listed on the NSE and the BSE.

(1)} Significant Accounting Policies
a) Basis of Accounting and Preparation of consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS'). The Holding Company is covered under the definition of NBFC
and the Ind AS is applicable under Phase Il as defined in notification dated March 30, 2016 issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA), since the holding company is a listed company. Accordingly, the Group isrequired
to preparethefinancial statement onthe basis of Ind AS.

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Sec 133 of the Companies Act ("the Act") read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

These consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule Il (Division I1l) of the
Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). These
consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR"), which is also the
group Company's functional currency and all values are rounded to nearest Lacs upto two decimal places,
exceptotherwiseindicated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 are being authorised for issue in
accordance with aresolution ofthedirectorson May18,2022.

b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that
management make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policiesand the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of
the date of the financial statements and the income and expense for the reporting period. The actual results
could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.

The Group makes certain judgments and estimates for valuation and impairment of financial instruments,
fair valuation of employee stock options, useful life of property, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets and
retirement benefit obligations. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statementsare prudentand reasonable.

Basis of consolidation of accounts of subsidiary companies:

The Company consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the group companies and subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 41. Control
exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity.
Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which
significantly affect the entity's returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commmences until
the date control ceases.

The financial statements of the group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra—group
balances and transactions including unrealised gain / loss from such transactions are eliminated upon
consolidation. Ifa member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adoptedinthe
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consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that Group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies. Non- controlling interests, which
represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned
or controlled by the group companies, are excluded.

c) Revenue Recognition

i. Revenue from brokerage activities is accounted for on the exchange settlement date of the
transaction.

ii. Revenue from issue management, debt syndication, financial advisory services etc,, is recognized
based on the stage of completion of assignmentsand terms of agreement with the client.

iii. Gains / losses on dealing in securities are recognized on the exchange settlement date of the
transaction.

iv.Interestincome isrecognized using the effective interest rate method.

v. Revenuefromdividendisrecognized when therighttoreceive the dividend is established.

vi. Revenue is recognised at a Point in Time w.rt. sale of real estate units, including land, plots,
apartments, commercial units, development rights as and when the control passes on to the customer
which coincides with handing over of the possession to the customer.

d) Cost of revenue

i. Cost of land and plots:

Cost of land and plots includes land (including development rights), acquisition cost, estimated internal
development costs and external development charges, which is charged to the statement of profit and
loss based on the percentage of land/ plotted area in respect of which revenue is recognised as
explained in accounting policy for revenue from 'Sale of land and plots', in consonance with the concept
of matching costand revenue. Final adjustment is made on completion of the specific project.

ii. Cost of real estate projects:

Cost of constructed properties includes cost of land (including cost of development rights/ land under
agreements to purchase), estimated internal development costs, external development charges,
borrowing costs, overheads, construction costs and development/ construction materials, which is
chargedtothe statement of profit and loss based on the revenue recognized as explained in accounting
policy for revenue from real estate projects above, in consonance with the concept of matching costs
andrevenue.

e) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Measurement at recognition:
i. property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, ifany. Subsequent costsare included in the asset's carrying amount.

ii. All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use.

iii. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation:
i. Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a written-down-value (WDV)
using theratesarrived at based on the useful lives estimated by management.

ii. Depreciation on assets is provided on a Written Down Method as per the rates prescribed in Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis
fromthe date the asset is available for use. Depreciation on sale /deduction from fixed assets is provided
for uptothe date of sale/deduction/scrapping, as the case may be.
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iii. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and changes if any, are accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Capital Work in Progress:

i Cost of the assets not ready for intended use, as on reporting date, is shown as capital work in
progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each reporting date are
shown asother non-financial assets.

ii. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work- in-progress until construction and installation is
completed and assetsare ready foritsintended use.

f) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition,intangible assets are carried at cost lessaccumulated amortization.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives and is included in the depreciation and amortization in the
statement of profitand loss.

Intangible asset Useful Life / Amortisation Period

Computer Software : 3 Years

g) Investment properties

Recognition and initial measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at their cost of acquisition including transaction costs. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group.All other repairand maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profitand loss asincurred.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit orlossasincurred.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value atthe dateofchangeinuse.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Depreciation on investment properties is provided on the written down value method, over the
useful lives of the assets as per Schedule I to the Companies Act 2013.

De-recognition
Investment properties are de-recognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in
statement of profitandlossin the period of de-recognition
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h) financial instruments

The Group recognizes all the financial assets and liabilities at its fair value on initial recognition; In the case of
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset are added to the fair value on initial recognition. The financial assets
areaccounted on atrade date basis.

For subsequent measurement, financial assets are categorised into:

Amortised cost: The Group classifies the financial assets at amortised cost if the contractual cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and the assets are
held under a business model to collect contractual cash flows. The gains and losses resulting from
fluctuations in fair value are not recognised for financial assets classified in amortised cost measurement
category.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): The Group classifies the financial assets as
FVOCI if the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and the Group's business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow
and selling financial assets. In case of debt instruments measured at FVOCI, changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. The impairment gains or losses, foreign exchange gains or
losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. On de-
recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is re-
classified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. In case of equity instruments
irrevocably desighated at FVOCI, gains / losses including relating to foreign exchange, are recognised
through other comprehensive income. Further, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain permanently in equity and are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss
onderecognition.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): The financial assets are classified as FVTPL if these do not meetthe
criteria for classifying at amortised cost or FVOCI. Further, in certain cases to eliminate or significantly reduce
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (accounting mismatch), the Group irrevocably designates
certain financial instruments at FVTPL at initial recognition. In case of financial assets measured at FVTPL,
changesinfairvalue are recognised in profit or loss.

Profitorlossonsale ofinvestmentsis determined on the basis of first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on

the presumptionthatthetransaction tosell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability,assuming that market participantsactin theireconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset inits highest and best use.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy
ofvaluation techniques,as summarised below:

Level1-The fairvalue hierarchy have been valued using quoted pricesforinstrumentsin an active market.
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Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as
prices) orindirectly (i.e.derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation
technique includes inputs that are not observable and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on
theinstrument'svaluation.

Based on the Group's business model for managing the investments, the Group companies has classified its
investments and securities for trade at FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries is carried at deemed cost (previous
GAAP carryingamount) as per Ind AS 27.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other
payables, the carryingamount approximatesthe fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS109, the Group applies expected credit loss model
(ECL) for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Company recognises lifetime expected
losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. At
each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the loans have been impaired. The Company is exposed
tocreditrisk when the customer defaults on his contractual obligations. Forthe computation of ECL, the loan
receivablesare classified into three stages based on the defaultand the aging of the outstanding.

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related
objectively toan event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the excess is written back by reducing
the loan impairment allowance account accordingly. The write-back is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

For subsequent measurements, financial liability are categorised into:

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction cost that are attributable to the
separate liabilities. All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method orat FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Companyasanacquirerin a business combination towhich Ind AS103 applies oris held for
tradingoritisdesignatedasat FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for- trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised
costare determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
thefinancialliability, or (where appropriate) ashorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directissue costs.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised inthe Statement of Profitand Loss.
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i) Employee Benefits

Gratuity

The Group pays gratuity, a defined benefit plan, toitsemployeeswho retire or resign after a minimum period of five
years of continuous service. The Group companies makes contributions to the LIC Employees Gratuity Fund which
ismanaged by Life Insurance Company Limited (LIC) for the settlement of gratuity liability.

Adefined benefit planis a post- employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group's net
obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employee has earned in exchange of their service in the current and prior periods and discounted back to the
current valuation date to arrive at the present value of the defined benefit obligation. The defined benefit
obligation is deducted from the fair value of plan assets, to arrive at the net asset / (liability), which need to be
provided forin the books of accounts of the Group.

As required by the Ind AS19, the discount rate used to arrive at the present value of the defined benefit obligations
is based on the Indian Government security yields prevailing as at the balance sheet date that have maturity date
equivalenttothetenure of the obligation.

The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation
resultsin a net asset position, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
form of reductionsin future contributions.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprises of actuarial gains and losses on benefit
obligations, the return on plan assets in excess of what has been estimated and the effect of asset ceiling, if any, in
case of over funded plans. The Group recognizes these items of remeasurements in other comprehensive income
and all the other expenses related to defined benefit plans as employee benefit expenses in their profit and loss
account.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed or settlement occurs, the portion of the
changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment or settlement, is
recognized immediately in the profit or loss account when the plan amendment or when a curtailment or
settlementoccurs.

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group is statutorily
required to contribute a specified portion of the basic salary of an employee to a provident fund as part of
retirement benefits to its employees. The contributions during the year are charged to the statement of profitand
loss.

i) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense as per the effective interest rate (EIR) and other costs incurred by the
Group in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of those tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are
incurred.

k) Foreign exchange transactions

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupees. Transactions in foreign
currency are recorded on initial recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at
the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognizedinthe statement of profitand lossinthe period in which they arise.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate at each reporting period. Income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated at monthly average rates. The resultant exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income in case of foreign operation whose functional currency is different
from the presentation currency and in the statement of profit and loss for other foreign operations. Non-monetary
items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate
atthe date of the transaction.
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1) Leases
Acontractis,or contains,aleaseifthe contract conveystherighttocontrol the use ofan identified asset for a period
oftimein exchange for consideration.

As per the requirements of Ind AS 116 the company evaluates whether an arrangement qualifies to be a lease. In
identifying a lease, the company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods
covered by an option to extent the lease if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The
Company revisestheleasetermifthereisachangeinthe non-cancellable period of a lease.

Company as alessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Right of Use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at
the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying
assetorsiteon whichitislocated.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the written down value method from the commencement date over the lease term. Right-of-
use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable and impairmentloss,ifany,isrecognised in the statement of profitand loss.

Company hasrecognised lease hold land asright of use asset and depreciated over its lease term.

Lease Liability

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the
portfolioasawhole.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount
toreflectany reassessment or lease modifications. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of
lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss
depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any
remaining amount of the re-measurementin statement of profitand loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that

have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leasesare recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Operating leases

The Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases
previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, is or
contains a lease, at the date of initial application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying
Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review,
excluded initial direct costs fromm measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application and used
hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease. The
Company hasused asingle discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Company as alessor

Attheinception ofthe lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or afinance lease.
The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investmentin the lease. Ifan arrangement contains
lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers to
allocate the considerationin the contract.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has elected by class of underlying asset to not recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short
term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.

m) Income tax

The income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax incurred by the Group. Income tax expense is
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
OCl, in which case the tax effect is recognised in equity or OCI. Income tax payable on profits is based on the
applicable tax laws in each tax jurisdiction and is recognised as an expense in the period in which profit arises.
Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates
enacted for the reporting period and any adjustment to tax payable/receivable in respect of previous years.

Currenttaxassetsand liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) The entity haslegally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and
b) Intends either tosettle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purpose and the amounts for tax purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised, for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
andarereducedtotheextentthatitisnolonger probablethatthe related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred taxassetsand liabilities are offset only if:

a) The entity haslegally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority onthe same taxable entity.

The tax effects of income tax losses, available for carry forward, are recognised as deferred tax asset, when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be set-off.

Additional taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends by the Company are recognised directly in equity at
thesametime astheliability to pay the related dividend isrecognised.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with the banks
andshort-terminvestmentswith an original maturity of three monthsorless,and accrued interest thereon.
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o) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amountisthe higher of an asset's or cash- generating unit's (“CGU") fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount isdetermined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation modelis used. Impairmentlosses are recognised in statement of profitand loss.

P) Provisions

Provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, supplemented by experience of similar transactions. These are reviewed at
the balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

q) Contingentliabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, is termed as a contingent liability. The existence of a contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Contingent assetsare neither recognised nor disclosed.

r) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive
potential equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow are reported using Indirect Method, where by profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of
transaction of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipt or paymentsand items of
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flow from operating, Investing &
financing activities of the company is segregated based on the available information.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As At March| As At March 31,
31, 2022 2021
(@) Cash in hand 3.62 3.03
(b) Balance with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
In current account with banks
- In India with schedule banks 175.05 599.84
(c) Others
Fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months
- In India - 0.97
(d) Interest accrued on fixed deposits - -
Total 178.68 603.84

* Rs. 0.00 Lakh indicates values are lower than Rs. 0.01, where applicable.

3. Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalents (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As At March| As At March 31,

31, 2022 2021

Other bank balance

(a) Earmarked Balances with Banks :
- Unpaid Dividend Accounts 4.31 3.50

(b) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin

money or security against the borrowings, guarantees,

other commitments 4.722.74 2,457.42
(c) Fixed deposits with banks original maturity more than 3 months
- In India 102.74 143.81
(d) Interest receivable - -
TOTAL 4,829.79 2,604.73
4. Security for trade (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As At March| As At March 31,
31, 2022 2021

Measured at Fair value through profit and loss
- Equity instruments 2,053.41 958.27
Total (Gross) 2,053.41 958.27
Less: Impairment loss - -
Total (Net) 2,053.41 958.27
5. Trade Receivables (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As At March| As At March 31,
31,2022 2021
Receivables considered good - Secured 196.88 276.63
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 67.87 76.76
Receivables - credit impaired 12.70 13.74
Total (Gross) 277.44 367.13
Less: Impairment allowance (12.70) (13.74)
Total (Net) 264.75 353.39

Note : Related party transaction are given in note no. 40
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6. Investments (Rs. In Lakhs)
As At

Particulars As At March| March 31,
31,2022 2021

Investments in India
(A) At fair value through profit and loss
(i) EqQuity Instruments:
- Quoted and fully paid up

Asian Paints 6.31 2.54
Agri Tech (India) Ltd. - 0.44
Alok Industries 1.80 3.02
Adani Power 0.99 42.53
Adani total Gas - 14.42
Arti Industries 14.37 16.48
Adani Enterprises 82.93 580.15
Balkrishna Industries 4.27 3.38
Britannia Industries 4.88 9.06
Birla Soft - 12.65
Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd. 5.90 29.25
Biocon Ltd. - 2.45
Castrol India Ltd. - 0.25
Colgate-Palmolive India Ltd. - 1.56
Camlin Fine Sciences 139.45 136.24
CSB Bank 57.01 62.88
Creative Peripherals & Distribution Ltd. - -

Dabur India 5.36 5.41
Eicher Motors 2.46 2.60
Gabriel India Ltd. - 4.23
Glenmark Pharmaceuticals 4.42 4.65
HBL Power Systems - 56.70
Hero Motocorp - 5.83
HDFC Bank 22.79 23.15
Hindustan Construction Company Ltd. 0.80 0.41
Hindustan Unilever 4.10 12.16
Indusind Bank Ltd. - 0.95
Indian Railway Catering & Tourism Corporation - 2.64
ITC Limited - 2.19
Infosys 32.45 2.74
InfoBeans Technologies Ltd. - 2.95
Jubilant Pharmova - 10.22
Jubilant Ingrevia - 3.90
L&T Finance Holdings Ltd. 2.42 2.88
Lupin Ltd. - 2.04
M.R.F Limited 7.15 41
Motherson Sumi 1.63 2.01
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Ltd. - -

Nath Bio-Genes (India) Ltd. - 6.32
Nazara Technologies - 0.34
Natraj Proteins Ltd. - -

Nestle India - 515
NBCC (India) Ltd. - 0.35
Prakash Woollen & Synthetic Mills Ltd. 229.56 -

Ramky Infrastructure Ltd. - -

S.S. Infrastructure Development Consultants Ltd. 29.28 12.00
Tata Consultancy Services 4.53 6.36
Tata Steel Ltd. 0.65 0.41
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Tata Steel Ltd. (Partly Paid Up)

Techindia Nirman Ltd. - 0.10
Whirlpool of India 4.72 1n.13
Worth Peripherals Ltd. - 2.89
Marico Limited 8.23 5.89
Pidilite Industries - 9.05
Prakash Woollen & Synthetic Mills - 14.53
Punjab National Bank - 5.68
Reliance Industries - 14.04
SBI Cards & Payment Services 34,92 42.70
Suven Pharmaceuticals 8.66 6.96
Titan Company 2.54 1.56
Usha Martin - 13.22
Suven Life Sciences - 2.47
Zota Health Care 2.98 -
Agri-Tech (India) 174 -
Biocon Limited 2.01 -
Castrol India 0.20 -
Colgate-Palmolive India 1.54 -
Gabriel India 4.59 -
Indusind Bank 0.94 -
Nath Bio-Genes (India) 4.49 -
NBCC (India) 0.27 -
Rajasthan Gases 0.01 -
Techindia Nirman 0.48 -
Ambika Cotton Mills 4.71 -
Ashoka Buildcon 22.95 -
Available Finance 16.85 -
Bombay Dyeing 19.69 -
Bosch Limited 1.01 -
BSE Ltd 5.66 -
Central Depository Services (India) 29.61 -
Cosmo Films 5.20 -
Data Patterns (India) 0.24 -
Devyani International 1.58 -
EKI Energy Services 3.92 -
Himatsingka Seide 3.01 -
Indiabulls Housing Finance 0.32 -
Indiabulls Real Estate 10.65 -
Indo Count 0.32 -
Jain Irrigation 20.43 -
Jaiprakash Power Ventures 6.80 -
KPIT Technologies 6.01 -
Larsen & Toubro Ltd. 5.30 -
Latent View Analytics 0.49 -
Laxmi Organic Industries 79.75 -
Maral Overseas 4.1 -
MSTC Ltd 6.12 -
Nahar Spinning 3.08 -
Oberoi Realty 10.34 -
Orient Paper 0.69 -
Prestige Estates Projects n.n -
Reliance Industries Ltd. 11.86 -
Reliance Power 2.84 -
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Rupa & Company 8.32 -
Shiva Texyarn 2.04 -
Sovereign Gold Bond 2.50% AUG 2028 SR-V 2020-21 (IN0020200161) - -
State Bank Of India 6.42 -
Sterling and Wilson Renewable Energy 3.18 -
Suryalakshmi Cotton 4.73 -
Suzlon Energy 13.08 -
Tata Coffee 14.09 -
Tata Elxsi 8.84 -
Tata Power Company 2.39 -
Trident 2.67 -
United Spirits 0.89 -
Wipro Limited 5.92 -
(ii) Investment in Mutual Funds
Aditya Birla Sun Life MIDCAP Fund-Growth 7.63 5.83
Aditya Birla Sun Life Pure Value Fund - Growth Option 4.83 4.06
AXxis Focused 25 Fund - Growth Option 1.53 10.03
Axis Liquid Fund- Growth Option - nn
Axis Long Term Equity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 7.84 6.89
Axis Long Term Equity Fund - Growth 7.99 7.08
DSP Equity Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 2.63 2.29
Franklin India PRIMA FUND - Direct - Growth 9.14 7.97
HDFC MID-CAP Opportunities Fund Growth Option 2.82 2.28
ICICI Prudential Multicap Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 2.57 2.09
ICICI Prudential Value Discovery Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 8.38 6.33
IDFC Emerging Business Direct Plan Growth 1n.17 8.31
Kotak Emerging Equity Scheme - Growth 3.22 2.58
Kotak Equity Hybrid - Growth 7.94 6.76
L&T Mid Cap Fund-Growth 2.74 2.37
Nippon India Equity Hybrid Fund - Growth Plan 1.29 110
Nippon India Small Cap Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Optid 12.69 8.58
Nippon India Small Cap Fund - Growth Plan - Growth Option 3.70 2.57
SBI Focused Equity Fund Regular Plan Growth 2.70 2.17
SBI Small Cap - Regular Plan - Growth 3.08 2.40
Sundaram Mid Cap Fund- Direct Plan - Growth Option 15.57 12.56
Tata Equity P/E Fund -Direct Plan Growth 3.23 2.69
UTI Mid Cap Fund-Growth Option- Direct 6.01 4.86
(iii) Investment in physical gold 51.32 -
(iv) Investment in Government Securities
Sovereign Gold Bond 2.75% 47.72 23.03
- Wholly owned subsidiaries
(a) Indo Thai Realities Ltd. - -
(b) Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. - -
(c) Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. -
(v) Associate Company
Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd. 107.77 106.67
(vi) Investments in Other Structured Entities
Sky Space Ventures (LLP) 4.52 4,18
Less: Provision for Diminution in the value of Investment - -
Total (A+B) 1,461.07 1,486.95

* Rs. 0.00 Lakh indicates values are lower than Rs. 0.01, where applicable.
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7. Other Financial Assets

Particulars

‘ As At March 31,

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As At March 31,

yloyy) 2021
(A) Security deposits
a. Unsecured, considered good
i. Deposits with Exchange 590.17 539.87
ii. Other Security Deposits 50.24 4116
(B) Others
a. Accrued Interest - 1.56
b. Receivables from stock exchange against Daily Obligation 21.84 8.81
c. Income Tax Refund 17.33
d. Others 0.00 -
Total (A+B) 679.59 591.39
8. Current Tax Asset (Net) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Advance tax paid (Net of provisions)

A

A

0
13.29

Total

13.29

9. Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

‘ As At March 31,

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As At March 31,

2022 ylopl|
Deferred tax (assets) / liabilities (refer note no. 34) 19.41 25.69
MAT credit entitlement 2.96 (0.89
Total 22.37 24.80

10. Investment property (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Furniture
and

Office
equipments|

Computer

‘ Land

fixtures

Gross Carrying amount (At Cost or deemed cost)
Balance as at March 31,2020 642.36 106.68 64.18 - 813.22
Additions 82.02 18.76 1.00 - 101.78
Deductions - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 724.38 125.44 65.18 - 915.00
Additions 129.97 - - - 129.97
Deductions - - - - -
Balance as at March 31,2022 854.35 125.44 65.18 - 1,044.97
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation
Balance as at March 31, 2020 - 221 20.04 - 4215
Depreciation for the year - 23.56 17.50 - 41.06
Deductions - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 45.67 37.54 - 83.21
Depreciation for the year - 20.71 10.51 - 31.22
Deductions - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 66.38 48.05 - M4.43
Net block
As at March 31, 2021 724.38 79.77 27.65 - 831.79
As at March 31, 2022 854.35 59.06 1713 - 930.54
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12 Right of asset use

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As At
Particulars As At March| March 31,
31,2022 pLoy]
Lease-hold Office Premises
Gross Carrying amount (At Cost or deemed cost)
Opening Balance 17.58 17.58
Transfer from PPE - -
Additions - -
Disposal / Adjustment - -
Closing Carrying Amount 17.58 17.58
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation
Opening Balance 3.31 1.82
Transfer from PPE - -
Depreciation for the year 1.36 1.50
Disposal / Adjustment - -
Closing Accumulated depreciation 4.67 3.32
Net Carrying amounts 12.92 14.27
13 Other Non-Financial Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

As At
Particulars As At March| March 31,
31,2022 2021
(a) Capital Advance - -
(b) Advances other than capital advances
- Prepaid expenses 20.68 19.68
- Advances to creditors 150.42 3.93
- Advances to Staff 5.62 2.18
- Other Receivable 578 61.89
- TDS Receivable - 64.49
- Advance against property 23.49 33.53
- GST CENVAT 24.77 -
- GST Receivables 3.07 -
Total 233.82 185.70
14 Payables (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

(A) Trade payables

As At March

31,2022

As At
March 31,
2021

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises 4,126.66 2,167.26
(B) Other payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.30 0.32
Total 4,126.96 2,167.58

Note: There are no micro, small and medium enterprises, to which company owes dues. This information is
required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 that has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with

the Company.
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15 Borrowings (other than debt securities)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As At
Particulars As At March| March 31,
31,2022 2021
In India
Secured

- At amortized cost

(@) From Banks

Term Loan

a. HDFC Bank Ltd. *

Demand Loan

b. HDFC Bank Ltd- STL **

Bank overdraft

a. HDFC Bank OD

147.69
b. Indusind Bank OD * - 22.67
Total 147.69 22.67
- Rs. 0.00 Lakh indicates values are lower than Rs. 0.01, where applicable.
* OD taken against fixed deposit and personal guarantee of Directors at the rate of interest 8.25%
16 Deposits (Rs. In Lakhs)
As At
Particulars As At March| March 31,
31,2022 2021
At amortized cost
- Security deposits (From Branches & Franchisees) 43.82 41.34
- Security deposits (From Tenant) 9.04 16.87
Total 52.86 58.21
17 Other Financial Liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As At March
31,2022

As At
March 31,
2021

Interest payable 7.66 -
Expenses creditors 36.69 31.35
Dividend payable 4.31 3.50
Other payable 1.47 0.93
Derivative financial instrument liability - 6.52
Audit Fees Payable 0.30 -
Provision 2.30 -
Statutory Dues 4.92 -
Employee Related Liabilities 4.77 -
Total 62.41 42.31
18 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. In Lakhs)
0 0
Income Tax Payable 55.24 0.30
Total 55.24 0.30
19 Provisions (Rs. In Lakhs)
As At
Particulars As At March| March 31,
31,2022 2021
Provision for gratuity 0.48 -
Provision for CSR Expenses - -
Other Provisions 3.59
Total 4.07 -
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20 Other Non-Financial Liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars | CBLIMEER
31,2022| As At March 31,2021

Statutory Dues 0.61 519
Employee Related Liabilities - 6.74
Other Payable 0.10 0.12

Total 0.71 12.05
21 Equity Share Capital (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars | LBl
31,2022 As At March 31, 2021

(A) Authorized:
1,20,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,200.00 1,200.00
(March 31,2020:1,20,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

Total 1,200.00 1,200.00
(B) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Shares
1,00,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
(March 31,2020: 1,00,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

Total 1,000.00 1,000.00
(C) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the year
At the beginning of the year (Nos.) 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Issued during the year (Nos.) -
Outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.) 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

(D) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % shares

Name of Shareholder

Parasmal Doshi 1,65,900 11.66% 11,65,900 11.66%)
Dhanpal Doshi 12,70,500 12.71% 12,65,000 12.65%
Varsha Doshi 14,74,550 14.75% 14,09,850 14.10%
Sadhana Doshi 10,45,000 10.45% 10,45,000 10.45%
Nishit Doshi 5,77,000 5.77% 5,77,000 5.77%|
Sarthak Doshi 5,60,000 5.60% 4,98,000 4.98%

(E) Details of Promoters shareholding pattern in the Company

Name of Shareholder

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

No. of
shares

% Change during
the year

Dhanpal Doshi HUF 2,62,300 2.62%) 2,52,900 2.53%) 3.56%)
Paras Doshi HUF 1,59,500 1.60%) 1,59,500 1.60% 0.00%)
Rajmati Hinged 29,400 0.29% 47,400 0.47% -38.30%)
Sadhana Doshi 10,45,000 10.45% 10,45,000 10.45% 0.00%)
Dhanpal Doshi 12,70,500 12.71%) 12,65,000 12.65% 0.47%|
Parasmal Doshi 11,65,900 11.66%) 11,65,900 11.66%) 0.00%j
Gaurav Jain 29,400 0.29% 29,400 0.29% 0.00%j
Varsha Doshi 14,74,500 14.75% 14,09,850 14.10% 4.61%)
Vijaya Jain 40,550 0.41% 40,500 0.41% 0.00%j
Chandra Shekhar Doshi 12,000 0.12%) 12,000 0.12%) 0.00%)
Nivya Doshi 67,750 0.68% 62,500 0.63% 7.94%)
Nishit Doshi 5,77,000 5.77%) 5,77,000 5.77%) 0.00%j
Sarthak Doshi 5,60,000 5.60% 4,98,000 4.98% 12.45%)
Kusum Doshi 28,500 0.29% 28,500 0.29% 0.00%)
3M Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 38,500 0.39% 38,500 0.39% 0.00%)
Future Infraestates Pvt. Ltd. 51,000 0.51%) 51,000 0.51%) 0.00%)
Indothai Wealth Management Pvt. Ltd. 1,35,000 1.35% 1,35,000 1.35% 0.00%)
Citadel Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 2,71,097 2.71% 2,71,097 2.71% 0.00%j
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(F) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share. The dividend, in case proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(G) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment.

(H) Other details of equity shares for a period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2022:

No. of Shares

Particulars 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Aggregate number of share allotted as fully paid up
pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received - - - -
in cash

Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid bonus
shares ] ] ] .
Aggregate number of shares bought back - - - -
22 Other Equity (Rs. In Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Security Retained
Premium Earnings

Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,386.15 1,116.73 3,502.88

Profit / (Loss) for the year - 1,016.33 1,016.33

Total comprehensive income for the year - 13.90 13.90

Dividend - - -

Dividend Distribution Tax - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,386.15 2,146.96 4,533.11

Profit / (Loss) for the year 992.81 992.81

Total comprehensive income for the year (0.28) (0.28)

Dividend (100.00) (100.00)

Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,386.15 3,039.49 5,425.64

Nature and Purpose of reserve

1. Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such asissuance of bonus shares, writing off the preliminary expenses in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. It
also includes actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognized in other comprehensive income (net of taxes).

23 Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests represent proportionate share held by minority shareholders in the net assets of subsidiaries which are not
wholly-owned by the Company.

The balance of non-controlling interests as at the end of the year is as below:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particul As At March  As At March
articulars
31,2022 31, 2021
Non-controlling interests (1.29) -
Total | | | | (1.29) -

i) The company, through its subsidary Femto Green Hydrogen Limited holds 57% (March 31, 2021: NIL) equity stake.
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24 Interest Income

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Ended on Ended on
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Interest income on financial assets
measured at amortised cost :
(i) Fixed deposits with banks 193.33 161.37
(if) Funding and late payments 22.99 21.55
(i) Interest on ICD - 5.02
(iv) Interest on Sovereign Gold Bonds 0.72
Total 217.05 187.94
25 Dividend Income (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Ended on

Ended on

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Dividend Income

- From Investments 27.29 1.64
Total 27.29 11.64
26 Fees and Commission Income (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Ended on Ended on
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Brokerage income

Brokerage income 480.96 443.01
Total A 480.96 443.01

Income from services
Others 0.97 4.75
Total B 0.97 4.75
Total (A+B) 481.93 44776
(Rs. In Lakhs)

27 Net Gain / (Loss) on Fair Value Changes

Particulars

Ended on

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Ended on

(A) Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(i) Profit/(loss) on sale of derivatives held for trade (net) (61.02) 599.1
(i) Profit/(loss) on other securities held 385.47 390.38
(iii) Profit/(loss) on sale of investments (net) at fair value through profit or loss 897.62 533.60
(iv) Profit/(loss) on foreign currency transaction & translation 3.54 -
(B) Total net gain on fair value changes 1,225.62 1,523.09
(C) Fair value changes:
(i) Realised 970.85 829.83
(ii) Unrealised 254.77 693.26
Total 1,225.62 1,523.09
28 Sale of Services (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Ended on

Ended on

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Income from Depository 23.62 19.73
Total 23.62 19.73
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29 Other Income (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Ended on Ended on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Recovery of bad debts - 0.06
Reversal of Doubtful Debts Provision 1.04 66.04
Rent received 31.50 39.90
Income from mutual fund 0.13 -
Share in profit of associate company 1.09
Miscellaneous Income 9.85 9.28
Total 43.62 115.28
30 Finance Cost (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Ended on Ended on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on borrowings 78.44 77.55
Other borrowing cost 7.01 6.08
Total 85.44 83.63
31 Fees and Commission Expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Ended on Ended on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Commission to Branches & AP's 200.33 118.02
Depository charges 1.78 2.59
Membership and Subscription Fees 4.08 4.09
Total 206.19 124.70
(Rs. In Lakhs)

32 Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars

Salary and Wages

Ended on

Ended on

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

245.87

168.38

33 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Particulars

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Ended on
March 31, 2022
28.52

Contribution to Provident fund and other fund (Refer Note no. 44) 10.16 9.35
Staff Welfare expenses 50.81 39.43
Total 306.85 217.16

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Ended on
March 31, 2021
33.57

Amortisation on other intangible assets 0.20 0.30
Depreciation on investment property 31.22 41.05
Depreciation on right of asset use 1.36 1.50

Total 61.30 76.43
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34 Other Expenses

Particulars

Ended on

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Ended on

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

** Details of Auditor's Remuneration (excluding service tax)

Ended on

Rent and amenities 51.93 4412
Insurance 4.28 4.27
Travelling and conveyance expenses 7.38 3.24
Annual Maintenance Expenses 49.02 40.44
Annual Membership Fee 0.79 -
Electricity expenses 14.19 12.91
VSAT and Internet expenses 7.84 15.28
Communication expenses 2.78 2.99
Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 14.39 7.34
Printing and stationery 1.05 1.28
Auditor’s fees and expenses ** 1.75 1.45
Bad Debts 1.90 1.59
Net gain on foreign curreny transaction & translation - 3.91
Repairs, maintenance, upkeep and others 4.75 4.03
Legal and professional charges 30.30 .36
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses 21.34 1.62
Director Sitting Fee 0.09 -
Incorporation Expenses 0.14 -
Office Expenses 2.21 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 27.73 28.15
Share in loss of associate company - 1.46
Total 243.85 185.46
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Ended on

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Statutory Audit Fee 1.20 0.90
Tax Audit Fee 0.30 0.30
Certification fee 0.25 0.25
Total 1.75 1.45

35 Tax Reconciliation
Amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss (Rs. in Lakhs)

year ended

year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tax on profit for the current year 194.65 0.39
Tax on profit for the previous year = (1.12)
Deferred tax (46.99) 383.60
Tax expense for the year charged to the Profit and 147.66 382.78
Deferred tax of amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (k 0.10 (4.67)
Total Tax expenses for the year (a+b) 147.76 378.10

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars

year ended

year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit before tax 1,115.48 1,618.06
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed Tax Expense 280.74 407.23
Tax effect of :

Exempted income - -
Income / Expenses allowed & disallowed (133.57) (24.67)
Deferred Tax on account of Property ,Plant and Equipment and Intang 0.49 0.21
Tax Expenses recognised during the year 147.66 382.78
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Movement in deferred tax balances

Particulars

Deferred Tax Liabilities

As at
April 1,
2021

For the F.Y.

Recognised in
profit or loss

2021-22

Recognised
in OCI

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31,
2022

Depreciation

Fair valuation of Investment

Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Assets

Depreciation 40.01 (16.69) - 23.32
Provision for Doubtful debts 3.46 (17.28) - 3.20
Defined Employee Plan (0.53) (5.02) - (0.12)
Fair valuation of Investment (67.74) (82.44) - (22.906)
Total - Deferred Tax Assets (24.80) (121.45) - 3.44
Net tax (Assets)/Liabilities 24.80 121.45 - (3.44)
Movement in deferred tax balances (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Deferred Tax Liabilities

As at
April 1,

2020

For the F.Y.
Recognised in
profit or loss

2020-21
Recognised
in OCI

As at

March 31, 2021

Depreciation

Fair valuation of Investment

Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Assets

Depreciation 593 34.09 - 40.01
Provision for Doubtful debts 20.74 (17.28) - 3.46
Defined Employee Plan 4.49 (5.02) - (0.53)
Other timing difference 313.77 (313.77) - -
Fair valuation of Investment 14.70 (82.44) - (67.74)
Total - Deferred Tax Assets 359.63 (384.43) - (24.80)
Net tax (Assets)/Liabilities (359.63) 384.43 - 24.80
36 One time impact on Tax Expenses (current & deferred) due to change in tax Rate (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Ended on Ended on

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

One time impact on Tax Expenses (current & deferred) due to change in tax Rate = 218.95
Total | | | - 218.95

Note: On September 20, 2019, the Government of India, vide the Taxation laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted Section TI5BAA in
the Income Tax Act, 1961, which provides domestic Companies an option to pay Corporate Tax at reduced rate effective April 1, 2019
subject to certain conditions. Accordingly the Company has decided to exercise the option of lower tax rate available under Section
T5BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019,with effect from FY 2020-2021.
Accordingly, the Company has recognised the provision for income tax for year ended March 31,2021 and re-measured the
accumulated deferred tax asset/liabilities at March 31,2021 based on the rate prescribed under Section 115BAA. Consequently, the
company has reversed MAT Credit of Rs.218.95 Lakhs during the current quarter. This matter has resulted in one time impact on Tax
expenses (current & deferred).

156

Consolidated Financial Statements



np7
P‘ IndoThai

‘ trade with confidence

28" Annual Report 2021-22

37 Earning Per Share (EPS)
The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is given below:

year ended year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (in Lakhs) 967.82 1,016.33
ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS (in numbers) 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
iii) Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 9.67 10.18
(Face value Rs. 10/- per equity share)

38 Statement of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure
During the period ended March 31, 2021 the Company has spent X 21.34 Lakh (Previous year X 11.18 Lakh) out of the total amount of T 0

(Previous year X 1118 Lakh) required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of Corporate Social
Responsibility [CSR].
Amount spent in cash during the year on:

(Rs.in Lakhs)
As At March  As At March

Particulars

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

31, 2022

31, 2021

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

11.18

39 Contingent Liabilities

capital, margin deposits etc.

Counter guarantees in respect of guarantees given by banks to the Stock Exchanges towards base

As At March
31, 2022

Particulars

690.00

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As At March
31, 2021

590.00

Pledge of fixed deposits (including Interest) with the bank against the above bank guarantees

345.00

296.95

40 Related Party Disclosure

As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures (Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Company are as

follows:

(A) List of related parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships

Nature of relationship

Name of the related party

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Parasmal Doshi (Chairman & Whole Time Director)

Dhanpal Doshi (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)

Rajendra Bandi (Whole Time Director)

Deepak Sharma (Chief Financial Officer)

Sanjay Kushwah (Company Secretary)

Nandan Kundetkar Vinayakrao (Director in Subsidiary)

Bhumika Saxena (Company Secretary) (in Subsidiary)

Associate Company

Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd

Other Related Parties

M/s Sun Décor World

M/s Balmukund Ramkishan Bang

Sky Space Ventures LLP

Citadel Real Estates Private Ltd.

Future Infraestates Private Ltd.

3M Consultants Private Limited

Surana Estate And Commodity Trading Pvt. Ltd.

Geetanjali Buildcon Pvt. Ltd.

Vistar Villas Pvt. Ltd

Prosperity Residency Pvt. Ltd.

Rising Infrareal Pvt. Ltd

Provident Real Estate Pvt. Ltd

Red Carpet Residency Pvt. Ltd

Suresh Chandra Shantilal & Co.

Sujanmal & Sons

Sky Space Insurance Broking LLP

Indo Thai Wealth Management Pvt. Ltd
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Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Dhanpal Doshi (HUF)

Nivya Doshi

Jaya Bandi

Nishit Doshi

Palak Bandi

Paras Doshi (HUF)

Praveen Bandi

Rajendra Bandi (HUF)

Sadhana Doshi

Sarthak Doshi

Sunita Bandi

Vijaya Jain

Rajmati Hingad

Varsha Doshi

Paras Doshi (WTD)

Ritu Doshi Jain

Tripat Jain

Chandra Shekhar Doshi

Kumkum Jain

Romil Bandi

Anita Khasgiwala

(B) Significant Transactions with Related Parties

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars Relationship FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Brokerage Received
Citadel Real Estates Pvt Ltd Other related party - 0.02
Sujanmal & Sons Other related party - -
Dhanpal Doshi KMP 0.13 013
Dhanpal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 1.83 0.80
Indo Thai Wealth Management Private Limited Other related party 3.87 0.46
Rising Infrareal Pvt.Ltd. Other related party - 0.16
Indo Thai Commodities Pvt. Ltd. Associate Company 0.41 -
Jaya Bandi Relative of KMP 0.09 013
Nishit Doshi Relative of KMP 0.10 0.25
HUF of KMP 0.14 1.06
Parasmal Doshi KMP 0.20 1.35
Praveen Bandi Relative of KMP 0.08 0.10
Rajendra Bandi KMP 0.12 0.21
Sadhana Doshi Relative of KMP 9.52 13.46
Sarthak Doshi Relative of KMP 0.04 0.09
Sunita Bandi Relative of KMP 0.05 013
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP 0.03 0.12
Romil Bandi Relative of KMP 0.01 -
Varsha Doshi Relative of KMP 0.95 397
Deepak Sharma KMP 0.03 0.09
Rajmati Hingad Relative of KMP 0.28 0.09
Vijaya Jain Relative of KMP 0.06 0.12
Nivya Doshi Relative of KMP 0.12 0.38
Anita Khagiwala Relative of KMP 0.08 0.02
Indo thai Realties Ltd. Subsidary 0.04 -
Sanjay Kushwah KMP 0.03 0.10
Total 18.22 33.23
Remuneration
Sarthak Doshi Relative of KMP - 4.40
Praveen Bandi Relative of KMP 314 2.20
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.87
Nandan Kundetkar Vinayakrao KMP 9.00 -
Total 12.14 8.47
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Remuneration/Compensation to KMP *
. Short term employee benefits 24.00 12.00
Dhanpal Doshi -
Post employment benefits 0.59 0.57
Total 24.59 12.57
. Short term employee benefits 25.26 14.52
Paras Doshi -
Post employment benefits 0.52 0.50
Total 25.78 15.02
. . Short term employee benefits 4.45 2.90
Rajendra Bandi -
Post employment benefits - -
Total 4.45 2.90
Deepak Sharma Short term employee beheflts 3.82 3.49
Post employment benefits - -
Total 3.82 3.49
. Short term employee benefits 4.52 4.22
Sanjay Kushwah -
Post employment benefits - -
Total 4.52 4.22
. Short term employee benefits 2.51 1.67
Bhumika Saxena -
Post employment benefits - -
Total 2.51 1.67

*As the liabilities for gratuity and leave compensation are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts

pertaining to the key management personnel is not included above.

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars Relationship FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Rent Paid
M/s Balmukund Ramkishan Bang Other related party 24.94 2494
Paras Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 1.62 1.62
Dhanpal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 114 114
M/s Sun Decor World Other related party 12.47 12.47
Total 40.17 40.17|
Rent Received
Sky Space Ventures LLP | Other related party | 36.09 39.90
Total 36.09 39.90
Profit from Partnership Firm
Sky Space Ventures LLP | Other related party 0.34 3.18
Total 0.34 3.18
Outstanding Balance as on March 31
Deposits Given
Paras Doshi HUF Relative of KMP 4.00 4.00
Sun Décor World Other related party 5.00 5.00
M/s Balmukund Ramkishan Bang Other related party 10.00 10.00
Total 19.00 19.00
Deposit Taken
Sky Space Ventures LLP Other related party 9.00 9.00
Total 9.00 9.00|
Receivables
Sky Space Ventures LLP Other related party - 2.66
Vijaya Jain Relative of KMP - 1.70
Dhanpal Doshi HUF Relative of KMP - 537
Rajendra Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.7
Nivya Doshi Relative of KMP 0.00 -
Sunita Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.68
Jaya Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.69
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP - 1.79
Praveen Bandi Relative of KMP 0.20 1.29
Anita Khasgiwala Relative of KMP 0.02 -
Deepak Sharma KMP - 1.30
Sanjay Kushwah KMP - 134
Parasmal Doshi KMP - 0.51
Total 0.21 21.05
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Payables
Parasmal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP - 6.82
Paras Doshi KMP 0.07 -
Varsha Doshi Relative of KMP - 1.90
Sarthak Doshi Relative of KMP - 0.47
Sadhana Doshi Relative of KMP 0.25 12.51
Nivya Doshi Relative of KMP = 4.67
Romil Bandi Relative of KMP 0.02 -
Jaya Bandi Relative of KMP 0.01 -
Palak Bandi Relative of KMP 0.12 -
Rajendra Bandi KMP 1.38 -
Dhanpal Doshi KMP 0.06 0.39
Dhanpal Doshi HUF HUF of KMP 0.50 -
Deepak Sharma KMP - -
Anita Khasgiwala Relative of KMP - 2.04
Citadel Real Estates Private Limited Other related party - -
Rising Infrareal Pvt.Ltd. Other related party - -
Indo Thai Wealth Management Private Limited Other related party - 12.74
Sujanmal & Sons Other related party - -
Balmukund Ramkishan Bang Other related party - -
Total 2.4 41.53
Investment Balance
Sky Space Ventures LLP Other related party 452 418
Indo Thai Commmodities Pvt. Ltd. Associate Company 42.52 42.52
Total 47.04 46.70Q
- Rs. 0.00 Lakh indicates values are lower than Rs. 0.01, where applicable.
41 The Group is presenting consolidated financial statements and hence in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 108 — Segment Reporting,
segment information is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by chief
operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Group's business is organised into two segments as
mentioned below. Segments have been identified and reported taking into account the nature of services, the differing risks and returns and internal
financial reporting.
Identified business segment The business segments comprises of
a) Broking, Commission & related activities Broking and other related activities, Investment & trading of shares, Distribution of third party productd
like Mutual Fund, Life Insurance, etc. and sales credit for referred business and interest earned on ou
funds used in brokerage business
b) Real Estate business Purchase & sale of properties, development of land and earned rental income
c) Manufacturing activities Manufacturing of environmental technologies
Primary segment information (by Business segment) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Manufacturin
Equities, Brokerage & . &
. .. Real estate (Environmental
Particulars related activities ..
Technology) activites
a Segment Revenue
External 1,943.00 2,190.16 32.40 - 0.10 - 1,975.50 2,190.16
Less: Inter-Segment - - - - - - - -
Operating revenue 1,943.01 2,190.16 32.36 - 0.13 - 1,975.50 2,190.16
Add: Other income 42.53 74.85 40.43 - - 42.53 15.28
Total Revenue 198554 °  2,265.01 3236 ' 4043 013" - 2,018.03 7  2,305.44
b Segment Result
Profit before Interest & Taxes 1,279.37 1,714.49 (21.40) (12.80) (58.12) - 1,199.85 1,701.69
Interest Expenses 85.44 83.63 - - - - 85.44 83.63
Profit before Tax 1,193.92 1,630.86 (21.40) (12.80) (58.12) - 1M4.40 1,618.06
Tax expenses including deferred tax - 388.56 - (5.78) - - - 382.78
Net Profit after Tax 1,114.40 1,242.29 - (7.01) - - 1,114.40 1,235.28
c Segment Assets 9,652.25 6,880.47 1,009.14 980.55 212.90 - 10,874.29 7,861.02
d Segment Liabilities 4,066.95 2,207.41 166.31 120.50 216.68 - 4,449,94 2,327.91
e Capital Employed 5,585.31 4,673.07 842.82 860.04 (3.78) 6,424.35 5,533.11
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42 Summary of consolidation
a) Enterprises consolidated as subsidiary & associate in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 110 - Consolidated Financial
Statements.

% of Shares Held
As on March As on March
31,2022 31,2021

Name of the Company

Principal Place of Business

Capital Tower, 2nd Floor, Plot No. 169A-171, PU- Wholly-

Indo Thai Realties Ltd 4, Scheme No. 54, Behind C21 Mall Indore - owned 100.00% 100.00%
452010 Subsidiary
Unit No. 326 Signature Building, Second Floor Wholly-

Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. Block 13B, Zone-1, GIFT SEZ Gandhinagar owned 100.00% 100.00%,
(Gujrat)- 382355 Subsidiary

Indo Thai Commodities Pyt Ltd Capital Tower, 3rd Floor., Plot No. 169A-171, PU- Associate 40105% 40.05%
4, Scheme No. 54, Behind C21 Mall Indore - Company
Plot No. 170,171, Scheme No. 54, PU-4, Near C2] Subsidiary

Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. 57.00% -

Mall,Indore Indore MP 452010 IN Company,

b) Additional information, as required under schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as subsidiariesand

associate ason March 31,2022

Net Assets i.e.

Share in Profit or Loss

As % of
Particulars consolidated As % of
Rs. In Lakhs consolidated Rs.In Lakhs
Net profit or loss
Assets
Parent
Indo Thai Securities Ltd. 83.90% 5,390.11 107.49% 1,040.31
Subsidiaries
Indian
- Indo Thai Realties Ltd. 13.12% 842.82 -1.78% (17.22)
- Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. 2.02% 129.95 0.20% 1.92
- Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. -0.04% (2.49) -3.44% (33.29)
Associate
Indian
- Indo Thai Commodities Ltd. 1.02% 65.25 0.11% 1.09
Non-controlling interest in all
subsidiaries Associates
Indian
- Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. -0.02% (1.29) -2.58% (24.99)
Total 100.00% 6,424.35 100.00% 967.82

Share in Other
Comprehensive Income

Share in Total

Comprehensive

As % of As % of
. consolidated consolidated
Particulars
Other Total
. Rs. In Lakh . Rs.In Lakh
Comprehensiv Comprehensi
e ve
Income Income
Parent
Indo Thai Securities Ltd. 100.00% (0.28) 107.49% 1,040.03
Subsidiaries
Indian
- Indo Thai Realties Ltd. - - -1.78% (17.22)
- Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. - - 0.20% 1.92
- Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. -3.44% (33.29)
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Associate
Indian
- Indo Thai Commodities Ltd. - - 0.11% 1.09
Non-controlling interest in all
subsidiaries Associates
Indian
- Femto Green Hydrogen Ltd. - - -2.58% (24.99)
Total 100.00% (0.28) 100.00% 967.54

c) Additional information, as required under schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises

consolidated as subsidiaries and associate as on March 31, 2021

Net Assets i.e.

Total Assets minus
Total Liabilities

Share in Profit or Loss

Particulars As % of
X As % of
cons:l:tiated Rs.In Lakhs consolidated Rs.In Lakhs
profit or loss
Assets
Parent
Indo Thai Securities Ltd. 80.21% 4,437.95 101.35% 1,030.06
Subsidiaries
Indian
- Indo Thai Realties Ltd. 15.55% 860.46 -0.69% (7.01)
- Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. 2.31% 128.03 -0.52% (5.26)
Associate
Indian
- Indo Thai Commodities Ltd. 1.93% 106.67 -0.14% (1.46)
Total 100.00% 5,533.11 100.00% 1,016.33

Share in Other
Comprehensive

Share in Total
Comprehensive

Income Income
As % of As % of
Particulars consolidated consolidated
Other ) Rs. In Lakh Total . Rs.In Lakh
Comprehensiv Comprehensi
e ve
Income Income
Parent
Indo Thai Securities Ltd. 100.00% 13.90 101.33% 1,043.96
Subsidiaries
Indian
- Indo Thai Realties Ltd. - - -0.68% (7.07)
- Indo Thai Globe Fin (IFSC) Ltd. - - -0.51% (5.26)
Associate
Indian
- Indo Thai Commodities Ltd. - - -0.14% (1.46)
Total 100.00% 13.90 100.00% 1,030.23

43 The Board of parent company has declared a dividend @ 10% i.e. Rs. 1/- per equity share of Rs. 10/- each for the financial year ende

March 31, 2022.
44 Employee Benefit

As per Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee benefits”, the disclosures as defined are given below:
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A) Defined Benefit Plans:

The Parent Company has made an arrangement with Life Insurance Corporation for Gratuity Benefits. Now the company makes annual
contributions to the Employees’ Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation of India, a funded
defined benefit plan for eligible employees. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost

were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations.

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

(Rs.in Lakhs)

year ended

year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the period 29.32 41.68
Interest cost 2.13 2.91
Current service cost 4.79 417
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits paid (if any) - (0.68)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (0.92) (18.77)
Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 35.31 29.31
(ii)) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet (Rs. in Lakhs)

As At March  As At March

Particulars
31,2022 31,2021
Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 35.31 29.31
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 34.82 31.43
Net liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 0.48 (2.1m)
Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit) (0.48) 2.1
(iii) Expense recognized during the year (Rs. in Lakhs)

year ended year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
In Income Statement
Interest cost 213 2.91
Current service cost 4.79 4.18
Past Service Cost - -
Expected return on plan asset (2.28) (1.77)
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under " Employee benefits
expenses" 4.64 5.38
In Other Comprehensive (income) / expenses
Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation (0.92) (18.77)
Actuarial (gain)/loss - plan assets 1.31 0.20
Net (income)/expense for the year recognised in OCI 0.38 (18.57)

(iv) Actuarial assumptions

Particulars yvear ended March 31,2022 year ended March 31, 2021
Rate of discounting 7.25% 7.00%
Rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 5.00% 5.00%

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality rate during employment
Y ° ploy Mortality (2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14)

Mortality rate after employment N.A.

N.A.
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(v) Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary
increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented below may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in

isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below:

Particulars As At March 31, 2022 As At March 31, 2021
35,30,920 @ Salary Increase Rate : 7% and 29,31,653 @ Salary Increase Rate : 7% and

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) Discount Rate : 7.25% Discount Rate: 7%

Liability with x% increase in Discount Rat 33,06,067 x=1.00% [Change (6)% ] 27,43,269 x=1.00% [Change (6)% ]

Liability with x% decrease in Discount Raf 37,88,893; x=1.00% [Change 7% ] 31,47,904; x=1.00% [Change 7% ]

Liability with x% increase in Salary

G th Rat 37,86,941; x=1.00% [Change 7%)] 31,45,777; x=1.00% [Change 7%)]
row ate

Liability with x% decrease in Salary

G th Rat 33,03,594; x=1.00% [Change (6)% ] 27,41,587; x=1.00% [Change (6)% ]
row ate

Liability with x% increase in Withdrawal

Rat 35,25,387; x=1.00% [Change 0% ] 29,23,760; x=1.00% [Change 0% ]
ate

Liability with x% decrease in Withdrawal

Rat 35,36,060; x=1.00% [Change 0% ] 29,39,688; x=1.00% [Change 0% ]
ate

(vi) Maturity analysis of benefit obligations

Year ended

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 - 6.77
O1 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 8.03 0.97
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 0.71 0.57
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 1.96 1.51
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 514 4.4
01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027 0.38 15.02
O1 Apr 2027 onwards 19.08 -

(B) Defined Contributions Plans:

Year ended

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Contribution to provident fund 2.54 2.51
Contribution to ESIC 1.85 1.46
Total 4.39 3.97
45 Lease

- Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' effective April 1, 2019 and elect not to apply the requirements of Ind AS116 since all leases are

short term leases.

46 Comparatives

Previous year figures are re-grouped, re-classified and re-arranged, wherever considered necessary to confirm to current year's

presentation.
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47 Asset pledged as security

Particulars

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are:

As At March

31, 2022

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As At March
31, 2021

Financial Asset
First charge
Stock for trade 140.83 180.33
Investment 34.33 12.59
Deposits 4,722.74 2,457.42
Total assets pledged as security 4,897.91 2,650.34
48 Exposure in derivative financial instruments (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As At March  As At March
31,2022 31,2021
Equity derivatives - Future 1,149.77 896.18
Equity derivatives - Option 13.63 -
Commodity derivatives - Future 39.70 -
Commodity derivatives - Option 5.89 -
Total Exposure 1,208.99 896.18

- The derivatives are used for The purpose of trading.

49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:

a) Credit Risk

It is risk of financial loss that the Company will incur a loss because its customer or counterparty to financial instruments fails to meet
its contractual obligation. The Company's financial assets comprise of Cash and bank balance, Securities for trade, Trade receivables,

Loans, Investments and Other financial assets which comprise mainly of deposits. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is primarily from Company’s trade receivable.

Following provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivables:

(Rs.in Lakhs)

. March 31, March 31,
Particulars
pLoyyl 2021
Trade and Other Debtors
Secured
Due 0-180 days 184.37 273.28
Due more than 180 days 12.51 4.33
Total (a) 196.88 277.62
Un-secured
Due 0-180 days 14.07 19.99
Due more than 180 days 66.49 69.52
Total (b) 80.57 89.51
Total (a+b) 277.44 367.13
Less: Impairment Loss (12.70) (13.74)
Total 264.75 353.39

The Company has followed simplified method of ECL in case of Trade receivables and the Company recognises lifetime expected losses
for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. At each reporting date, the Company assesses the impairment

requirements.

Other financial assets considered to have a low credit risk:

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and stock exchanges with high credit
ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments comprise of Quoted Equity instruments and

Mutual Funds which are market tradeable.
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b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity represents the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its financial obligations on time, both in
normal and in stressed conditions, without having to liquidate assets or raise funds at unfavourable terms thus compromising its
earnings and capital. The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable
investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflow on financial liabilities. Funds required for short period is taken care by
borrowings through utilizing overdraft facility.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities.

Particulars

March 31, 2022
Less than 1
Year

1to 5 Years

(Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2021
Less than 1
Year

1to 5 Years

Financial Assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 178.68 603.84 -
(ii) Bank balance other than (i) above 107.05 472274 147.31 2,457.42
(iii) Securities for trade 2,053.41 958.27 -
(iv) Trade Receivables 264.75 353.39 -
(v) Loans - - -
(vi) Investments 1,249.74 211.33 1,376.10 110.85
(vii) Other financial assets 21.84 640.42 10.37 581.02
Total Financial Assets 3,875.47 5,574.49 3,449.28 3,149.29
Financial Labilities

(i) Trade Payables 4,126.96 2,167.58 -
(ii) Borrowings 147.69 22.67 -
(iii) Deposits 52.86 58.21 -
(iv) Other financial liabilities 62.41 42.3] -
Total Financial Liabilities 4,389.92 - 2,290.76 -
Net Excess / (Shortfall) (514.45) 5,574.49 1,158.51 3,149.29

c) Market Risk

Market risk arises when movements in market factors (foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices) impact the Company's

income or the market value of its portfolios. The Company, in its course of business, is exposed to market risk due to change in equity
prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The objective of market risk management is to maintain an acceptable level of market
risk exposure while aiming to maximize returns. The Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading
portfolios. Both the portfolios are managed using the following sensitivity analyses:

i) Equity Price Risk

ii) Foreign Currency Risk

iii) Interest Rate Risk

(Rs.in Lakhs)
March 31, 2022 . .
Particulars Carrying . Non-traded Pr|ma.r3./ TISK
PP Traded Risk Risk sensitivity
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents and other 5.008.46 ) ) Foreign
Bank balances Currency Risk
Financial asset at FVTPL 3,406.71 3,406.71 - Equity price
Trade Receivables 264.75 - -
Loans - - -
Investment in Associate 107.77 - -
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 679.59 - -
Total 9,467.28 3,406.71 -
Liabilities
Trade payable 4,126.96 - -
Borrowings 147.69 - - Interest rate
Deposits 52.86 - -
Other financial liabilities 62.41 - -
Total 4,389.92 - -
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March 31, 2021

Particulars Carrying Traded Risk Non-traded p;;::i?ilv:fk
Amount Risk y
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents and other .
Bank balances 3,208.57 - - Foreign
Currency Risk
Financial asset at FVTPL 2,338.55 2,338.55 - Equity price
Trade Receivables 353.39 - -
Loans - - -
Investment in Associate 106.67 - -
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 591.39 - -
Total 6,598.57 2,338.55 -
Liabilities
Trade payable 2,167.58 - -
Borrowings 22.67 - - Interest rate
Deposits 58.21 - -
Other financial liabilities 42.31 - -
Total 2,290.76 - -

i) Equity Price Risk

The Company exposure to price risk arising form investment and security in trade held by the company and is classified in the balance
sheet through fair value through profit & loss account. Company has investment in Exchange Traded Funds & equity shares under
various scheme and its exposure.

The below sensitivity depicts a scenario where a 10% movement in equity prices, everything else remaining constant, would result in an
exchange obligation for both Traded and Non-traded (client) positions and their impact on statement of profit and loss account.

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Impact on statement of profit

and loss
Year ended Year ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Equity prices up by 10% 340.67 233.85
Equity prices down by 10% (340.67) (233.85)

Particulars

ii) Foreign exchange Risk
The fluctuations in foreign currency also affect statement of profit and loss.
As at March 31,2022 and March 31,2021 an appreciation/depreciation of 15% would result in the following impact on the statement of

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Impact on statement of profit

and loss
Year ended Year ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Depreciation of @ 15 % 15.59 17.21
Appreciation of @15 % (15.59) (17.21)

Particulars

iii) Interest Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Interest rate change does not affects significantly short term borrowing and current investment therefore the
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt and Non current
investment.

As at March 31,2022 and March 31,2021 a parallel shift of 2.50% in the yield curve would result in the following impact on the statement
of profit and loss.

Impact on statement of profit and loss

Particulars
Year ended March 31,2022 Year ended March 31,2021
parallel upward shift of 2.50% (3.69) (0.57)
parallel downward shift of 2.50% 3.69 0.57

50 Financial Instruments

Refer to financial instruments by category table below for the disclosure on carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities. For
financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
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The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul TOtél Amortised Total fair Fair value Fair value
Articiiars cartymng cost value through P&L  through OCI
value

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents and other Bank balances 5,008.46 5,008.46 - - 0
Security in trade 2,053.41 2,053.41 2,053.41| O
Investment 1,461.07 - 1,461.07 1,461.07| O
Trade Receivables 264.75 264.75 - - 0
Loans - - - 0
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 679.59 679.59 - - 0

Total 9,467.28 5,952.80 3,514.48| 3,514.48| O
Liabilities
Trade payable 4,126.96 4,126.96 - 0
Borrowings 147.69 147.69 - 0
Deposits 52.86 52.86 - 0
Other financial liabilities 62.41 62.41 - 0

Total 4,389.92 4,389.92 - - 0

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31,2021 is as follows:

) Total carrying  Amortised Total fair Fair value Fair value
Particulars
value cost value through P&L through OCI

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents and other
Bank balances 3,208.57 3,208.57 - i i
Security in trade 958.27 - 958.27 958.27 -
Investment 1,486.95 - 1,486.95 1,486.95 -
Trade Receivables 353.39 353.39 - - -
Loans - - - - -
Other Financial assets at amortised cost 591.39 591.39 - - -

Total 6,598.57 4,153.35 2,445.22 2,445.22 -
Liabilities
Trade payable 2,167.58 2,167.58 - - -
Borrowings 22.67 22.67 - - -
Deposits 58.21 58.21 - - -
Other financial liabilities 42.31 42.31 - - -

Total 2,290.76 2,290.76 - - -

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or

most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

Level 1- The fair value hierarchy have been valued using quoted prices for instruments in an active market.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs that are
not observable and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation.

The following table summarises financial instruments measured at fair value on recurring basis: Rs. In Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial instruments:

Consolidated Financial Statements

Securities for trade 2,053.41 - - 2,053.41
Mutual Funds 138.70 - - 138.70
Equity Shares (other than associate) 1,111.03 - - 1,111.03
Total 3,303.15 - - 3,303.15
RS TITTIRITS]

As at March 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial instruments:

Securities for trade 958.27 - - 958.27
Mutual Funds 122.88 - - 122.88
Equity Shares (other than associate) 1,230.19 - - 1,230.19
Total 2,311.34 - - 2,311.34
(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value.

The Following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level
3 financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance - -

Purchase - -

Less: Sales - -
Add: Gain / (Loss) - -
Transferin Level 3 - -

Less: Transfer from Level 3 - -

Closing Balance - -

51 Maturity Analysis

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when
they are expected to be recovered or settled.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at March Within 12 After 12
Particulars
31, 2022 Months Months
ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 178.68 178.68 -
(ii) Bank balance other than (i) above 4,829.79 107.05 4772274
(iii) Securities for trade 2,053.41 2,053.41 -
(iv) Receivables -
(a) Trade Receivables 264.75 264.75 -
(b) Other Receivables - - -
(v) Loans - - -
(vi) Investments 1,461.07 1,249.74 211.33
(vii) Other financial assets 679.59 39.17 640.42
Total Financial Assets 9,467.28 3,892.79 5,574.49
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Non Financial Assets

) Inventories
I

) Current tax assets
i

(
(
(iii) Deferred tax assets 22.37 - 22.37
(iv) Investment property 930.54 - 930.54
(v) Property, plant and equipment 207.23 - 207.23
(vi) Other intangible assets 0.15 - 0.15
(vii) Right of asset use 12.92 - 12.92
(viii) Other non financial assets 233.82 233.82 -
Total Non Financial Assets 1,407.02 233.82 1,173.20
Total Assets 10,874.30 4,126.61 6,747.69
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(i) Payables
(@) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 4,126.66 4126.66 -
(b) Other Payables - - -
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 0.30 0.30 -
(ii) Borrowings (Other than debt
securities) 147.69 147.69 -
(iii) Deposits 52.86 52.86 -
(iv) Other financial liabilities 62.41 62.41 -
Total Financial Liabilities 4,389.92 4,389.92 -
Non-financial Liabilities
(i) Current tax liabilities 55.24 55.24 -
(ii) Provisions 4.07 - -
(iii) Other non financial liabilities 0.71 0.71 -
(iv) Deferred tax Liabilities - - -
Total Non Financial Liabilities 60.02 55.95 -
Total Liabilities 4,449.94 4,445.87 -
Net 6,424.36 (319.26) 6,747.69
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at March Within 12 After 12
Particulars
31, 2021 Months Months
ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 603.84 603.84 -
(i) Bank balance other than (i) above 2,604.73 147.31 2,457.42
(ili) Securities for trade 958.27 958.27 -
(iv) Receivables
(@) Trade Receivables 353.39 353.39 -
(b) Other Receivables - - -
(v) Loans - - -
(vi) Investments 1,486.95 1,230.19 256.76
(vii) Other financial assets 591.39 10.37 581.02
Total Financial Assets 6,598.57 3,303.37 3,295.20
Non Financial Assets
(i) Inventories - -
(ii) Current tax assets 13.29 13.29 -
(iii) Deferred tax assets - - -
(iv) Investment property 831.79 - 831.79
(v) Property, plant and equipment 217.07 - 217.07
(vi) Other intangible assets 0.34 - 0.34
(vii) Right of asset use 14.27 - 14.27
(viii) Other non financial assets 185.70 185.70 -
Total Non Financial Assets 1,262.46 198.99 1,063.47
Total Assets 7,861.03 3,502.35 4,358.68
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(i) Payables
(@) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 2,167.26 2,167.26 -
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(b) Other Payables - - -
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditorg
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 0.32 0.32 -
(ii) Borrowings (Other than debt
securities) 22.67 22.67 -
(iii) Deposits 58.21 58.21 -
(iv) Other financial liabilities 42 .31 42.31 -
Total Financial Liabilities 2,290.76 2,290.76 -
Non-financial Liabilities
(i) Current tax liabilities 0.30 0.30 -
(ii) Provisions - - -
(iii) Other non financial liabilities 12.05 12.05 -
(iv) Deferred tax Liabilities 24.80 24.80 -
Total Non Financial Liabilities 37.15 3715 -
Total Liabilitieg 2,327.91 2,327.91 -
Net 5,533.11 1,174.44 4,358.68

52 Event After Reporting Date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For SPARK & Associates Chartered

Accountants LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of Indo Thai
Chartered Accountants Securities Limited

Firm Reg No. 005313C/C400311

Dhanpal Doshi Parasmal Doshi
Managing Director & CEO Chairman & Whole Time Director

DIN: 00700492 DIN: 00051460
Chandresh Singhvi
Partner
Membership No. 436593 Deepak Sharma Sanjay Kushwah

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

Place: Indore Compliance Officer

Date: May 18, 2022
UDIN: 22436593AJEYRNG309
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NOTICE OF THE 28™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 28th Annual General Meeting (“AGM” or “Meeting”) of the Members of INDO THAI
SECURITIES LIMITED (the “Company”) will be held on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 05:00 P.M., through Video
Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) facility deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the
Companytotransactthefollowing business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No. 1- Adoption of Financial Statements:

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements) of
the Company for the financial year ended 31" March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors (the
“Board"”) and Auditorsthereon.

Item No. 2 - Declaration of Dividend:

Todeclare afinal dividend of Re.l/- per equity share of Rs. 10/~ each (i.e. at the rate of 10% on the face value) for the financial
year ended on 31" March, 2022.

Item No. 3 - Appointment of Mr. Rajendra Bandi, the Director Liable to Retire by Rotation:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajendra Bandi (DIN: 00051441), who retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks re-
appointment.

Date: 12" August, 2022 By order of the Board of Directors
Place: Indore Indo Thai Securities Limited

Sanjay Kushwah
Registered Office: (Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer)
“Capital Tower”, 2™ Floor, Plot Nos. 169A-171 (Membership No. : A49437)

PU-4, Scheme No.-54, Indore - 452010, Madhya Pradesh
CIN: L67120MP1995PLC008959

Tel.:0731-4255800

Website: www.indothai.co.in;

Email: compliance@indothai.co.in
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NOTES:
1. Considering the present COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA') has, vide its circular dated

April 8,2020 read together with circulars dated April 13,2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021, December
14, 2021 and May 5, 2022 (collectively referred to as 'MCA Circulars') permitted convening the Annual General Meeting
('AGM' / 'Meeting') through Video Conferencing (“VC") or Other Audio Visual Means ((OAVM'), without the physical
presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act') and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations') and the circulars issued by Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), the AGM of the
Company will be held through VC / OAVM. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and that the proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members has
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for the appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the
AGM and hence the Proxy Formsand Attendance Slips are not annexed hereto.

2. Route map and prominent land mark for easy location of venue of the AGM is not provided in the Annual Report
since Annual General Meeting isto be held through VC/OAVM.

3. Details of Director retiring by rotation/seeking re-appointment at this meeting are provided in the Annexure to
this Notice.
4, The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and “Secretarial Standard - 2" on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, of the Director seeking re-appointment, are annexed hereto.

5. Corporate Members are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or Governing Body
Resolution / Authorization, etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to
vote through remote e-voting to the Company, by email through its registered email address to
compliance@indothai.co.in

6. SEBI & MCA encourage paperless communication as a contribution to greener environment. The Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Listing Regulations, permit Companies to send soft copies of the Annual Report to all those
Shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent/Depository Participant(s).

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is
being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company's
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or CDSL / NSDL (“Depositories”). Members may note that the Notice and Annual
Report 2021-22 will also be available on the Company's website www.indothai.co.in, and websites of the Stock Exchanges
i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com
respectively.

Memberswhose email addressis not registered can register the same in the following manner:

a. Members holding share(s) in physical mode can register their e-mail ID with the Company/ RTA,
Bigshare Services Private Limited;and

b. Members holding share(s) in electronic mode are requested to register / update their e-mail address
with their respective Depository Participants (“DPs”) for receiving all commmunicationsfrom the Company electronically.

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled tovote.

8. As required under the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, E-Voting facility is being provided to the
Members. Details of the E-Voting process and other relevant details are being sent to the Members along with the Notice
and also provided atthe end of this Annual Report.

9. Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended
fromtimetotime,all equity shares of the Company on which dividend for the year 2014-15 (declared on 21" AGM) has
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not been paid or claimed for 7 consecutive years or more, shall be required to be transferred by the Company, along with
the said dividend, to Investor Education and Protection Fund on or after 27th October, 2022. The details of the Members,
who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the earlier years and whose shares are liable to be transferred to the
I[EPF Authority if they do not encash their dividend prior to said date, are put on the Company's website
www.indothai.co.in under the 'investors” Section. Hence, Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for
the earlier year/s are advised to write to the Company and Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent - Bigshare
Services Private Limited immediately claiming their dividends declared by the Company.

10. Members are requested to note that as per Section 124(6) of the Act, read with IEPF Rules as amended, all the
shares in respect of which dividend remained unpaid/unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more, are required to be
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. Consequently, the Company transferred eligible equity shares
during the financial year 2021-22 to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. Members are entitled to claim the same
from IEPF by submitting an application in the prescribed online web-based Form IEPF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in
and sending a physical copy of the same, duly signed, to the Nodal Officer of the Company along with the requisite
documentsenumerated in Form IEPF-5. Members can file only one consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF
Rules.

The Company will upload the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend amounts lying with the Company for the
financial year 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2020-21 as on 31st March, 2022 on the website of the Company
(www.indothai.co.in).

1. Applicable statutory records and all the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the 28th AGM
shall be available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days during
business hours up to the date of the Meeting. Such documents will also be available electronically for inspection by the
Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM and during the AGM. Members seeking to
inspectsuch documentscansend an e-mailtocompliance@indothai.co.in

12. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

13. In terms of Listing Regulations, the Securities of the listed Companies can only be transferred in dematerialized
form w.e.f. Olst April, 2019. In view of the same, members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical
form.

14. The submission of Permanent Account Number (“PAN") and bank account details of all securities holders
holding securities in physical form to the Company/Bigshare Services Private Limited (Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent). Members holding shares in electronic form are also requested to submit/update their PAN and bank account
detailsto their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their Demat accounts.

15. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, facility for making nominations is available to individuals holding shares in the Company.
Members holding shares in physical form desiring to avail this facility may send their nomination in the prescribed Form
No. SH-13 duly filed to Bigshare Services Private Limited. Members holding shares in electronic form may contact their
respective Depository Participant(s) for availing this facility.

16. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Saturday, 24th
September, 2022 to Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 (both days inclusive) and the dividend as may be declared shall be
payableto Members ofthe Company whose names appear:

a) As Beneficial Owners as at the end of business hours on Friday, 23rd September, 2022 as per the download to be
furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited, in respect of the
shares heldinelectronic form;and

b) As Members in the Register of Members of the Company as on Friday, 23rd September, 2022 in respect of the shares
held in physical form.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, dividend on equity shares, as recommmended by Board, if declared at the Meeting, will
be credited/dispatched on or after Friday, 30th September, 2022.
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17. The Securities and Exchange Board of India and Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") have advised all listed companies
to mandatorily use the National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) facility wherever possible for dividend payment to
the Shareholders. Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered against their
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrarsand
Share Transfer Agents, Big share Services Private Limited, cannot act on any request received directly from the Members
holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised
only to the Depository Participant of the Members. For the shares held in physical form, the Bank particulars may be sent
to Bigshare Services Private Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. For electronic shares, the
Members are requested to direct change in relevant information to the concerned Depository Participant with whom
the demat accountis operational. In the absence of electronic credit facility, the bank account details, if available, will be
printed on the Dividend Warrants/Demand Drafts. Members holding shares in dematerialized formm must give
instructions, regarding bank accountsin which they wish to receive dividend, to their respective Depository Participant.

18. Members may note that the Income-tax Act, 1961, (“the IT Act”) asamended by the Finance Act, 2020, mandates
that dividends paid or distributed by a company after April 1, 2020 shall be taxable in the hands of members. The
Company shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source ("TDS") at the time of making the payment of final dividend.
In order to determine the appropriate TDS rate as applicable, members are requested to submit relevant documents, in
accordance with the provisions of the IT Act with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent as specified in the below
paragraphs.

Forresident shareholders (Individuals), taxes shall be deducted at source under Section 194 of the IT Act as follows:

Members having valid Permanent Account ' 10% or as notified by the Government of India
Number ("PAN") :
Members not having PAN / valid PAN 20% or as notified by the Government of India

However, no tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable to a resident individual if the total dividend to be received by
them during fiscal 2022-23 does not exceed Rs. 5,000/- and also in cases where members provide Form 15G / Form 15H
(Form 15H is applicable to individuals aged 60 years or more) subject to conditions specified in the IT Act. Resident
shareholders may also submit any other document as prescribed under the IT Act to claim a lower / nil withholding tax.
PAN is mandatory for members providing Form 15G /15H or any other document as mentioned above. Blank Form 15G
and15H can be downloaded from the website of the RTA viz. www.bigshareonline.com

For resident shareholders (Non- Individuals), the TDS rates along with the required documents are provided in table
below:

Category of Shareholder Tax Deduction Rate Exemption Applicability/ Documents required

Documentary evidence that the provisions of section 194 of the
Act are not applicable to them:

1. PAN

2. Registration certificate along with

3. Self-declaration available at 'For investors' tab on:
www.bigshareonline.com

* Insurance Companies : NIL

....................................................................................................................................

Documentary evidence to prove that the mutual fund is a
: : - mutual fund specified under clause (23D) of section 10 of the
* Mutual Funds NIL : Actand is covered under Section 196 of the Act along with Self-
: . declaration available at 'For investors' tab on:
www.bigshareonline.com

Documentary evidence that the person is covered by
Notification No. 51/2015 dated 25" June, 2015

(OR)
. . - Self-declaration that its income is exempt under Section 10
. Alternative Investment fund  : . (23FBA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and they are governed by
: (AIF) established/ incorporated : :  SEBI regulations as Category | or Category Il AIF along with the
- inIndia NIL . following documents

1. Self-attested copy of the PAN card

2. Registration certificate

3. Self-declaration available at 'For investors' tab on:
www.bigshareonline.com

.......................................................................................................................................

Notice

176


http://www.bigshareonline.com
http://bigshareonline.transdeliver.com/ltrack?g=0&id=KRgEVQAJXVIACUkBAlFWAVYLDkk=CVcJCQJcVglERQdCDAVGS0NYCghQQHVYUQAPGwtBXg==&client=3778
http://bigshareonline.transdeliver.com/ltrack?g=0&id=KRgEVQAJXVIACUkBAlFWAVYLDkk=CVcJCQJcVglERQdCDAVGS0NYCghQQHVYUQAPGwtBXg==&client=3778
http://bigshareonline.transdeliver.com/ltrack?g=0&id=KRgEVQAJXVIACUkBAlFWAVYLDkk=CVcJCQJcVglERQdCDAVGS0NYCghQQHVYUQAPGwtBXg==&client=3778

%
IndoThai

trade with confidence

28" Annual Report 2021-22

* Recognized Provident Fund NIL

EApproved Superannuation Fund:

-/ Approved Gratuity Fund NIL
National Pension Scheme NIL

. Entities exempt under Section :

10 of the Act NIL

Corporation established by or

. under a Central Act/ State Act

: which is, under any law for the

I time being in force, exempt NIL

: from income- tax on its

* income including entities in
: which such corporations are
. the beneficial shareholders

: Order under section 197 of the Rate provided in

the order

Rates based on the

: Benefit under Rule 37BA status of the beneficial

owners
: Other resident shareholders
- without PAN/Invalid PAN/
: Deleted PAN/ non-compliance 20%

: of Section 206AB

Category of Shareholder Tax Deduction Rate Exemption Applicability/ Documents required

Self-attested copy of a valid order from Commissioner under
Rule 3 of Part A of Fourth Schedule to the Act,

(OR)
Self-attested valid documentary evidence (e.g., relevant copy of
registration, notification, order, etc.) in support of the provident
fund being established under a scheme framed under the
Employees Provident Funds Act, 1952 needs to be submitted
along with Self-declaration available at 'For investors' tab on:
www.bigshareonline.com

Self-attested copy of valid approval granted by the
Commissioner needs to be submitted :

a) under Rule 2 of Part B of Fourth Schedule to the Act (In case
of Approved Superannuation Fund)

b) under Rule 2 of Part C of Fourth Schedule to the Act (In case
of Approved Gratuity Fund) along with Self-declaration
available at 'For investors' tab on: www.bigshareonline.com

Self-attested valid documentary evidence (e.g., relevant copy of
registration, notification, order, etc.) grating approval to the
Scheme along with Self-declaration available at 'For investors'
tab on: www.bigshareonline.com

If the income is exempt under the Act, the authorized signatory :
shall submit the declaration available at 'For investors' tab on:
www.bigshareonline.com duly signed with stamp affixed for

the purpose of claiming exemption from TDS (entities as
provided in Circular No.18 of 2017)

Documentary evidence that the person is covered under
section 196 of the Act along with self-declaration available at
'For investors' tab on: www.bigshareonline.com

Lower/NIL withholding tax certificate obtained from Income

: Tax authorities.

In case where shares are held by Clearing Member/
intermediaries/ stock brokers and TDS is to be applied by the
Company in the PAN of the beneficial shareholders, then
intermediaries/ stock brokers and beneficial shareholders will
have to provide a declaration available at 'For investors' tab on:
www.bigshareonline.com

For non-resident shareholders, taxes are required to be withheld in accordance with the provisions of Section 195 and other applicable
sections of the IT Act, at the rates in force. The withholding tax shall be at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) or as
notified by the Government of India on the amount of dividend payable. However, as per Section 90 of the IT Act, non-resident
shareholders have the option to be governed by the provisions of the Double Tax Avoidance Agreement (“DTAA"), read with Multilateral
Instrument (“MLI") between India and the country of tax residence of the member, if they are more beneficial to them. For this purpose,
i.e.toavailthe benefitsunderthe DTAA read with MLI, non-resident shareholderswill have to provide the following:

Copy ofthe PAN card allotted by the Indian income tax authorities duly attested by the member or details as prescribed

° underrule 37BC of Income-tax Rules, 1962;
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